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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HRERE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—E-RF ZZET—tF —E-N\F ZE-NF| ZEZZEF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Results E
Revenue g #= 163,495,555 219,516,957 252,363,498 233,566,651 | 186,363,525
Loss for the year KRARER A
attributable to owners Bl FREE
of the Company (16,602,345)  (9,112,762) (34,901,161) (77,936,393)| (80,214,996)
Assets and Liabilities EE R &8
Total assets 488 E 202,723,149 232,752,673 246,504,667 225,659,982 | 223,770,007
Total liabilities BaE 70,034,112 106,240,910 154,188,456 209,307,135 | 268,959,397
Equity attributable VINNEIE =N
to owners of FE A #E 2
the Company 132,689,037 126,511,763 91,054,088 18,590,811 | (48,746,456)
Loss per share BRER
Basic HA 0.06) 0.03) (0.27) (0.28)
Diluted e 0.06) 0.03) (0.27) (0.28)
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board (“Board) of Director (“Directors”) of Imperium
Group Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) and its audited financial results for the

financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Due to the COVID-19 epidemic, the economy of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) has significant adverse impact on the
RPC economy in 2020. The PRC’s gross domestic product annual
growth rate was 2.3%, lower than the 6.0% recorded in 2019.
The Group turnover decreased by approximately HK$47,203,000
to approximately HK$186,364,000.
attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$80,215,000

In 2020, the Group’s loss

representing an increase of approximately HK$2,279,000 compare
to that in 2019. The increase in the Group’s loss was mainly
attributable to the decrease in export sales in household products
business and challenging environment faced by esports and online
game business.

Facing with uncertain and challenging environment, we would
expand the esports and game publishing business, especially
in lucrative PRC market. To further diversify the income base,
we would also focus on cost saving measures and adopt more
flexible structure to meet the current economic environment. We
will continue to evaluate the business operations and financial
operation of the Group from time to time and also consider whether
any restructuring and/or integration of the existing businesses of
the Group will be appropriate in order to enhance long-term growth
potential of the Company.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of board, | would like to express our sincere appreciation
to all our investors, customers, partners and shareholders for their
ongoing support, | would also like to thank my colleagues for their
invaluable contributions throughout the year.

Cheng Ting Kong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business environment in 2020 was weak due to COVID-19
epidemic and intense trade dispute with the US, the total revenue
of the Group decreased by approximately 20.2% compared with
last year accordingly. The sales of household products business
declined by approximately 20.4% as compare with last year. The
revenue of game publishing business decreased by approximately
47.6% compare with 2019 due to poor performance of games
launched. However, the Group has put effort in developing esports
segment in order to sustain the long term growth of the Group.

Esports business

During the year, the Group invested in Nova eSports International
Limited (“Nova”) in order to penetrate the esports business. Nova'’s
brand name “NOVA ESPORTS” is associated with one of the
leading esports clubs in the world, which has a massive fan base
and followers from various social medias such as Weibo, Wechat,
Facebook, Instagram and Twitter. Professional esports players
under this brand name have been competing regularly in esports
leagues. Nova will generate revenue from sponsorships, advertising,
broadcast revenue, merchandise sales as well as prize money.

Also the Group acquired the interests of XQF Team (“Team”),
together with, among others, the eligibility to participate in the
Peacekeeper Elite League organised by Tencent Group. The team
ranked the first and third in the Esports Contests of Peacekeeper
Elite (F1F#5 %) held in 2019 and first half of 2020, respectively.
The XQF Team was renamed as NVXQF Team to participate in the
2020 PEL S2. The team is the champion of the 2020 PEL S2, the
Peacekeeper Elite Championship 2020 (20204 /& 1 F #5 & B X &
F& “PEC 2020") and PUBG Mobile Global Championship 2020
(20204 E M T 45 EPMGC 2 Bk 4 )R B “PMGC 2020”) held in Dubai
from 21 to 26 January 2021.

Furthermore, Nova is the champion of the Brawl Stars
Championship (Mainland China Division) (3% 27 &L F & Bk 88 12 & (T
B APEER)) (“BSC (China)”) for 2020 and champion of the 2020
Clash Royale League East Fall Season 2020F E X F B ¥ &
HAOEBIZEZE) Nova also ranked the fourth of FIFA Online 4
League S7 and S8 (FIFA Online 4 B 3 B & FSL S7.S8).

3 JC)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to the marketing report issued by NewZoo, the global
esports revenue will grow to USD1.1 billion in 2020, with a growth
rate of approximately 15.7%. China is the largest market by
revenues, with total revenue of USD385.1 million in 2020, with a
growth rate of approximately 18.0%. Thus, the Group will integrate
with Nova to establish the platform for growth of esports segment,

especially focus on the huge esports market.

The revenue from esports business for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$13,537,000 (2019: Nil).
The segment loss for the reporting period was approximately
HK$11,163,000 (2019: Nil).
depreciation and amortisation for the reporting period was
approximately HK$8,485,000 (2019:Nil).

The losses before interest, tax,

Game publishing business

The revenue from game publishing business for the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$23,056,000 (2019:
HK$44,029,000) representing a decrease of approximately
HK$20,973,000 as compared with last year. The segment loss for
the reporting period was approximately HK$45,960,000 (2019:
approximately HK$71,434,000). The reduction was mainly due to
the results from games launched in 2020 is below our expectations
and delayed launch of products schedule. The losses before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation for the reporting period
was approximately HK$34,597,000 (2019: HK$69,904,000).

According to the marketing report issued by NewZoo, total revenue
for mobile game is round USD77.2 billion in 2020, with a growth
rate of approximately 13.3%. In 2023, it expects to break USD100
billion. In 2020, the total number of smartphone users worldwide
will reach 3.5 billion, with a growth rate of approximately 6.7%. In
2023, there will be 4.1 billion smartphone users. Among all active
smartphones, 199.7 million users can connect to 5G network in
2020, with a growth rate of approximately 1,214.7%. Due to above
factors, the management is still positive on the outlook for this

segment.

The Group will expand into on the fast growing PRC gaming market
and partner with major gaming companies to enhance its product
portfolio and quality. And will be more emphasis on enhancing the
effectiveness of online marketing activities for future products.

BEEENWR DT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

Household products business

The revenue from household products business for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$145,453,000
(2019: HK$182,180,000), representing a decrease of 20.2% as
compared with last year. During the year, the Group has terminated
the business relationship with the major customer, as unilaterally
demanded by major customer for the enhancement of the existing
production facilities of household products business, including
investments in automation, other production equipment and
environmental protection facilities. Also, the market demand has
decreased due to the growing tension between China and the U.S.
and outbreak of COVID-19. The gross profit margin decreased
to approximately 7.8% (2019: 8.4%). The segment loss for the
reporting period was approximately HK$6,880,000 (HK$1,460,000).
To mediate the impact of possible disruption to the termination
of relationship with major customer, the Group has sourced new
domestic customers and explores trading business to sustain the
operations.

Property investment business

The Group’s revenue from property investment business during
the reporting period was approximately HK$1,402,000 (2019:
HK$1,463,000). The segment loss was approximately HK$101,000
(2019: segment profit of approximately HK$1,822,000), mainly
due to fair value loss on investment property which is non cash in
nature.

Money lending business

The Group’s money lending business continued to provide stable
income through its existing customer base. The Group’s revenue
from the money lending business during the reporting period was
approximately HK$2,916,000 (2019: HK$5,264,000) while the
segment loss was approximately HK$518,000 (2019: approximately
HK$4,088,000), mainly due to impairment loss on loan receivables
and interest receivables for approximately HK$1,300,000 (2019:
HK$6,976,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reported
a revenue of approximately HK$186,364,000 (2019: approximately
HK$233,567,000), representing a decrease of 20.2% from that of
the fiscal year of 2019. The decrease in revenue is mainly due to
decrease of revenue from household products business in the PRC
and game publishing business.

Gross profit margin decreased from 9.1% in 2019 to 5.6% in 2020
due to low profit margin for game publishing business during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Other income increased from approximately HK$5,889,000 in 2019
to approximately HK$11,371,000 in 2020, mainly due to increase
in government grant, gain on disposal of intangible assets and
reversal of written off of other receivables.

Distribution costs decreased from approximately HK$26,543,000
in 2019 to approximately HK$8,750,000 in 2020 due to decrease in
marketing expenses for new game publishing business.

Administrative expenses increased from approximately
HK$55,962,000 in 2019 to approximately HK$63,245,000 in 2020,
mainly due to increase in staff costs, amortisation of intangible
assets and legal and professional fee.

Other operating expenses increased from approximately
HK$13,428,000 in 2019 to approximately HK$19,604,000 in 2020,
mainly due to impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill
and provision of staff economic compensation.

Finance costs increased from approximately HK$3,616,000 in 2019
to approximately HK$7,945,000 in 2020, attributable to the increase
in loan from related parties during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Income tax expense decreased from approximately HK$3,262,000
in 2019 to approximately HK$888,000 in 2020, mainly due to
decrease of assessable profit of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2020,
balances of approximately HK$55,149,000 (2019: approximately
HK$56,962,000) and net current liabilities of approximately
HK$69,864,000 (net current assets of 2019: approximately
HK$30,092,000), the increase in net current liabilities is mainly due
to decrease in inventories and trade receivable and increase in due

the Group had cash and bank

to related companies and other payables and accruals. Excluding
current portion of the loan from related parties of approximately
HK$106,000,000, there was resulted in net current assets of
approximately HK$36,136,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current liabilities
of approximately HK$197,827,000 (2019: approximately
HK$108,657,000). The increase in current liabilities was mainly due
to the increase in loan from related parties, other payables and
accruals. Excluding current portion of loan from related parties of
approximately HK$106,000,000, current liabilities decreased to
approximately HK$91,827,000.

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$41,416,000). The Group’s bank borrowings
carried interests at fixed rate. The Group had loan from related
parties of approximately HK$169,328,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: approximately HK$93,328,000). The loan from related parties
carried interest at fixed rate and repayable within three years.

As at 31 December 2020, two of the Group’s related companies
owned by the ultimate controlling party of the Company agreed
to renew and not to demand for repayment for the borrowing
amounting to approximately HK$169,328,000 for at least the next
twelve months.

On 26 March 2021,
controlling party of the Company and the ultimate controlling

a related company owned by the ultimate

party of the Company committed to provide loan facilities to
approximately HK$50,000,000 and HK$40,000,000 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 12 April 2021, the Company entered into the placing agreement
with the placing agent, pursuant to which the placing agent has
conditionally agreed, as agent of the Company, to procure on a
best effort basis currently expected to be not less than six placees
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be Independent
third parties to subscribe for up to 25,000,000 placing shares
at the placing price of HK$5 per placing share. Assuming all the
placing shares are fully placed, the gross proceeds from the
placing will be approximately HK$125 million. The net proceeds,
after deduction of all relevant expenses (including but not limited to
placing commission, legal expenses and disbursements) incidental
to the placing of approximately HK$3.3 million, are estimated to be
approximately HK$121.7 million. Details of the transaction has been
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 April
2021.

Nevertheless, the Group will further seek for other financial
resources as alternative means to meet working capital
requirement.

BANK BORROWINGS

No bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$41,416,000)
were secured by corporate guarantee given by a related company.

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, which was derived from the total bank
borrowings and loan from related companies to total assets,
increased from 59.7% in 2019 to 75.7% in 2020, as a result of the
increase in long-term loan from related parties.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material capital
commitments (2019: approximately HK$11,393,000), attributable
to acquisition of licensing right and other video material of online
game.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contingent liabilities
amounted approximately HK$5,970,000 for the economic
compensation payable by the subsidiary in accordance with the
relevant labour law for the PRC (2019: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWMNEDIT

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 March 2021, an indirect subsidiary of the Company (the
“Purchaser”), entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
vendor principally engaged in the provision of cloud computing
and data storage services (the “Vendor”), pursuant to which the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, the equipment which mainly
consist of 100 units of PowerEdge R7515 server, storage facilities
of 8P and auxiliary parts, which enables the Group to provide
cloud computing and data storage services to its customers, at
the consideration of RMB19,421,030 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,111,026). Details of the transaction has been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 March 2021.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

All transactions of the Group are denominated in RMB, HKD,
and USD, MYR, SGD and THB. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk with respect to the fluctuation of RMB which may
affect the Group’s performance and assets. The Group has not
entered into any derivative contract to hedge against the risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed approximately 239
staffs. The Group’s remuneration to employees, including Directors’
emoluments, decreased by approximately HK$5,002,000 to
approximately HK$61,749,000 for the fiscal year of 2020.

The Group reviews employee remuneration annually and rewards
its employees with reference to the length of services and
performance. The Group also has the liberty to grant share options
and bonuses to employees of the Group at the discretion of the
Directors based on the financial performance of the Group.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

1 2 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PROSPECTS

To maximize returns to the shareholders, we would focus on cost
saving measures and adopt more flexible structure to meeting the
challenges in a rapidly changing economic environment. We will
evaluate the business operations and financial position of the Group
from time to time and also consider whether any restructuring
and/or integration of the existing businesses of the Group will be
appropriate in order to enhance long-term growth potential of
the Company including but not limited to blockchain technology
applications and cloud operation services. To better position of the
game business, we are broadening our product range to console
games and exploring possible expansion to the lubricant PRC
market.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEZHHARERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, aged 46, who has been appointed as an
executive Director and the chairman of the board of directors on 21
September 2012 and 5 October 2012 respectively. Mr. Cheng is
the chairman of the board of directors and executive director of Sun
International Group Limited (stock code: 8029) (“Sun International”),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from 5 July
2013. Mr. Cheng’s wife, Ms. Yeung So Mui is an executive Director
of the Company.

Ms. Yeung So Mui, aged 45, who has been appointed as an
executive Director and vice chairlady of the board of directors
on 1 September 2016. Ms. Yeung is the founder and a director
of Sparkle Life Charity Fund Limited. Ms. Yeung was appointed
as a director of Yan Oi Tong Limited on 1 April 2013. Ms. Yeung
is experienced in corporate management. Ms. Yeung was an
executive director of Suncity Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1383), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
from 5 October 2010 to 20 July 2017.

Mr. Luk Wai Keung, aged 56, obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the Australian Graduate School of
Management of the University of New South Wales and a Bachelor
of Science in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and a Chartered Financial Analyst at
the Association for Investment Management and Research. Mr.
Luk has over 18 years of experience in the accounting and finance
area. He worked for an international accounting firm and held
senior positions in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong.
Immediately before joining the Company, Mr. Luk served Fu Shou
Yuan International Group Limited (Stock Code: 1448), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from November
2013 to April 2015 as its chief financial officer. He was the chief
financial officer of Larry Jewelry International Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8351), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange from July 2011 to October 2013. Mr.
Luk was being an executive director of Sun International from 2
December 2015 to July 2016 and from February 2015 to June 2020
he was an independent non- executive Director of Suchuang Gas
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1430), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Tze Wa, aged 64. He is a certified public accountant
and a director of an accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Fung has
various years of experience in auditing, taxation and company
secretarial practice in Hong Kong. He obtained a master degree in
professional accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2000. He is a member of the HKICPA, the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and
the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He has also been
appointed as the independent non- executive director of Citychamp
Watch & Jewellery Group Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Island with limited liability and the issued shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
0256), since April 2004 and from September 2004 to September
2015, he was an independent non-executive director of Jiwa Bio-
Pharm Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and the issued shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2327).
From April 2004 to February 2012, he was an independent non-
executive director of New Capital International Investment Limited,
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1062). Since January 2017, he
was an independent non- executive director of Freeman Fintech
Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and the issued shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 279). Since
May 2018, he was an independent non-executive director of Shen
Yuan Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Bermuda
with limited liability and the issued shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 851).

Mr. Ting Wong Kacee, aged 45. He holds a Master of Laws and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University of Hong Kong.
He is currently a member of The Hong Kong Bar Association. He
is interested in various issues of social concerns and he has been
an active pro bono adviser in the last 10 years. In 2020, the Chief
Executive of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region has awarded
the honour of Chief Executive’'s Commendation Public Service to
him in recognition of his contribution to the society.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSNEBEABZFABE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Ting Kwan, aged 45. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Business Administration. He is currently a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the HKICPA. Mr. Tse has over 10 years of experience
in auditing, finance and accounting. From December 2006 to
September 2020, he was the financial controller of Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and the issued shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0681). Since
September 2015, he was an independent non-executive director of
Thelloy Development Group Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability and the issued shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1546).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Li Tingting, holds a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language
studies from Shandong Normal University. Ms. Li has been serving
as the chief executive officer of & ¥ & )N & B B A R AT (Wanhui
Suzhou Digital Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Wanhui Suzhou”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since September
2020 Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li was employed by 1t 5 8 %

TEHE AR QG EMD RF (Beiing Changyou Space-Time
Software Technology Company Limited Fuzhou Branch®), a
company principally engaged in the operation of an online games’
platform and publishing of online games business, from 2003 to
2013 with her last position as the general manager of the sales
department. She served as the vice president of &M B & & 217
428 2] B BR 2 &) (Guangzhou Okidea Marketing Planning Company
Limited*) from May 2014 to July 2016 and was mainly responsible
for the online game advertising agency business and media
relations. She has been serving as the chief operating officer of &
BREPERFAR AT (Fujian Tianshang Network Technology
Company Limited*) since July 2016 and is mainly responsible for
media operations and advertising for virtual reality games. She is
the founder of the esports team YQLE #2445 (YQL Esports
Club*) in July 2017. Ms. Li has extensive experience in the online
games industry, block chain technology applications and cloud
operation services.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Hang Sze, was appointed as chief operating officer of Seven
Senses Game Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. He has over 20 years’ experience in game industry. He
previously worked in various game companies including Gameone
Group Limited, Funtwon Hong Kong Limited and Gamania Digital
Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd.. Afterward, he joined a telecom
company in Hong Kong, namely PCCW and was in charge of the
game department. He has experiences in management, business
development, operation and marketing, etc., with business
network in the PRC, Japan, Korea, Taiwan and Southeast Asia. He
previously used two months to set up operation and localisation
team in Taiwan, and the team released two games in Chinese
version, both were developed by Japanese developers which
then had great success. He also helped to set up game operation
teams in Indonesia and released a mobile app platform with over
10 thousand applications. He was also the co-producer with
Shanghai Juduo (L8 A% M@BE BB AR for their strategic
football mobile game “Realtime Eleven”. He worked with business
partners, including Microsoft, Baidu, Beijing Kunlun Tech Co., Ltd.,
International Games System Co., Ltd. (IGS) and Chinese Gamer
International Corporation, etc. He also launched various MMORPG,
casino, music, soccer and puzzle games. One of the games,
“Championship Football Manager” was ranked top 10 in both App
Store for iOS and Google Play Store.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSNEBEABZFABE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Hung Wen, was appointed as deputy general manager
of Seven Senses Game Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company since August 2017. He has over 20
years experience in game operation, marketing, media, content
channels, etc. Joined Soft-world in 2004, and in charge of RO,
World of Warcraft online game marketing. Chen Hung Wen and his
team worked closely with the developer in localizing the game to fit
market needs, and it was a huge success. They have built “World
of Warcraft” official website, and published “World of Warcraft”
newsletter online, used online media to create massive exposure.
Made full use of online ads, forum discussions, create online hit
topics, manage game guilds and community, making “World of
Warcraft” a constantly discussed topic online and soon became
the biggest MMORPG game in the market. In 2006, Chen Hung
Wen was promoted to team leader of World of Warcraft operation
team, he was in charge of operation, community promotion and
esport marketing, etc. He was then given the great challenge to
grow the user base of the game, therefore he made many changes
in operating the game and manage to break the highest online
record in his first year as team leader. In November 2008, the team
brought in the 3.0 version of the game, and they broke the top user
online record again. In 2014, Chen Hung Wen leads the team to
handle NBA 2K online game operation, which allowed him to work
with various big names in the global game industry. He is in charge
of Taiwan operation team.

Ip Ka Ki, was appointed as the company secretary with effect
from 31 March 2017. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from the Lingnan
University in 2003. He is @ member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. He has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Since December 2017, he was
an independent non-executive director of Vicon Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3878).
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The Board are pleased to present their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 19 January 2005 under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of financial position of this annual report respectively.

The Board do not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 41(b) to the financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution amounted to approximately HK$42,967,000. Under
the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. The share premium may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

BEYE
AEBFREEVENEDFBI R HRERN
19 o

[}
ARARFARAMNEHFBHAMBERE
B 5¥38 o

FEEFRHER

REMBFERN T2EPRHEEHSIMEAE
EHEEMKBENEHNT

Percentage of the Group’s
total Sales/Purchases

EREEHEE
RBHEEEI L
The largest customer BAEF 64.5%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAE 83.5%
The largest supplier SN ] 19.0%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AABEEAEE 59.9%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
of the Company (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5.0% of the share capital of the Company) has any
beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Ting Kong (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung So Mui

Mr. Luk Wai Keung

Mr. Leung Kwok Yin (resigned on 7 April 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fung Tze Wa
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee
Mr. Tse Ting Kwan
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 14 to
page 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
ROTATION

The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by
rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association. All of the
independent non-executive Directors has entered a service contract
with the Company for a term of 3 years and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and the Corporate Government Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, Ms. Yeung So Mui, and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM”).

Mr. Luk Wai Keung has entered a service contract with the
Company, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has
entered or has proposed to enter into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or
determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 12 to financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of their independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the Board and
the Nomination Committee considered that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”))
(the “Associated Corporations”) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352

EERAQAREMRBEZENRAD - A
BARORBEZPHEZRKE

i $_f¢+*ﬁi+*5'§$%$"ﬁﬁiﬁ
TARABEZB(EERELSLBERITES R
H & & H JJ)%XV*B)(WH BOXE DB B - H R
0 & 1%5 THRAREESFRMERMEXVEET?
K 5587 & i 78 & & AN X 7] K Bk 2 P B HE 2 KoK
F(@%T&#@Tﬁ %&Hﬂiﬂlﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂyﬁx%ﬁ

EFIWERBEENEDZIARR) IRBEEFNR
HHiﬂbMﬁ'J?ﬁSSQﬂMK’AT,,\%T_Eﬁﬁyiuﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁpﬁﬁ*
SRBELTETAEFTETELFRSNFEESTRI

of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock  ([1Z %<7 Bl ) 78 & A RQ 7 & B 32 BT 89 1 28 & o4&
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions & 01F :
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
Number of shares
o EE
Percentage
of aggregate
interests to
total number
Personal Family Corporate of shares
Name of Director interests interests Interests Total in issue?
i B 1
2RITRS
EENR 8 A= RikfER AEE @ mEy HBEzEDLES
Mr. Cheng Ting Kong — — 214,428,4882 (L) 214,428,488 (L)' 74.66%
BT B A
Ms. Yeung So Mui — — 214,428,488% (L) 214,428,488 (L) 74.66%
HBEEZ T
Notes: B 5 -
1. The letter “L” represents the Director’s interests in the Shares and underlying 1. FRILIRKREZHAAT S EBEER MR D RAEE
Shares or, as the case may be, the equity interest of the Company or its sk G B R E) RIEMN R -
associated corporations.
2. This represents interests held by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong through Diamond 2. I R B8 T 7 5t 4 i #8 Diamond State Holdings Limited
State Holdings Limited (“Diamond State”), which holds 214,428,488 shares of ([Diamond State] * £ 3% & & A 7214,428,488% % 1)
the Company. Mr. Cheng Ting Kong has 100% interest in Diamond State, he AR o BT 8 % £ % A Diamond State 100% 1
is therefore deemed to be interested in 214,428,488 shares of the Company. = E UL B AR B R A R F214,428,4881% B 15
G o
3. Ms. Yeung So Mui is the spouse of Mr. Cheng. Ms. Yeung So Mui is deemed 3. BEBLZLADEENRB REZFHFNMPEKLE
to be interested in all the shares held by Diamond State Under Part XV of the XVE - 15 & 18 & 4748 & Diamond Statei¥ B W ETH
SFO. Mty R R Es o
4. The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of 4. AHERBRZZEZZEF+ZA=+—HARAD %

the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 287,206,000 shares).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
Associated Corporations which had been entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significant to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year under review or any time during the year under review save
and except for the transactions disclosed as connected and/or
related party transactions in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, (i) is a director and a beneficial owner of Sun Finance
Company Limited (“SFCL”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and a licensed money lender engaged in money lending business
under the MLO; and (ii) is a director and a substantial shareholder
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of Sun International which
engages in money lending business through its subsidiary, Sun
International Credit Limited (“SICL”),
Hong Kong and a licensed money lender under MLO.

a company incorporated in

SFCL and SICL competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

The Board considers that, having considered the facts that:

(i) Mr. Cheng is fully aware of his fiduciary duty to the Group
and he will abstain from voting on any matter when there is
or may be a conflict of interest;

(if) The Group is a capable of, and does carry on its business
independently of, and on an arm’s length basis with the
competing business of SFCL and SIRL;
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(iii) An executive committee will be informed to ensure business
opportunities and the performance of Best Gold Corporation
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company will be
independently assessed and reviewed from time to time;

(iv) Mr. Cheng will abstain from voting on any matter where there
is or may be a conflict of interest in accordance with the
requirements of the articles of association of the Company;
and

(v) Mr. Cheng will allow Best Gold Corporation Limited to remain
as an independent operating entity with its own management
team and distribution network and will not involve in its daily
management.

Since (i) all the major and important corporate actions of the
Company are and will be fully deliberated and determined by the
Board; and (i) any director(s) who is/are or deemed to be interested
in any proposed transaction(s) will have his/their interest fully
disclosed and will abstain from voting at the relevant resolution(s)
in accordance with the applicable requirements of the articles of
association of the Company, the Board is of the view that each
of the Relevant Directors does not, by himself or in an individual
capacity, competes with the Company and/or the business of the
Group. The Group’s interest is adequately safeguarded.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

Except of the above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors, the management shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or the substantial shareholders of the Company, or any
of their respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the businesses of the Group or has
any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency
of public float of the Company’s securities as required under the
Listing Rules up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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SHARE OPTION

On 26 November 2008, the Company adopted the existing share
option scheme (the “Existing Option Scheme”), which was valid and
effective for a period of ten years from its date of adoption. The
Existing Share Option Scheme was expired on 25 November 2018.

As at 31 December 2020, there are 6,980,000 share options were
granted under the Existing Option Scheme which 1,000,000 options
were cancelled and 5,980,000 options were lapsed during the year.

On 29 June 2018, a resolution was passed in the 2018 annual
general meeting of the Company to adopt a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”).

The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has granted the
listing of, and permission to deal in the shares of the Company
which may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options
which was granted and/or may be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme subsequently.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the New Share
Option Scheme.

New Share Option Scheme
Purpose

To provide an incentive or a reward to eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

Participants

Eligible participants include:

Any directors or employees, consultants and/or advisers, the
eligible participants also include any business or joint venture
partners, contractors, agents or representatives, suppliers,
producers or licensors, licensees (including sub-licensee) or
distributors, of the Group or any person who, in the sole discretion

of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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Exercise price

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher of:

(@) the closing price of (1) one share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets at the offer date, which
must be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of (1) one share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the (5) five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value of the share on the offer date, provided
that in case of fractional prices, the exercise price per share
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cents.

Total number of shares available for issue and
the percentage of the issued share capital that it
represents as at the date of this interim report

28,720,600 shares, being approximately 10% of the issued shares
of the Company.
Maximum entitlement of each participant

Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up
under the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance

HK$1.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.
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Remaining life of the scheme BB T FH

The scheme will be valid and effective until 28 June 2028, after FIEIEREE_ZT-/N\FAAZTN\BEBRLER
which no further options will be granted but the provisions of the I8 # ~& % LT (A EERHE - BT 8| 216 TR AT
scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects. BHM T EEHZF TR R I RBER - Ret2I R
Options complying with the provisions of the Listing Rules which HHAREBEE_Z-_NF XA+ N\BHANXE
are granted during the duration of the scheme and remain f7{#{2 f”AJ:m%EE'JﬂmXZB%HX% 1 AT 48 B AR
unexercised immediately prior to 28 June 2028 shall continue to be EHREZEEBIERFTUITHE  BEAF S ZHREE
exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant, notwithstanding @& °

the expiry of the scheme.

Employees and other eligible participants EERAEMEEZKRSHAL
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share REZE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HBLHEAR &AQ
options during the periods ended 31 December 2020: AIBRESEHZ2MMNT
Number of share options
BREHR
Lapsed/
Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled
Exercise Exercisable at during the during the during the Outstanding at
Name Date of grant price period 1.1.2020 period period period 31.12.2020
gl 3::3 R=2-%%
-A-H Br%¥/ +=B=+-B
#E REAH TRE &8 R AT BARL BRfTR B ESE:d
HKS
BT
Executive director
HiES
Luk Wai Keung 23.5.2018 514 23.5.2018- 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
22.5.2022
EEE% 2\ —E-N\E
FA-F=H RLAZT=HZE
—E-CF
LAZ+ZH
Consultants
B
(in aggregate) 235.2018 514 2352018 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000) -
22.5.2022
(@3h) —E-N\F —E-N\F
TA-1+=H ﬁﬂ +=ZHZ2
BA=T=H
(in aggregate) 235.2018 514 2311.2018- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000) -
22.5.2022
(@3h) —E-N\F —Z-\E+-A
nA=t+=AH —t=A%
BA=T=H
(in aggregate) 235.2018 514 235.2019- 1,980,000 - - (1,980,000) -
22.5.2022
(@3h) —E-N\F ZE-NELA
nA=t+=AH —t=A%
“T-CFRA
—+ZH
6,980,000 - - (6,980,000) -
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The estimated fair value of the share options granted under the
Scheme on 26 November 2008 was approximately HK$14,939,000,
calculated using the Binomial Model (the “Model”). The inputs into
the Model were as follows:

ZENF+—AZ+ A BREFEMAELE
HE QR EL A14,939,000 7T 0 Jh R H
SR DEE - BRI EMT

=l
Mo

Share options with an
exercisable period from
23.5.2018 to 22.5.2022
BREZTESH
—E-N\FHEA=Z+=HZE
—E-ZZHFHRABA=+=H

Share price at date of grant PR AR (E
Exercise price TiE(E
Expected volatility (per annum) T8 Hf R & (5 )
Expected life of share options AR TE HE & Hi
Expected dividend yield TEHAR B K
Risk-free rate 1 [, fx 1| 22

Fair value of share option EREZALE

Fair values of the share options were with reference to the valuation
carried out by an independent firm of professional valuers.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The risk free interest rate was estimated based on the yield of
5-year exchange fund note issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority as of the grant date.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

The Group recognises the total expense of approximately
HK$923,000 for the period ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$3,167,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

HK$4.91% 7T
HK$5.147% T
65.50%

4 years
0%

214%
HK$2.147%8 7T
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group maintains a mandatory provident fund (“MPF Scheme”)
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s and
employee’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on 5%
of the relevant income of the relevant employee (up to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000) and in accordance with the
requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and related regulations.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes (“Schemes”) organised by the relevant local government
authorities in Yuyao, the PRC whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at the rate of 26% of the
eligible employees’ salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

The Group has defined benefit obligations arising from one of its
subsidiaries, Cubinet (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Details of which are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statement.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to requirements of the Listing
Rules. Other transactions which exempted from the requirements
of the Listing Rule are also disclosed in note 47 to the financial
statements as related party transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.
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AUDITOR

As the Company’s last AGM, RSM Hong Kong was reappointed
as auditor of the Company. A resolution to re-appoint the retiring
auditors, RSM Hong Kong, will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM. There has been no change of the Company’s auditors since
its incorporation.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Ting Kong
Chairman

29 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

The Group is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance and business practices. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on the principles and the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”), amended from time to time, contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. As far as the CG Code is concerned, during
the year and up to the date of this announcement, the Company
complies with all aspect of the Code Provisions except disclosed
below:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The role of chief executive officer
was shared among the members of the Board during the reporting
period. There is no time schedule to change this structure, as
the Directors consider that this structure provides the Group with
consistent leadership in the Company’s decision making process
and operational efficiency. The Board shall review this arrangement
from time to time to ensure appropriate and timely action is taken
to meet changing circumstances.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have fully
complied with the required standard set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2020.

THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors and is
responsible for oversight of the management of the Company’s
business and affairs. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the executive Directors and senior management of
the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised of seven members,
namely the Chairman and three other executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors (the biographies of the
Directors are set out on page 14 to page 16).

The Board considers that its diversity, including gender diversity, is
a vital asset to the business. The Board adopted a Board diversity
policy for better transparency and governance. Board appointments
are based on merit and candidates are considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and the
overall management of the Group. The Board also monitors the
financial performance and internal controls of the Group. The
Board members have a broad access to business documents and
information about the Group. Three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. The Board meets regularly to review the
financial and operating performance of the Group and to approve
future plans and development.

32 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

ESETREXS
AEEERABRETRAUMBE T EBESET
ELEXPWMBRTTH - BFLABERE 26

EENBE_T_EFT_A=1TBHLFE—
BEEMEESTETARRMEETAEREER -

=

ETCeMALERERER  AORIERITES
MEKRTBTE TAEEEAAREBRER
MER ZESCCEBARARNTESESATE
BERBTHEEMT -

R-ZF-_TF+_A=T—H EFEHLEKE
MK BRIE —REMRTEER =28
HNTER(BEEZRERERARNFI4AEE6H)

EFxeRh HEaBEMENZ T B ER
ﬁaﬁ$£§§°%%Mﬁ%E&Mﬁ%ﬁ'+
EECRMEFEEITEBRR -ERNDEEES
EZTLBEEETRRUERN - Fik  LERHE
R EK EXRER - K ABRITHEFR)
M) 4F BR 1R hﬁfﬂA?z rEEEEKE M
REAKEREBFELEETEE -

EAEENRBEERNEEEE -EF
REEBNPFHRALANGES - EFS
EREMARENEBXMERER - =@
MEZZES FHREERESRZ
)EBT%%KEIEﬁ%HEW$%ﬁ&M°
% THERER ERAKENYKEREE
R URBBARNERERE

wmaﬁm
‘ﬂﬂﬂ i}lﬂ m Eﬁ‘%

WWHMQW@W
m@%mﬂ#%



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All the Directors have actively participated in the review and
monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board meets regularly
and at least 4 times a year. Between scheduled meetings,
the senior management of the Group provides information to
the Directors on a regular basis regarding the activities and
development in the businesses of the Group. The Directors have full
access to information on the Group and independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will
be given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance
and an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than 3 days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting. All minutes
of Board and Board committee meetings are kept by the company
secretary to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Board committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by any Director.
These minutes are available for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a total number of
seven (7) Board meetings, three (3) Audit Committee meetings,
one (1) Remuneration Committee meeting and one (1) Nomination
Committee meeting were held. Minutes of these meetings are
kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open for
inspection by the Directors.

The Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide
separate appropriate independent professional advice to the
Directors to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all existing independent non-executive Directors and considers
them independent.

The Directors except for the independent non-executive Directors,
have no fixed terms of appointment but are subject to re- election
at the AGM of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
article of association.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this
report, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training course or
reading materials on the topics related to corporate governance
and regulations or the Company’s business or their duties and
responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

EEHA

REBETAGXFALSE  MEEFE2EFESR
XER G BRUBHEMBLIZE  ARFREHE
BEEABEEEARYAMBZERATHESS
EFHER BEEAREAHL FAEEHEBL
HEEREIEREEE ARMBARINFZIRE
SHBEBARAAEBXBREBELBEREERN
TAMBEGENRFESEERLD -

REBEE-FT-_FTHF+ A=+ BLFEREE
ERESEI 2@ SR T

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in
relation to the business
or directors’ duties

HEEEEREESREEABEZ
EEgE BERE HEMEBEER
Mr. Cheng Ting Kong BT AEEE Yes &
Ms. Yeung So Mui BEBZT Yes &
Mr. Luk Wai Keung B {2 58 5 A4 Yes ;2
Mr. Leung Kwok Yin 2EE A Yes =&
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BT ELE Yes =
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee TRREE Yes =
Mr. Tse Ting Kwan HEE L E Yes =
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EEHMBRERNET
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial EZEERBEANEZEMNEEERFEUALEE
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under AR @t HM A Eﬁi% ik BEEQAFHE@RAR
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a SBMHWEBRN LEXEENBELRE - NHEE

true and fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations
and cash flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020, suitable accounting
policies have been adopted and applied consistently. The financial
statements for the reporting year have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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The individual attendance records of each Director, on a REZEZZT-_ZTEF+-_A=+—HLFE ZEZF
named basis, at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, fERILEEEE  TBZRZE8E FHEESKiE
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee during the ZZE@RM @@L EAZEHWMT:

year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings entitled to attend

HEE/ ARLUEERNAY
Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting'
A Ezg ENZEE FHzEE REZBE RREFAE
Number of Meetings 8ENY 7 3 1 1 1
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Cheng Ting Kong BTARE 5/7 - - - 1/1
Ms. Yeung So Mui [CEYi3 5/7 - - - 0/1
Mr. Luk Wai Keung [tk 7 - - - 11
Mr. Leung Kwok Yin 2EBLE 0/7 - - - 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHNTEE
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFELE 1 3/3 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ting Wong Kacee TERE 77 33 1A 1 1
Mr. Tse Ting Kwan HEHEE 7 33 1A 1 1
Notes: B &
1. 2020 Annual General Meeting held on 19 June 2020. 1. —ECEFREBFRGNR_Z_ZTFATILBALRIT -
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMZEES

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring that the ¥ HMZECEBEMRARAIBERARBERANEF
Company has formal and transparent procedures for developing ?XJ:&&%%EI\%$& BEBENHMEK - &
and overseeing its policies on the remuneration of the Directorsand B & WMENEBEEE@EI B - FHEZE S H U
senior management. The committee’s authorities and duties are TFT=%ZK B(2 BT IERNITESE) AR

set out in written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee

comprises the following three members, all independent non-

executive Directors:

() Mr. Ting Wong Kacee, Chairman of Remuneration Committee (i) TR E FTHEZEESXRE

(ii) Mr. Fung Tze Wa (ii) BFELE
(i) Mr. Tse Ting Kwan (iy  #MEHEE
FEEERRERERAT 2020 ¥
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in
compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Given below are main
duties of the Remuneration Committee:

(i) to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

(if) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, and to make recommendations on the
remuneration of the non-executive Directors for the Board’s
approval;

(iii) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive Directors by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv) to administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company’s share option scheme.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises the following three
members, all independent non-executive Directors:

(i) Mr. Fung Tze Wa, Chairman of Audit Committee

(if) Mr. Ting Wong Kacee

(iii) Mr. Tse Ting Kwan

Given below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(i) to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Company’s external
auditor, and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process;

(if) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to

review significant and judgemental financial reporting issues
contained therein;
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(iii) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems; and

(iv) to discuss with the management the system of internal
controls, and to ensure that the management has discharged
its duties and responsibilities in implementing an effective
internal control system.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid/payable to
auditor of the Company, RSM Hong Kong, for the provision of audit
services and non-audit services as follows:

A\ e e,
ERERRE

(i) WMEARANMBHEE  AMEEMEAR
EERG N

vy HEEERAMEZERGETH®H L
REEERATERNABEZERGRE
BENMBEECDEET -

B AP B =

RBE_Z_ZF+_A=+—BILFE iz
HEAFRBEEBRARBEN A RRAZEK
FMERXEFMEBMZERNT:

2020 2019

. —FNF

Nature of services HK$ HK$
REME BT BT
Audit =g 900,000 1,020,000
Others EHAh 150,000 —
1,050,000 1,020,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee comprises the following three
members, all independent non-executive Directors:

(i) Mr. Tse Ting Kwan, Chairman of Nomination Committee

(if) Mr. Fung Tze Wa

(ifi) Mr. Ting Wong Kacee

Given below are main duties of the Nomination Committee:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (by taking into
account the criteria as set out in the Board diversity policy
adopted by the Company from time to time) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations any proposed

changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;
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(if) to review the Board diversity policy regularly (including
any measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board diversity policy and the progress
on achieving those objectives); and make disclosure of its
review results in the corporate governance report of the
Company annually;

(iii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(v) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the president (chief executive officer).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system in order to protect the
Group’s assets and shareholder’s interests. The risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are implemented to
minimize risks to which the Group is exposed. The systems can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
misstatements or losses.

The internal control system includes a well established
corporate structure and organisation with clearly defined lines
of responsibility and authority. Each department is responsible
for its daily operations, and is also required to implement and
monitor the strategies and polices adopted by the Board and
effective employment of the resources of the Company, in order
to avoid misappropriation of resources and damages made to the
Company’s assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.

The risk management framework includes identify significant risk
in the Group’s operation environment and evaluate the impact of
those risks on the Group’s business, develop necessary measure
to manage those risks and monitor and review the effectiveness of
such measures.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The Board and management, with the assistance of the external

consultants, are responsible for designing, implementing and

monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant

risks by the Group are summarized as follows:

Risk identification

Identifies the risk through discussion with the management
and directors of subsidiaries of the Company. Risk
identification and management questionnaire are used
to document the risks identified by the management and
directors of subsidiaries of the Company.

Risk Response

Categories the risks into low risk, medium and high risk;
Determines the strategy to handle the risk; and
Develops the risk register and internal control audit plan and

determines the frequency of review and control testing on
key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

On-going communication of monitoring results to the Board
which enables it to assess control the Group and the
effectiveness of risk management during the Year;

risk questionnaires completed by the management, risk
register and internal control audit plan; and

fact finding report with recommendations on the review and
testing of internal control on certain operating cycles and
areas.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the
management of the Company, including analyzing and appraising
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. For the enhancement of the quality of
the internal audit, the Company has engaged an external consultant
to execute a certain scope of internal audit function to:

° facilitate the management’s process to perform the risk
assessment and evaluation; and

° conduct various agreed upon reviews on certain selected
operating cycles and areas in accordance with the
Company’s internal control audit plan.

During the year, the Board conducted an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were adequate and
effective during the year.

INSIDER INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is fully aware
of its obligations under the new Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 and the Listing Rules. The Board
has adopted a policy which contains the guideline to the Directors
and officers of the Company to ensure that the inside information of
the Company is to be disseminated to public in an equal and timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Ip has received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh his
skills and knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Details of the Last General Meetings

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. Under Revised Code
Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the shareholders.

Convening a Special General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, a special general meeting may be convened by the
Board upon requisition by any shareholder holding not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. The shareholder shall
make a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company, specifying the transaction of any business in such
requisition.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to the Article 59 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Company shall serve requisite notice of the general meeting,
including the time, place of meeting and particulars of resolutions
to be considered at the meeting and the general nature of the
business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner,
and; all the reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

A\ e e,
ERERRE

BREREMURERRBBERREERE

REBMZBRRREFHE

ARBIBERBAFAENEFTEREARRBEL
BEHRE  REBEEETTNRIXFEALTE B
FRTEZTELHERRAGRGGTHERER

HERREMKRREI KRS

REARFNEBERAAUFSG  EFEAR
FAEEARARABRRAGLERERZARAM
RBAT DR+ 02— 0 BRR ERE KRR
ARG - FERRARNARAEZTGARAWE
BHEEER NEEABERFEANTME
I8 o

EFEeRRPRZEBEREMQEARNRITX
Ag - REARFNAMERE AR EM%E - A
AEFLERRAGEN  ERERAENEHE -
WHEHRREBEARBROFBEARZFTEN K
HHE -

MR ZEEER -+ —RNEREEERAAR
AZBERBIAE  ZEBATETEARAS
ARARIEAEREIFIABNEEFTEREAMAK
emMBEXNZ—AEERM -

FEEBRREZRERDE)

2020 %% 41



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A\ e g,
ERER/RE

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company at the head office address
of the Company, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/business and its supporting documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s head office in Hong Kong
at Room 02, 26/F., One Harbour Square, No. 181 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company ensures that fair and transparent disclosure is
made for its business and financial performance through a
variety of formal communication channels. Information regarding
the Company will be published in its website: www.776.hk.
Interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the Group
will be despatched to Shareholders in due course. The website
of the Company provides information such as e-mail address,
correspondence address, telephone numbers etc. for inquiries, and
provides information on business activities of the Company.

The Company’s AGM of Shareholders is a good opportunity for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Notice of
AGM and related documents will be sent to Shareholders pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on
the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company will also meet with the investment community and
respond to their inquiries about the status of the Company from
time to time, so as to strengthen the contacts and communication
between the Company and its investors.
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1.2.

1.3.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Our Report
Overview

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report is the
fourth report published consecutively by Imperium Group
Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”). It systematically reviews
the Group’s issues and inadequacies in fulfilling its social
responsibilities and formulating a sustainable development
strategy. We strongly believe that summarising and
disclosing to the stakeholders the Group’s performance
can improve our transparency and further enhance the

sustainable development performance.

This report provides information on the corporate social
responsibility performance of the Group in terms of
environment, society and governance during the year from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. This report is in
compliance with the “comply or explain” provisions of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide and
contains all disclosures as recommended in the Guide.

Scope of Reporting

The scope of this Report includes all areas of the Group’s
business over which the Group has financial significance and
operational influence, as well as those of ESG significance
this
environmental, social and governance report mainly covers

to the Group and its stakeholders. Therefore,

our core business, i.e. our subsidiary JF A.C.R. Equipment
Supplies Co., Ltd. which located in Ningbo, Zhejiang
Province, and the mobile game business, 7 Senses Group
in Hong Kong and Taiwan. Unless otherwise indicated, all
key performance indicators herein only cover the data of our

household furnishings business and online game business.

Feedback Mechanism

This report is prepared mainly in accordance with the
Group’s internal statistics, various archive documents and
estimations. Should you have any feedback on this report,
please send an email to ir@776.hk so that we can further
improve our policies in relation to sustainable development.
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2.

Our Business

Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited has been engaged
in manufacturing and selling household furnishings using
stainless steel as the main raw material since 1999. We
are committed to becoming one of the largest household
furnishings manufacturers in China. In order to diversify
risks, the Group has also invested in loan business, property
investment and mobile game business to generate long-term
recurrent returns for the Group.

At present, the Group‘s core business is the household
furnishings business. Our main production factory, located
in Ningbo, Zhejiang, China, produces over 100 types of
household furnishings, which can be divided into five main
categories, including rubbish bins, cabinet handles, kitchen
products and bathroom products. The Group has strong and
well-established capabilities in the production, design and
development of stainless steel household furnishings, and
hopes to become an internationally leading player in product
design, quality management and effective cost control.

In terms of loan business, we provide diversified financial
products including personal loans, housing mortgages, stock
mortgages, stock-pledged loans and corporate financing
to meet the financial needs of different customers. Our
professional team has rich industry experience and can fully
understand the needs of customers and provide customers
with tailor-made loan programs.

In terms of property investment business, the Company has
rental properties in both Hong Kong and the PRC, and has
renovated the properties in the PRC into a hotel in hope of
generating greater operating income for the Company.

In terms of online game business, the Company strives
to expand the business as mobile game market is a fast-
growing market in recent years. In order to develop the
online game business and lay the groundwork for expanding
the business, we have set up working teams in Hong Kong,
Taiwan and Southeast Asia so as to expand our business to
different markets and regions.
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Message from the Chairman

The Group firmly believes that our ability to grow, innovate
and prosper is linked to our ESG performance. We strive to
seise the opportunities arising from sustainable development
by embedding the concept of social responsibility into our
decision-making process and business operations.

Committed to improvement in operation management, the
Group provides employees with a sound employment system
and healthy and safe working environment with diversity and
inclusion. In addition, the Group is committed to resources
and emission management to ensure that resources are
effectively engaged and that emissions are safely discharged
after treatment. To ensure the product safety for consumers,
the Group is also dedicated to maintaining product-related
health and safety through establishing various procedures
for quality inspection.

Our business units have various sustainable development
principles integrated within their policies and operational
procedures. We endeavour to foster a sense of
environmental stewardship within the Group, and strive
to improve our sustainability performance and resource
efficiency through continuous development of various
training courses for improving staff quality.

As regulators and investors are increasingly concerned
about sustainability issues and related risks, the Group will
continue to review its internal sustainability governance
strategy and refine relevant policies and measures for the
future. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to strengthen
communication with stakeholders to further enhance its
environmental and social performance and create value for
our shareholders and stakeholders in the long run.
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4. Reporting Principles 4,

We have taken the following reporting principles into account
in development of this Report:

Materiality: We regularly engage our stakeholders
to better understand their concerns relating to
sustainability issues that affect them. We also make
regular reference to our peers and both local and
regional sustainability criteria when we review our
sustainability context, materiality and disclosures
in order to keep our sustainability priorities and
strategy relevant. Risk factors relating to material
sustainability issues are integrated into the Group’s
risk management framework. The Board and the
Management Board regularly review the sustainability
issues that are most significant to our business and
operations, and consider the issues discussed in this
Report to be material to the Group.

Quantitative: Our data collection and analysis for
the Report were based on relevant guidelines and
standards, such as ISO 14064 for our greenhouse
gas emissions and the guidelines issued by the
Government of HKSAR for energy and carbon audits
for our buildings.

Balance :Our report is prepared according to the
actual situation of the Group’s operation without
making false and biased opinions. We aim to keep the
critical aspects of our performance fairly disclosed,
both in terms of progress made and continuing
challenges that we are dealing with, to improve the
transparency.

Consistency:We have published this Report in
accordance with the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide
since 2017. In the event of any changes that may
affect the comparison with previous reports,
the Group has added annotations to the Report
accordingly.
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Engagement of Stakeholders

The Group believes that good corporate governance is
material to its long-term health. The Board of Directors
assumes the leadership and supervisory role of the Group,
and leads the Group to formulate and achieve long-term
strategies and goals.

Internal control and risk management

The Group has established the risk management and internal
control system. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
continued monitoring and review of its effectiveness. The
Board of Directors reviews the effectiveness of the system
through the Audit Committee and encompasses major
control measures, including controls on finance, operation
and compliance, and engages external independent
professionals to assist in identifying and assessing the risks
of the Group through interviews. The Board of Directors
believes that the internal control and risk management
system is effective and sufficient.

In response to the risks and opportunities of sustainable
development, the Group holds regular management
meetings to assess the ESG risks in various aspects of the
Group’s operations, and formulates relevant improvement
measures for manufacturing process, product quality,
working environment and resource allocation, based on the
identified risks.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to refine its
sustainability governance, intensify the functions of the
ESG task management, and enhance risk identification
and assessment, thus enabling the Group to deal with
sustainability issues more effectively and respond to
stakeholders’ expectations.

Data Source and Reliability Assurance

The data and information in this report are mainly from the
relevant documents, reports and statistics. The Board of
Imperium Group undertakes that this report contains no false
statements or misleading statements and is responsible for
the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of its contents.

Confirmation and Approval

The report was approved by the Board on 29 March 2021
upon confirmation by the management.
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6.

Engagement of Stakeholders

The Group

We work closely with our stakeholders on sustainability
and constantly engage with them regarding their views
on our sustainability actions and performance through
multiple channels and platforms including annual reports,
sustainability reports, surveys, regular dialogue and
meetings. We have arranged for management and staff
members from every department of the Company to review
our operating conditions at their functional level and identify
relevant ESG matters as well as to assess the importance
and relevance of such matters to our business.

Through the communication with stakeholders, we have
identified the following issues which are important to the
sustainable development of the Group. Those issues are
classified as the sustainable development focuses of the
Group.

Environmental Aspect

KO ESH

\
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Social Aspect

RIEFME HEHF@E

° Pollution Control ° Equal Employment

. V5 R AE o FERERE

° Making Good Use of Resources o Occupational Health and Safety
. ZRBIR . BEREEL S

° Promoting Green Operations ° Training and Development

. s eeE o BFilER

Based on such results, the Company will continuously
improve our ESG performance to meet the expectation of
stakeholders. In the future, the Group will continue and
expand stakeholder engagement to enhance the materiality
analysis, and will collect a diverse range of stakeholders’
views through various activities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

Performance

Environmental Prosperity
Management guidelines and policies

Sustainable development is our long-standing insistence
so as to push for low-carbon green means of production in
traditional industries, and for leading the Group’s sustainable
development, we have formulated a series of management
policies and measures to reduce direct emissions, effectively
utilise resources and enhance our ability to cope with climate
change. By doing so, we aim to avoid and minimise the risks
and impacts of the Company‘s operations and projects on
the environment, in an effort to create a sustainable future
for our next generation.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable environmental
laws and regulations. During the reporting period, there was
no case of prosecution against the Group for violation of
environmental laws.

Pollution Control
Countermeasures to climate change

The Group has established the Measures for the
Management of Exhaust Emissions to reduce the pollution of
the surrounding environment caused by exhaust emissions
during production. We arrange for the person in charge of
safety management to supervise the exhaust gas treatment
within the factory area and have the production department
take responsibility for the control exhaust gas generation
in each post as well as the inspection, maintenance and
management of exhaust gas emission and absorption
facilities. Every year, we identify carbon emission sources,
calculate and access carbon emissions, and review the
assessment results and set carbon reduction targets for the
coming year. On this basis, we develop relevant resource
management targets. In addition, the Group actively follows
the requirements of the HKEx for disclosure of greenhouse
gas emissions to calculate the total amount of greenhouse
gas emissions as comprehensively as possible.
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Case sharing — JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co.,
Ltd.

JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd. has developed a
carbon reduction mechanism in 2020, that is to ensure
damage and risks brought about by its productions to the
environment are mitigated, to reduce the consumption of
energy, raw materials and water in the major production
process, and to ensure compliance with all applicable
legal requirements. The factory has also developed an
Environmental Management System (EMS) in order to
facilitate enhancement and management of all goals and
policies on cutting emissions, and facilitate efficient use of
the available resources.

During the reporting period, the Group‘s total greenhouse
gas emissions were tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd.

Greenhouse gas emissions: 1,233.99
tC02%
Direct emission (Scope 1): 61.11
tC02
Energy indirect emission 1,172.88
(Scope 2); tC0O2
Greenhouse gas emission 316
intensity: tC0O2e per
employee

7 Senses Group
Greenhouse gas emissions: 064.47
tC02
Direct emission (Scope 1): 0.00
tC0O2%
Energy indirect emission 64.47
(Scope 2); tC0O2e
Greenhouse gas emission 113
intensity: tCO2e per
employee
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Waste management

As the control of waste has become increasingly stringent
in China, it is critical for the company to take a step
forward, making its manufacturing process greener and
cleaner. In order to enhance employees’ awareness of
waste disposal, the Group also provides training on waste
identification, management and classification. We will follow
the management strategy of waste recycling, reduction and
harmlessness to minimise environmental pollution in order to
fulfil our commitment to waste management.

Case sharing — JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co.,
Ltd.

In order to comply with the Law of the People‘s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, the Pollution Control Standard
for Hazardous Waste Storage and relevant laws and
regulations, the Group has formulated the Waste Control
and Management Procedures to clearly set out the types
and disposal methods of waste. For the management of
non-hazardous waste, the Company classifies waste in the
principle of turning waste into treasure and reusing it. For
some wastes such as discarded secondary raw materials
and parts, where applicable, we will arrange maintenance,
reuse and recycling to reduce waste, and the non-
recyclables will be regularly handed over to the sanitation
bureau for disposal. We takes the great importance to
generation of hazardous waste and regularly evaluates the
production process to identify the sources of hazardous
waste generation and formulate action plans to reduce
hazardous waste. For hazardous waste that needs to be
disposed of, we will engage qualified agencies to transport
and dispose of the hazardous waste in accordance with
relevant national laws and regulations.

Case sharing — 7 Senses Group

Waste generated by 7 Senses is mainly from its office
operations, that will be collected and disposed by cleaning
personnel and afterwards, will be processed by the Local
Sanitation Bureau. In addition, we have installed recycling
bins in office for collecting used paper, and have inculcated
the recycling habit among employees. We will also send
the used toner cartridges to our printer supplier Xerox for
recycling.
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71.2.

Wastewater management

In order to comply with the Law of the People‘s Republic
of China on Water Pollution Prevention and Control and
to meet the sewage discharge standards, JF A.C.R.
Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd., which located in Ningbo,
strictly implements rainwater and sewage diversion and
has started such diversion in underground water pipes
since 2013. In order to ensure up-to-standard water quality
on a continuous basis after the diversion, the Company
has formulated the “Cleaning Procedures” and requires
the cleaning records to be kept properly. According to the
environmental assessment report and the requirements of
the sewage discharge company, sewage must be treated
in sewage treatment facilities before being discharged to
ensure that the discharged sewage meets the statutory
standards. The grease traps of the staff canteen have
obtained environmental certification and are cleaned
regularly according to the Cleaning Procedures. Employees
who need to approach and treat sewage are required to
receive relevant training at least once a year.

Making Good Use of Resources

The Company is well aware of the value of resources. In
order to use all resources including energy, water and
other natural resources more effectively and prudently, we
have formulated the Energy Conservation Action Plan, the
Management Procedures of Energy Conservation Projects,
the Energy Conservation Management Procedures and the
Water Management Measures.

Energy saving

Energy use has long been a key issue for global
environmental agencies. Therefore, the Group always strives
to introduce new technologies and equipment which can
not only improve production efficiency but also promote
environmental performance and reduce energy consumption.
In the year, we have adopted the following initiatives to
improve the energy efficiency of our operations:

52 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

71.2.

Bk EHE

BMEEENEREEREARBRAR
BT ERES(PEARLRMBEATEGEE)
MEBSKBEBIRE - BREBITRARS
Kom TR -_E—ZFRBEEBTKE
WiE - BREFRKENMBERBEEZ K
ARIBEHIENEARERF] WAZER
TFERLSE: MsKAEREBERETGER
ERFRKERARMNER  BAEB5KE
B AP DARER BT EE R AY 5 K
ARETEIZE - RENR B D EEIRRF
ARBY THIRBEIRRERFTBERL - B
TEEMBMERSKNET BFHEE
RO B -

ERER

RARAMERNEE  REAUNLEEM
ERMBER BREER KEREMXA
BIR - BRI T RARIERRE DT #H1T8)ET &) -
(Figt B RIEBERIERF) (HREEEREF)
MCAKRERSE)F -

Bl BE FE 72

FRER-—EEERRRAMMELING
B e Wt RE BRI WA MR R
B BRRSEERKSI - FEITRA]fE#
RARRE RO FEE - FA HARRT
AT 8 36 A 42 = 3 P 2 B e ge 20



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The household furnishings factory in Ningbo has formulated
the Energy Conservation Action Plan which is aimed at
improving energy efficiency and raising the awareness of the
employees in saving energy, to discourage the employees
from wasting energy. Each workshop would list its own
energy saving items and set targets every year, such as
reducing the use of raw materials, electricity, water and fuel.
In the past year, we have started using solar power in the
factory areas. The annual consumption of electricity during
last year was about 270,000 kWh which is equivalent to 224
tCO2e.

The game business offices in Hong Kong and Taiwan have
implemented a number of targeted energy-saving measures
to further reduce energy consumption, which include:

° Employees having to turn off all electrical appliances
when they leaving office after work

° Keeping air-conditioned room temperature at 25°C

o The printers are switched into energy-saving mode
automatically when not in use to reduce energy
usage.

° Promoting the importance of energy, water and
resources savings among our employees and
customers

° Installing energy-efficient office equipment or

prioritising to purchase products with energy
efficiency labels
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The total power consumption of the Group in the past year
was approximately:

JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd.

Total power consumption: 1,457,720.00
kWh

Total power consumption density: 3,728.18 kWh
per employee

Total solar power consumption: 279,000.00
kWh

Total solar power consumption 713.55 kWh
density: per employee

7 Senses Group

Total power consumption: 28,058.00
kWh

Total power consumption density: 492.25 kWh

per employee

Water efficiency

To protect the precious water resources, we actively promote
the idea of water conservation among employees and
strengthen the maintenance, inspection and management
of water-consuming equipment to achieve the purpose of
water conservation. According to the Water Management
Measures developed by the household furnishings factory
in Ningbo, we reuse the cooling water from the pipe-making
workshop, and about 50% of the wastewater is recycled to
wheel vibration polishing devices through pumps. We also
carry out inspections of underground fire water to eliminate
leakage of water pipes and reduce waste of water. We
conduct regular statistics and analysis of water consumption
in workshops, and those workshops using a relatively large
amount of water are required to receive assessment and be
equipped with independent electricity meters to measure
their water consumption more accurately.
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Fresh water for 7 Senses Group was provided by the
property management company, so there is no record of
water consumption.

The Group’s total water consumption in the past year is
approximately:

JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd.
14,701.00 m?

Total water consumption:

8.60 m3
per employee

Total water consumption density:

7 Senses Group

Total water consumption*; 286 m3

5.02 m?
per employee

Total water consumption density™:

* All water consumed in our office is under the control of the property
management.

Using environmentally-friendly materials

The household furnishings business has obtained FSC
certification which proves that the wooden furnishings
produced by the Company, including cupboards and kitchen
cabinets, are made of FSC certified wood and meet the
relevant requirements of FSC certification. We also require
our suppliers to have the FSC certification for certain
materials such as particle boards and bamboo boards.
FSC hopes humans and forests to reach a balance among
the environment, society and economy, and wishes that
businesses will not cause excessive damage to the forest
ecosystem and the species diversity of trees during timber
harvesting. It also emphasises the sustainable development
of forests so that local residents can live on forests for
a long time. FSC has made tremendous contributions to
environmental protection.
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7.1.3.

wE

The packaging materials and chemicals we choose to use
must meet the national standards; our suppliers are required
to go through Environmental Impact Assessment Registration
or make environmental impact reports; we conduct internal
environmental assessments and regularly review and adjust
existing environmental measures ensure their feasibility; we
also have technical specifications for all packaging materials
which require paper packaging materials to come from
sustainable sources and do not allow the use of new 100%
virgin plastics.

Promoting Green Operations

The Group integrates environmental responsibility into its
daily business operations. To this end, the Group promotes
green operations and a green procurement policy to reduce
its environmental impact and consumption of natural
Ltd. has
obtained ISO 14001 environmental management system

resources. JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co.,

certification, and the Group regularly conducts internal and
external assessments on the effectiveness of the system to
ensure that the system keeps up with the times.

Raising environmental awareness

As to energy conservation publicity and related training, we
have formulated the Measures for Energy Saving Publicity
and Training, and have the Human Resources Department
and the Technical Support Department jointly organise
training on environmental projection for employees in hope
of enhancing their awareness of energy conservation.

In addition, in order to make all employees regard energy
conservation as their duty, we encourage employees to
actively participate in the design of various energy-saving
and consumption-reducing schemes, and will commend
and reward employees who have made special contributions
to energy conservation. In the event of a serious waste
of resources, we will consider imposing punishment as a
warning to others.
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7.2.
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Promoting green procurement

When looking for high-quality products and services, other
than the reasonability of prices, we also have to consider
human health and environmental factors to minimise the
impact on the environment. We use PEFC/FCS certified
paper from responsible forest resources which dissuades
deforestation.

Advocating green office

We advocate paperless office and promote electronic
communication via the Internet, email, internal workflow
system, etc. We also encourage customers to choose
electronic bills and place electronic orders. The online
collaborative office management platform and the related
mobile app introduced by the Group cover the day-to-day
office management and operations and approval processes
and greatly promote paperless office. The Company also
encourages employees to use double-sided printing as
much as possible, and reuse all single-sided printed paper,
to reduce the consumption of paper.

“Vegetarian Carbon Reduction” is an environmentally-friendly
behavior advocated by all countries and all environmental
organisations around the world. As such, we add vegetarian
elements to the free launches for our employees to help
them understand that “low carbon diets” is an important
part of environment-friendly life and is greatly beneficial to
reducing global carbon dioxide emissions and protect the
ecological environment.

Putting People First

We invest heavily in our employees, providing extensive
opportunities for staff training and development, robust
health and safety measures and competitive remuneration
and benefits in order to recruit and retain the best talent.
The Group strictly abides by the Labour Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Social Insurance Law of the People‘s
Republic of China, the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong and the Labour Standards Act of Taiwan. During
the reporting period, the Group did not have any cases of
violation of relevant employment laws and regulations, nor
did it receive any complaints related to recruitment.
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Overview of the Group‘'s employees over the past year as SEBRE—FHEEM N :
below:

Employee Gender Profile

ETMR DM
JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd. 7 Senses Group
ERECRERARARRR tE
M Male5 207 35
I Female% 184 21

0% ——

]

2% 3%
% ‘i

Employee Aged Profile

BTSRRI M

Aged JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd. 7 Senses Group
FiR ERREREARBRATF tE

W 18-245% 16 2

W 25-345%, 106 28

[0 35-445% 112 20
45-545%, 134 5
55-645% 22 2

M 65 or above 65573k A E 1 1
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Employee Professional Profile

ST
JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd. 7 Senses Group
BERFEERERMERAR tx
M Senior management &4 &2 E 1 8
¥ Middle management AR 4 & 18 [ 15 5
Executives £& 11 6
W General staff =88 T 364 38
7.2.1. Equal Employment 7.21. FEER
Management guidelines and policies EE iR B &
The Group sees employees our greatest assets and the AEB-—MEEIARMEEENEE
key driver of our business success. Our businesses have HWEESRMEBGKDOER SEET
been working actively to create a working environment that RAEBREHEEEE MEHBUARE
features mutual respect and harmonious coexistence of PHAEMNTIERE SAERTEMHIE K
employees and prioritises safety, attracts the best people SIFBBETL : LB MM ERTERS
and motivate them with a rewarding career, and equipping MR KMEBEENANEREZ
them with the necessary skills and knowledge. We have a EEgTHBRIMREAEBBE  LREAME
dedicated human resources committee to regularly review, BEERAOIRITEER  SIETEEMHE
improve the relevant policies, and developed a written ITFRI- AR ERERBE B ITIEH
staff manual according to the relevant laws and industrial B REARHEMETR -

standards, to govern the recruitment, promotion, discipline,
working hours, leaves and other benefits of our employees.
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Equal opportunity and diversity

We are proud of our talented employees and allow them to
achieve with their great potential. To attract and retain the
right talents thus are always crucial in our people approach.
We care for our people, and thereby offer them with fair
and equal opportunities and benefits irrespective of their
gender, age, family status, race, religion, nationality, sexual
orientation or disability. Experience, ability and related
qualifications are the primary concerns in talent selection.

As a responsible employer, the Group will handle retirement
formalities for employees who have reached the statutory
retirement age in accordance with the relevant regulations,
and go through any dismissal procedures according to the
Labour Law. In the event of a work-related accident, the
Group will make reasonable compensation and handle it
properly in accordance with relevant laws.

Employee compensation

Our Businesses recognise employee’s contributions fairly
and objectively by implementing equitable remuneration
polices. To incentives staff, our remuneration mechanisms
are reviewed and re-adjusted regularly to remain completive.
We determine employee benefits, rest time and holiday
arrangements according to the Labour Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
and the Labour Standards Act of Taiwan, such as making
contributions to the Five Major Social Insurance Program
and Housing Provident Fund, Mandatory Provident Fund,
Labour Insurance, Health Insurance and Pension Fund for
employees and participating in the Well-being Mutual Aid
Fund Scheme for the benefit of female employees.
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7.2.2. Occupational Health and Safety

Management guidelines and policies

Employees are our most valuable resources. The Group
strictly adhere to all relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Fire Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, so as to create a safe, healthy and
comfortable working environment for our employees.

In the context of COVID-19 threat for the duration of
2020, we were highly concerned about the health of our
employees. In order to step up prevention, Our household
furnishings segment quickly developed the Prevention and
Emergency Rescue Plan and the Emergency Response
Plan, to standardise personnel management and monitor
the physical condition of employees. It also developed the
Prevention Training Plan for employees to develop their
awareness of the pandemic and hygiene habits. In the game
business section, it distributes preventive kits including
disinfectant alcohol and masks to employees.

JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd.

Our household furnishings factories have developed a series
of comprehensive policies to manage occupational health
and safety issues, including the Occupational Health and
Safety Policy, the Indoor Air Quality Policy and the Fire
Fighting Policy, in order to comply with relevant regulatory
requirements and meet the development needs of the
Group. We strictly abide by the provisions in the Compilation
of Laws and Regulations on Occupational Safety and Health
Supervision issued by the Ningbo Municipal Administration
of Work Safety.

Our factories arrange dedicated personnel to take charge
of the Company‘s occupational health and safety affairs
and regularly review the occupational health and safety
performance. We also provide employees with adequate
training on occupational health and safety and appropriate
protective equipment, with a view to enabling them to
identify high-risk links in the workplace, work out solutions
to lower work-related risks, prevent accidents in the course
of work and reduce occupational hazards. Each year, the
Group provides physical examinations for employees to
prevent occupational diseases and give them appropriate
health guidance.
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In addition, we carry out assessment of workplace hazards Britzoh BN E EHETIIESH G
and detection of occupational hazards on a regular basis, BRETERETBREREERA  REH
and engage third-party agencies to review our occupational FoTHREEZRERERLERR &
health and safety performance. Through such assessment B ERRE URARBRAEOER L
and review, we aim to ensure the effective implementation of RIEBSAERER -

all occupational safety and health measures.

7 Senses Group +LE

For 7 Senses Group which is in game business, due to its mMBEMERESN TR ERKMED
business characteristics, employees mainly work in office ML BIFZEARATANEIE T
and they are not exposed to dust, radioactive materials and TEFR T EBME M MMENEMBES -
other toxic and harmful substances at work, so there is EERZ MAFEBEXRIENBA -
no occupational disease. But due to enduring desk work, BREEARHBREIE REZSFHM
employees may suffer from symptoms such as wrist and EFRERETE - NAKRE - BRBRES &I
upper limb pain, muscle soreness, eye fatigue and mental BB NEER - StEHEEBER - H M
pressure. Therefore, we provide employees with ergonomic BEIREFAARISZNRASERK I
desks and chairs, and regularly organise employees to FTHAHETL2HENRFE  HEEH -
participate in annual meetings, community activities, team FFHERZ BIRHESES EBHEIHE
building for festivals, staff travel and other activities to help BREI/EFEAMEE BB TEEH -
employees relax, as well as enhance cohesion and the sense MEARINHEBER -

of belonging among employees.

Occupational Health JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies
and Safety Co., Ltd. 7 Senses Group
BEREER2 ERRERERRERAA tng
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
ZECZE | ZE-NF ZE-N\F | ZECZZE | ZE-NE ZE-N\%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT B BT BT
Work-related deaths (pax) EIT(AR) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Number of work days lost due to IHEBXRE(R)
work-related injuries (days) 250 305 177 0 0 0
Employee communication ETEHAE
The Group welcomes and values the opinions of employees SE+SPBAOREREINER  BITA
who can express their opinions through different channels, BAAMNSEEERER  flM: BEEBE
such as: the general manager mailbox and the trade union. M IEE BMTXBEIHATNSE
We also encourage employees to provide constructive EERHE BTEHFZEZREAENER
suggestions on the management measures and methods — R RRIERBERGAE—FNEE -

of the Company. The Company will grant certain rewards
as appropriate to the personnel whose suggestions are
adopted.
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7.2.3. Training and Development

Management guidelines and policies

We firmly believe that continued training and development
for employees will enhance the value of the team and
professional quality of the employees themselves, thus
bringing higher production efficiency for the Group. The
sustainable development of employees has many benefits.
The Group has a talent training philosophy to develop
talents. The Company has formulated the New Employee
Training Policy, the Employee Guidance Policy and the
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Vocational Skills Training Policy to continuously improving

the ability and quality of our workforce.

QOur training topics include:

Induction Training

BT AR

Action sharing session

S

THDZE

Technical staff training series

BT A8 & 553

Management efficiency improvement
training

B KR

External training

ShER 1 B

BANEIEERRE:

Provide new employees with induction training which covers the Group’s
background, profile, facilities, employee handbook introduction and
corporate social responsibility, so that new employees have been quick to
be familiarised with the situation about the Group and having a sense of
belonging

MEIABRERE IZENTEEEEES B0 Rk - ELFMEN
REEMGELES FHEIRAREESERARNAHEENFEEB

We that invite industry experts, scholars or senior mentors from external
training institutions to carry out special trainings, so as to improve
employees’ skills and comprehensive capabilities

BRETEER BEREINIFBIRBERSMERZEEI - URS
BT REMESRED

the Group adopts a training strategy of “having old employees guide new
ones” in hope of passing on the experience and technical know-how of
old employees to new ones. We also arrange experienced staff to provide
orientation and induction training for junior staff
SEHRBIAZERINEIER HEBEEREEMTAE - KMATER
HEEBRMNBEIRVABIETEERTRHEARE

We carry out special training for the management, which deepens
management personnel’s understanding of corporate culture, hones their
management skills, sharpens their communication skills, and thus raises
management efficiency

FRIAHEREEMNEREIN  MAEEASHEEUENIEMRE -
BREE CHARZEBBRDT  BABTEME

TEE

We subsidise our employees to participate in recognised external courses,
which equip employees with professional knowledge and skills relating

to their duties and shares the most cutting-edge developments in the
industry

EHETEERANIINDENRE URASIAEEUEENZTELN
B A RRWATERAENGES
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20
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2
0
Middle Senior
General staff Executives management management Female Male
—RET FE RALEIRE BRERE Eoq 2
Average training hours of employees
ABF9E | &
JF A.C.R. Equipment
B Supplies Co., Ltd. [ | ?;_?Jn?ses Group
EREERERARERAT -

General staff —ff 8T 10.67 0.14

Executives =& 18.18 0.08

Middle management A 4% & ¥ /& 10.00 0.00

Senior management & 4 & 1% & 16.00 0.00

Female & 7.88 0.10

Male 5 8.70 0.11
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7.2.4. Protection of Rights and Interests

Management guidelines and policies

The Company conducts staff recruitment and management
in strict accordance with the Labour Law of the People's
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People‘s
Republic of China and the Regulations on the Prohibition of
Child Labour and Employee Ordinance of Hong Kong. It is
absolutely forbidden to employ any child labour and any form
of forced labor.

The Company considers child labour and forced labour
intolerable and it shall be eliminated. The Company has
set up strict recruitment processes to conduct intensive
examination of identity documents, such as ID card, and
sign labour contract and create personal file in a fair and
voluntary manner in accordance with legal requirements.

In accordance with the standard working hours stipulated by
the national laws where our business operation is conducted,
the Company makes reasonable arrangement of working
hours for our employees. Leaves and benefits, such as
paid leave and sick leave, are provided in accordance with
the Labour Law. Subject to production requirements, our
production bases arrange overtime work on a voluntary basis
and it requires negotiation with employee representatives
and employees and approval from local labour department
and shall not exceed the statutory working hours. Production
bases and sales division of the Company in the PRC and
overseas prohibit and disapprove any forced labour or
contractual servitude, corporal punishment, confinement,
violent threat, and forbid employees from receiving any
forms of illegal payment, withholding identity document and
battering employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have
any material non-compliance incident relating to the labour
standards under relevant laws and regulations.

RIS - HERERBRE

724, R RE

EZE G i RBEFE

ARRBERBB(REARKMBEHE)
(FEARKXMBELSSHERZE) (BELEER
ETREIRBA(ERGIETETRE
MER BUREULTARAEINTAR
EREAmREass -

ARTRBELRBHLDRTLDRM
VB - ARFARRE BRI RBIER
ERIBLANSHESBUBESS
LHRAE SERAUTEREREESH
AR RIAEHE -

ARRHEBEINTIHERRBERES
PEBZEENRETIERHEEEANMT
BERTH URBESDEETHEHFRAMN
ERBERBREN ARBEEEMBRE
MMTERMRA  EREEREMS MM
MEE ARBIRXNMEIHELLEE
WwHEB AL BTN FBIBEERH -
ARBEFBERBINFANEERI K H
ERLEEIEFERAET I FEMERRIZ
WMAST 85 ER BB UE

ME THEBEMFEEANTS  MA S

EFRESFEL-

ARARMENEL BELBBERER
PIRES THERNEATEREER -

FREEERREZERERLA

2020 €% BGH



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

7.3.

7.3.1.

Operational Commitment

In the process of business development, the Group always
keeps in mind that we have to manage our relationships
with our suppliers and customers in a responsible and
sustainable manner. We are dedicated to providing our
customers with the highest quality products and services,
and working with suppliers to create win-win results. To this
end, we implement different plans and measures and provide
safe and reliable products to achieve the vision of creating a
better society.

Supply Chain Management
Management guidelines and policies

Good supply chain operations have a positive impact on the
environment and society. Accordingly, we work closely with
suppliers to minimise relevant risks and jointly create a better
and greener future. The Group adopts a comprehensive
supply chain management mechanism, including a code
of conduct and a supplier assessment system, to monitor
and access the quality of suppliers’ products and services
and their performance in business ethics. The Group is also
committed to complying with all laws and regulations related
to its business operations, and did not violate relevant laws
and regulations during the reporting period.

JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd.

We monitor the quality of our suppliers on a monthly basis
to ensure that the products and services provided by
them meet the relevant contractual requirements, so as to
safeguard the quality of the products provided by the Group.
We also organise standard training for suppliers on a regular
basis to provide suppliers with the opportunity to exchange
ideas and keep abreast of the latest industry developments
for the expansion and sharing of business opportunities.
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7.3.2.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

As IKEA is one of the major clients of our household
furnishings segment, the Company strictly complies with
the IKEA's IWAY Standard. The IWAY Standard specifies
IKEA's minimum requirements for suppliers and their own
suppliers on environmental and social performance and
working conditions when purchasing products, materials and
services. The Standard also covers compliance with local
laws and regulations, confidentiality and anti-corruption.
In order to ensure that suppliers effectively honour their
corporate social responsibility at the community and
environmental levels, we appoint a third party to conduct SSI
system audits on suppliers each year.

7 Senses Group

The Group has developed a standardised Supplier
Management Mechanism for its game business. We will give
priority to partners who insisting on sustainable development
concepts and corporate social responsibilities. We hope to
work with suppliers on improving the industry’s performance
in environment and society, and effectively managing the
environmental and social risks of supply chain.

High Quality Products
Management guidelines and policies

Providing quality products to our customers is our ultimate
goal. The Group commits itself to establishing, maintaining
and improving the 1ISO9001 quality system, in a mission to
provide quality products and services to meet customer
needs. In the course of operations, the Group strictly
abides by national laws and regulations and industry quality
standards and constantly improves quality management to
safeguard the basic rights and interests of customers.

JF A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Co., Ltd.

In terms of household furnishings business, we strive
to provide high-quality products. Each product will be
tested for quality and safety before being packaged as a
finished product. We have a quality control department
to be responsible for testing products, formulating testing
management procedures, and conducting final testing
according to such procedures. During the reporting period,
the Company did not violate any laws and regulations related
to product responsibility, nor did it receive any customer
complaints. The percentage of products recalled for health
or safety reasons was 0%.

7.3.2.
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In terms of privacy and intellectual property rights, according
to IWAY Standard, all information reports, discussions, and
written messages between the Company and IKEA shall
be kept confidential. In addition, the Company will never
purchase pirated products or use photos or designs without
third party authorisation.

7 Senses Group

For marketing and management, the Group has strictly
controls the release of marketing information through the
Internet, newspapers, media and other channels, and
thus ensure the compliance of publicity, promotion and
advertising releases in accordance with the requirements
of laws and regulations such as the Advertising Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Interim Measures for
the Administration of Internet Advertising and the Trade
Descriptions Ordinance. For intellectual property rights,
the Group strictly complies with the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Tort Liability law of People’s Republic
of China, the Measures for the Administration of Internet
Domain Names of China, the Administrative Measures
for Software Products and other laws and regulations, to
formulate the Intellectual Property Management Policy in
order to regulate the intellectual property management.
We also have signed non-disclosure agreements with our
employees and business partners to ensure the security
of our intellectual property. We take measures to prevent
infringement of the intellectual property rights of third parties,
and conduct frequent monitoring and review. If any potential
infringement risk is found, the legal department will set up an
urgent working team to investigate the potential infringement,
and cease the infringement activities against third parties
through legal actions, while protecting the legitimate rights
and interests of the Group.
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7.3.3. Corporate Governance

7.4.

Management guidelines and policies

The Group strictly abides by the Criminal Law of the People's
Republic of China and, according to its own characteristics
and circumstances, follows IKEA's IWAY Standard which
has anti-corruption requirements to strengthen corporate
governance and internal control, standardise business
practices, safeguard the legitimate rights and interests
of shareholders, and promote the healthy and stable
development of the Company.

We require all employees to comply professionally with the
Group‘s policies on conflicts of interest, intellectual property
rights, privacy, confidentiality of information, prevention of
bribery and corruption, and equal opportunities. The Group
requires employees to abide by the code of business ethics
and to refrain from corruption and bribery during the term of
their employment contract.

The Group also provides whistle-blowing channels for
stakeholders to report suspicious activities by email,
telephone or fax. The reported cases will be independently
investigated and properly followed up.

During the reporting period, the Company found no cases of
violation of laws and regulations related to corruption.

Giving Back to Society

The Group is well aware that our responsibility is not only
to contribute directly to the economy, but also to generate
positive impact on the society as a whole through our
business operations and public welfare programs. Our
household furnishings factory in Ningbo is committed to
reducing the potential environmental impact of production
on surrounding communities. During the reporting period,
we not only made charity donations, but also encouraged
employees to take an active part in community activities
such as acting as volunteers.
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Summary of Performance Data
(Household Furnishings Business)

Environmental
RE

70 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited

Polluting emissions

5 RGER

HERARE
(RERBER)

Unit

B

Greenhouse gas emissions and density

BERBHEHEREE

Total greenhouse gas emissions
mERBHNESR

Direct emissions

BEEN

Energy-related indirect emissions
A2 IR 4 BE AR

Emission density

HREE

Energy use

BERfE A

Power purchased

EENEN

Power density

REBE

Total consumption of solar power
INC T

Solar power use density
AGREREE

Total consumption LPG (fixed sources)
RibARR(BER EFEE
LPG (fixed source) use density
BitABR(EER) ERA%EE
Total consumption of diesel (fixed source)
Em(EER &R

Diesel (fixed source) use density
Eh(ETREREE

Water consumption

kg

Water use density

RkEE

Amount of packaging materials used

BEMBERE
Plastic

B

Paper

R

Metal

ks

Lumber

ARH

Annual Report 2020

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

M-Sl REE

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

AM_ElREE

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

AM_EltREE

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent per
employee

ABE_SLHES BEET

kWh

TRE

kWh per employee
TRE/B%E8T
kWh

THRE

kWh per employee
TRE/S4ET
litre

At

litre per employee
DR/ BHET
litre

A

litre per employee
AF/BEEL
m3

MK

m3 per employee
UAK/BHRET

tonnes
YN
tonnes
yNU|
tonnes
yNU|
tonnes
N

JF A.C.R.
Equipment
Supplies
Co., Ltd.
EREERE
AmERAHE
1,233.99

61.11

1,172.88

3.16

1,457,720.00
3,728.18
279,000.00
713.55
13,539.37
34.63
6,916.56
17.69
14,701.00

8.60

106.80
811.84
3,288.89

541.79

7 Senses
Group

tnE

64.47
0.00
64.47

113

28,058.00
492.25

N/A
A
N/A
A
N/A
A
N/A
A
N/A
i
N/A
i
286"

5.02*

N/A
TER
N/A
TER
N/A
TER
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Polluting emissions

BRERY

Total number of employees
BETBAY

By age

FlRoH

Aged 18-24
18-24%%

Aged 25-34
25-345%

Aged 35-44
35-445%

Aged 45-54
45-545%

Aged 55-64
55-647%

Aged 65 or above
655% 3k A -

By gender

% 5l 7 5

Male

3

Female

z

By employment type
ERER

Full time

£

Part time

FER

By rank

Breaf

Senior management
BRERE
Middle management
PRERE
Executives

&

General staff
—RET
Employee turnover
ABR%
Turnover rate
R b &

Unit

B
persons

A&

persons
N
persons
N
persons
AE
persons
AE
persons
AE
persons

AE

persons
N
persons

N

persons
N
persons

N

persons
A
persons
N
persons
N
persons

N

percentage (%)

B

JF A.C.R.
Equipment
Supplies
Co., Ltd.
EREERE
AmERAHE
391

16

106

12

134

22

207

184

391

15

364

3.52%

FEEBRREZRERDE)

7 Senses

Group

tRE
56

28

20

35

21

56

38

4.32%

2020 %% 11
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RIR - dERERBE

Social
te

Employees

=1

By age

FERoh

Aged 18-24
18-24 75

Aged 25-34
25-34%

Aged 35-44
35-44%,

Aged 45-54
45-545%

Aged 55-64
55-647%

Aged 65 or above
6557 3k JA

By gender
5l 7

Male

e

Female

z

By region
WEDH

Mainland China
B A 3

Hong Kong

0

Others

Hith

Health and Safety
REHEZ2
Work-related deaths
EAIEBERIET AR
Number of work days lost due to work-related injuries
AIGEEAIERY
Training and development
BHEER

Total training hours
B35 51 B
Average training hours
FHZANEEH
Male

3

Female

7

Senior management
ARERE

Middle management
PRERE
Executives

B

General staff
—RET
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percentage (%)
Batt
percentage (%)
Batt
percentage (%)
BAtt
percentage (%)
Bt
percentage (%)
Bol
percentage (%)
Batt

percentage (%)
Bt
percentage (%)
Bt

percentage (%)
Bt
percentage (%)
Bol
percentage (%)

B

persons
ANE
days

H

hours
N

hours
N
hours
N
hours
N
hours
/J\ H%
hours
iN:=
hours
N

JF A.C.R.
Equipment
Supplies
Co., Ltd.
BREERE
ARERAR
22.40%
5.42%

2.23%

1.43%

0.00%

0.00%

3.42%

3.62%

3.52%
0.00%

0.00%

250

3,500

8.70
7.88
16.00
10.00
18.18

10.67

7 Senses
Group

tnE

0.00%
3.27%
5.83%
6.67%
0.00%

0.00%

3.57%

5.56%

0.00%
1.64%

2.68%

0.1
0.10
0.00
0.00
0.08

0.14
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Employees

=1

Percentage of trained employees by category

RAEERNEAINZINEEL =

Male

3

Female

'S

Senior management

ARERE

Middle management

PREEE

Executives

*E

General staff

—KRET

Number of suppliers

HEBHE

Mainland China

B g 3

Hong Kong

B0

Other

H i &

Product Responsibility

EmEHE

Percentage of products subject to recalls for safety reasons

EmBKtE(ELZZER)

Number of complaints

RFHE

Anti-corruption

R & 8

Number of concluded corruption cases brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period

REGBAEETASHEEREVEEENE TFARNY
ok 4=

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Volunteer service hours

EIRBEH

Total amount spent in the focus area

EEISEBEMBHANLESE

JF A.C.R.
Equipment
Supplies
Unit Co., Ltd.
EREERE
B ARERAHE
percentage (%) 100%
Batt
percentage (%) 100%
Batt
percentage (%) 100%
Batt
percentage (%) 100%
Bol
percentage (%) 100%
B
percentage (%) 100%
Bol
suppliers 0
fel
suppliers 0
Al
suppliers 0
Al
percentage (%) 0%
Batt
cases 0
HES
cases 0
RE
hours 0
iN:
RMB 0
AR
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19%
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20%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR ET RS

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
IMPERIUM GROUP GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Imperium
Group Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 232, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 in the financial statements, which
indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$81,869,887,
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and, as of that date, the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of HK$69,864,032
and HK$45,189,390 respectively. As stated in note 2, these event
or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit
matters we identified are:

1. Valuation of investment properties
2. Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible
assets
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

HARERELER

ESHEERTEREBMRERSTEANS X

Valuation of investment properties

BREWMEMLE

Refer to note 5(b)(v) and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

S B4R & B 1% 5k M TE5()(v) K219

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be HK$23,389,782 as at 31 December
2020 with a net revaluation loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of
HK$1,490,726. Independent external valuations were obtained
in order to support management’s estimates. The valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgments including the adjustment factors used
on comparable properties. These adjustment factors were either
based on public published data or substantially unchanged since
prior year.
EEEJ'1EE+EA_?_§¢+*H_+ EI EEEREMEZ
NAREKR23,389,7828 T KRB EZE_T_FEF+_A=1+—H
IEFREREEERKERE ifﬁ}éﬂ%}%%ﬁ 490,726/8 7T - B EUiF
BN EEATHEERBNMGS - AENBEYNEEEEE
BrIEmE THERRR a%Téﬁtb%‘#@%ﬁﬂ%Fﬁﬁﬁ%&% ° 7%
FRBAZENRAFNZHE BB LEFEENELATESE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:

EERAHEEENERENENREFEE:

— Evaluation of the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

— B ANE R EM R B AL D - ¥R
JSES K

— Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the property
industry, and

— ERNEFUHMETENME  FHEAKRBR
m&FEiUE““ HEM: R

— Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.

— RHMEEERSARBE A BB ERIL R
HEIE -
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B A BEN R

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

HAREELER

ESHEERTEREHMRERSTEANS X

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

N B B ERUE R

Refer to note 5(b)(ii) and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

2B 4R A B 3R 2R M 7E5(o) (i) K221

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in
previous year, the principal activities of which are the operations
of online games.
EFERMERBERKRBETHERARN(EFZXEK AL ER L7
L) -

The other intangible assets represent game intellectual
properties and licenses, game software, rights on esports
team and trademark. Management performs impairment testing
of goodwill annually. For other intangible assets, impairment
testing is performed when indicators of potential impairment
are identified. In performing impairment testing of goodwill,
management considered that the entire operations of the online
games operated by these acquired subsidiaries represented one
separately identifiable cash generating unit (“CGU”).

HW | EERBRIANBERE M RE  BEREM  EFHEKEK
MESANEE ERESFUHREBETRENR - st A&
REEmMS X BESEERREEREDRFETREIR &
SRHENMEMETEEETHREAINRE BEEBZRZEFEW
BHEARCENR T EA s BRBLEEB B —ErEEHAN
WIReELBEN(ReELAEL]) -

Management assessed potential impairment by using the value
in use method and engaged a firm of qualified external valuers
to assist in preparing the value in use calculations. The value in
use calculations required the exercise of significant management
judgement and estimates.

EBEBNAGERAEBEEANGEERE  WEFaEBNINLE
RElGBEEERERE FEEREEFETEEAREEREA
BT E -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

EERHEEENERENEFEE:

— understand management’s impairment
assessment process;

- THREEENRENGERERF:

— challenge management’s assessment
of whether indicators of impairment are

present;
— ESREEEURGCERARERTAELAF
N

— assessing the external valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise and considering
their objectivity and independence;

- FEIBEERAFEREEE T ANERE
KBREENE  WERETHERE LI

— working with our in house valuation
specialists to review the integrity of the value
in use model and the appropriateness of the
discount rate adopted by management;

— HANFEEERGEETHEREEEN 2T
BEUERERERBZUBREXNEEN:

— checking input data to supporting evidence
including approved budgets;

— I ABBREERRE (BEEHEER)E
Lt ¥

— challenging the reasonableness of
management’s key assumptions underlying
the cash flow forecasts in view of the
historical performance of the CGU and our
understanding of the business; and

— BRERGEFEMUNBERRARBMEE
BHER EREEENFERRKR  HBR
emERAZEEMN: R

— considering the adequacy of the impairment
testing disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

— EZREAHBREANBEAAKERD R

e




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group‘s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR ET RS

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor‘s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor‘s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

n _\éﬁﬁ_ﬁﬂ%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE
2020 2019
— —F-NF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 BT 78T
REVENUE W 8 186,363,525 | 233,566,651
Cost of sales 5 & B AR (175,951,366) | (212,419,102)
Gross profit EF 10,412,159 21,147,549
Other income At e A 9 11,370,846 5,888,835
Impairment of receivables JE W 3R B R B (3,221,627) (5,717,467)
Distribution costs 73§85 B AN (8,750,202)|  (26,542,898)
Administrative expenses THRAX (63,245,398)|  (55,961,544)
Other operating expenses EmgeEMz (19,603,542) (13,427,536)
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS reEEE (73,037,764)| (74,613,061)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR Z W= 40(a) - 55,052
Finance costs B & A AR 13 (7,944,611) (3,616,209)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AT S 18 (80,982,375)| (78,174,218)
Income tax expense FriSBim X 14 (887,512) (3,262,262)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FRER 15 (81,869,887)| (81,436,480)
Attributable to: LTALEA:
Owners of the Company RABHER A (80,214,996)| (77,936,393)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR #E = (1,654,891) (3,500,087)
(81,869,887)| (81,436,480)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE 17
Basic AR (0.28) (0.27)
Diluted s (0.28) (0.27)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEBERkAMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
ZB-EHF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT 78T
Loss for the year FRER (81,869,887)| (81,436,480)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2mEEIR:
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or l0ss: TEEF LB EmmIES -
Fair value changes of equity instruments at fair value EARBEFAEMEZERE
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) ZHETTAZAREZD (2,059,000) (1,810,996)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AJBEE T P E B I IHE -
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations M E GBI EHEME L 2
PE 5, =58 4,892,541 (2,554,896)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss on HEBINERFEN
disposal of foreign operations NEEERERLERE - 50
4,892,541 (2,554,846)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, TR EM2EUZE (EE)
net of tax (BrBi&) 2,833,541 (4,365,842)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2EEERLAE (79,036,346)| (85,802,322)
Attributable to: RTATERN:
Owners of the Company RAEEER A (77,381,455)|  (82,302,235)
Non-controlling interests IR S (1,654,891) (3,500,087)
(79,036,346) (85,802,322)

FEEBRREZERER D E

2020 5% 83



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BEEIR LR

At 31 December 2020 R —ZE - TF+ - A=+—H

2020 2019
—EBZEHE —E-NF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 BT 78T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WENREE 18 8,575,540 11,515,065
Investment properties "EME 19 23,389,782 24,540,315
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 11,809,411 12,529,460
Goodwill B 21 2,982,214 10,982,214
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEARBRAEMEE
WamzemEE 22 - 2,059,000
Deposits paid for acquisition of WERMEENENES
long-term assets 23 - 18,426,799
Intangible assets BEEE 24 49,049,729 6,858,032
95,806,676 86,910,885
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 25 16,703,834 26,399,199
Contract costs B AR 359,946 620,194
Loan receivables and interest receivables R E SRR e R B 26 10,458,154 13,643,349
Trade receivables e E SRR 27 13,307,468 25,874,427
Due from related companies FE W A B A B FUIR 47(b) - 4,737,355
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments &4 - H it FE U 3038 &
& KA 28 31,984,998 10,512,609
Cash and bank balances He RIRITHH 29 55,148,931 56,961,964
127,963,331 138,749,097
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FERTE SR 30 5,134,462 10,334,445
Lease liabilities HEARE 31 3,755,132 5,026,973
Loan from related parties KREBE T Z2ER 32 106,000,000 —
Due to related companies FE T B Bt 2 B IR 47(b) - 7,650,046
Other payables and accruals EfhEIE N ERIEE 33 78,832,650 40,424,354
Retirement benefit obligations BRIKBFEE 34 64,710 65,074
Contract liabilities aHBE 35 3,810,739 3,531,412
Current tax liabilities BT TE B & 229,670 208,255
Bank borrowings BITEE 36 - 41,416,419
197,827,363 108,656,978
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS  EhE (&) && (69,864,032)| 30,092,119
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERABARG
LIABILITIES 25,942,644 117,003,004
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BEIR LR

At 31 December 2020 R —ZE - ZEH&+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
— —F-NF
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 BT BT
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HE&AE 31 4,681,383 4,149,368
Long-term loan from related parties REBE T REABER 32 63,328,042 93,328,042
Retirement benefit obligations RIKEFE 34 490,848 540,986
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 37 2,631,761 2,631,761
71,132,034 100,650,157
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS F(RE)EE (45,189,390) 16,352,847
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf®E
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZANA 7] # B A FE {5 A% 4
Share capital & 7 38 2,872,060 2,872,060
Reserves = (51,618,516) 15,718,751
(48,746,456) 18,590,811
Non-controlling interests FERER 3,557,066 (2,237,964)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES)/ (BAREH) gD
TOTAL EQUITY (45,189,390) 16,352,847
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and are ZEEFE@ER_TE_—F=HA-+NBH#E WHU
signed on its behalf by: TEEREXEE:
Cheng Ting Kong Yeung So Mui
BT A mEE
Director Director
E E

FREERRERERAA

2020 £ 8H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
Note HK$ HK$
B = BT 78 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHNEERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B 5 A S 18 (80,982,375)| (78,174,218)
Adjustments for: AR
Net fair value losses/(gains) on investment WEMEARERE,
properties (W) F58 19 1,490,726 (1,081,328)
Investment income "ERA 9 (234,869) (301,559)
Depreciation and amortisation WrE K N 20,708,176 18,470,816
Finance costs A& AR 13 7,944,611 3,616,209
Interest income F 2 WA 9 (136,466) (163,027)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 W& 40(a) - (55,052)
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries WENB AR 2 WS 40(b) (455,616) —
Defined employee benefit SEREERT (50,502) 254,589
Equity-settled share-based payments VAR HE 45 B30 ARR 19 3%
B 923,408 3,167,000
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME BMEREREBEZ
equipment I 2= (298,213) (5,716)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEE 2B H (4,827,284) —
Gain on lease modification HEBI 2 W= (4,575) —
Impairment of receivables & U FIE R E 3,221,627 5,717,467
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE 21 8,000,000 5,500,000
Impairment of intangible assets EEERE 24 1,566,969 6,583,048
Written off of deposits paid for acquisition of i $&5 5t M B8 & B & E Fir
long term assets Y ME e - 1,174,403

Operating loss before working capital changes

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in loan receivables and
interest receivables

(Increase)/decrease in deposits, other
receivables and prepayments

Decrease in financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Decrease in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and

accruals
Increase in contract liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in contract costs
(Decrease)/increase in due to related
companies

Decrease in due from related companies

Cash used in operations
Income tax refunded
Income taxes paid
Interest on lease liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities
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(43,134,383)

(35,297,368)

9,695,365 1,074,458
12,641,383 1,919,679
1,885,195 3,547,904
(757,954) 5,971,575
- 9,393,843
(5,199,983) (5,816,162)
25,909,319 |  (11,250,739)
279,327 401,323
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(1,035,471) (4,811,219)
(411,208) (388,575)
(2,629,101)| (32,144,976)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE —E-—FEF + - HA=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-THF —E-NF
Note HK$ HK$
BT 5 BT 78 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETENESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BERZHE (4,656,506) (2,577,159)
Deposits paid for acquisition of long-term WERHEENENES
assets - (19,543,106)
Acquisition of intangible assets WEELEE (31,056,600) (1,237,651)
Acquisition of subsidiary W B BT B A A 40(b) (11,971,893) —
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 40(a) - (456,657)
Payments for right-of-use assets HEREEEMNK — (65,950)
Payments for rental deposits MEEZSIR - (660,222)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand HEWE WMELRREZ
equipment Fir 15 %R 263,253 114,233
Proceed from disposal of investment properties HE & E W% 2 Fii8 5 HE - 7,813,900
Proceed from disposal of intangible assets HEELEEMSHAE 775,400 —
Investment income received BUE B WA 234,869 301,408
Interest received B U F B 136,466 163,027
Net cash used in investing activities WEEHFANIR S FE (46,275,011)| (16,148,177)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEZTENESARE
ACTIVITIES
Bank and other borrowings raised MERTEHEMBER 81,919,863 68,560,958
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERTRAMEE (119,534,346)|  (70,375,452)
Loan from related parties KEBEEB A ZER 80,000,000 70,000,000
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest ina HEMB AR D EZFTEF
subsidiary =18 40(c) 6,359,430 _
Principal elements of lease payments HMENRZAEEHD (4,939,869) (4,424,921)
Interest paid ERHE (1,788,907) (2,188,498)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEHEENR S FE 42,016,171 61,572,087
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH RERBESESEYNTFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CRL &),/ % (6,887,941) 13,278,934
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EX&#® o &
CHANGES 5,074,908 (3,655,246)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—B—-HBZHEER
1 JANUARY ReEEY 56,961,964 47,338,276
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RT+ZA=+—-HZBEK
31 DECEMBER REEEY 55,148,931 56,961,964
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HeERBEESEEN I
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MRITHER 55,148,931 56,961,964




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is Room 02, 26/F, One Harbour
Square, No. 181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, Diamond
State Holdings Limited (“Diamond State”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the immediate
parent and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong is the ultimate controlling
party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“the Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$81,869,887 during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and, as of that date,
the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
HK$69,864,032 and HK$45,189,390 respectively. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. Notwithstanding the above, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis as the directors have given careful
consideration to the impact of the current and anticipated
future liquidity of the Group and are satisfied that:

The borrowing facilities from three of the Group’s related
companies owned by the ultimate controlling party of the
Company and the ultimate controlling party of the Company
for its working capital requirements for the next twelve
months will be available as and when required, having regard
to the following:

(i) Up to the date of the consolidated financial statements
authorised for issue, two of the Group’s related
companies owned by the ultimate controlling party
of the Company agreed to renew and not to demand
for repayment for the borrowings amounting to
approximately HK$106,000,000 and HK$63,328,042
currently included in the current liabilities and non-
current liabilities respectively at 31 December 2020
for at least the next twelve months.

(ii) Undrawn borrowing facilities amounting to
approximately HK$50,000,000 and HK$40,000,000
committed by a related company owned by the
ultimate controlling party of the Company and the
ultimate controlling party of the Company respectively
on 26 March 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB WR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Having taken into account the above, the Directors consider
that the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
meet in full its working capital requirements and financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to classify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material
that states “information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.”
The amendments also clarify that materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information,
in the context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and provide further guidance on how to determine
whether a transaction represents a business
combination. In addition, the amendments introduce
an optional “concentration test” that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is an asset rather than business
acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to transactions for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 January 2020. The Group has elected to apply
the optional concentration test on the acquisition of
rights on an esports team as detailed in note 24 and
concluded that such acquisition does not constitute a
business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EHFHITRKBITBEBUKEHREE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Al (&)

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but (b) EEMERKRERZIHFTRE
not yet effective B ERBKEREER
The Group has not applied any new and revised AEEBEVERZEFEANUTEEME
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet RZEZEF-—A—HRABZVEBRTF
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January ERMRERCHETREBITEASY
2020. These new and revised HKFRSs include the HBMEER  c ZEFTRKEEBITE
following which may be relevant to the Group. B SRS E R R FE AT A g8 B K

SEEMMER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHEHRZ#%
HrzEtHBEXR
Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
EAVBRELAFIHR2ETFTERSHENESER —E_ETF
SNA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and 1 January 2021
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
ERNBHRELRNEIR BEGFEREIN  BEMBMERENETR —E—%—HA—H
ERMNEREENEAR LB BUBEREFNFI6R 2B NETEENE
— FoRE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BB BRELERNEIN BT SELM R —ZE-—-_F—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before 1 January 2022
intended use
ERGHERFICRCBITVME BERRE FREBEANERIE —E-_%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BEAEGEBEIRZEITEREEN — BITEHNHKAE T -#F—HA—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BEAVBREEN T - N\FE_ZT_SFRMANFELRE T —_f—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
BEREHEAFEIRZEBIBEESBARD RS T =%—Hf—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment AEBEEFHEZBET AR E
of what the impact of these amendments and new BRI ERARMNERTYE - &
standards is expected to be in the period of initial SZERBERMZZEETARRIE
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption R RNKATge E 4R & M T R K
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the BEAFE-

consolidated financial statements.

FHEEBRIERARAF 2020 % OB



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 5 ZE —E - FF +-_A=+—RHILt&EE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. investment
properties and certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability
to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

96 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

4.

FTEEHHE
BRTIXEEREBIMEARBEFEZRE
MERETERTRE)SBMREN  ZFK
EMBHRRDBELRNENRE -

AT ABTEMBE RS LR M B HREE
KERETERG Mt TERERE
EEAASESHREBELAE - PR
= B ) T SR A1 2 IS S A A B T R
RELBREMZMBRMM A6 H
A5 E -

REZSHEMBHRERMRAZEEZ A
HEWT e

(a) #EHRE

REMBHRREEARR R EKB
REABET-A=+—BHIEWEHBER
R-MBRAARASEHEER R
tlEZER EAKBERALAE
hEB2EZERMTERRLAE
e N B BOAZEER 2R
THIZEBEE BEASERBZEDN
BT E NEEEREEH(BIHE
BOBREEATENLTY)NAKHE
HZEREEN -

’
kol

W

e
puy:it

Al =

i

ot ﬂ mit
[\YAY

BTG AR R
QB AR BT EAE
EREE BERFERGEES
BARTEE BRI O ER N
THES -

MEARAEZHEEREASE 2
BEAZE AR - B QA £ 2l #
RiEzBBEEFLESEAAR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity
within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners
of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration
transferred is recognised in consolidated profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.
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4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation
currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and

expenses are translated at the exchange

rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

(c) Mg m)

(iii)

FEEBRREZERER D E

= =N OB R

AEBMBEERBUNFEEALRR
RIZANNEETRZEEY
HEBLBBRRGRUT
AREBRAEARAFMEIE
-

—  EMBHRRRZM
AEEAEYRZY
BN EBE 2K TE
ESETE

— HARAMEHER
FHE RN BCE )T
BHERRESERKRE
RHAERFHERZ R
AARE EUBRT
WA AR R 5
BZERN®) &

- FREXEBRHARNHM
EEHBRAEANER LR
SNEETE S R R A o

EHEARAER BB KIgIN
REWEFBEBO 2 EH MR
BELCZEXREZREREME
s AR IR N E
SEETRG; - EHERIE
B MO ELZBERR
FAEBERTPENORRLE
BEz—#D -

WEEINRAIMELENEE
SENVIEEE SRS R (RS
REIZEBEERBIE  WiWKR
EERFLABRE -

2020 F¥k

101



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 5 ZE —E - FF +-_A=+—RHILt&EE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The principal estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvement 2-5 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents plant and
equipment pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the
relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property are stated at fair value, unless
they are still in the course of construction or
development at the end of the reporting period and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that
time.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
property, and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 4(0).

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for

all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHEHE®)
(Continued)
(f) Leases (Continued) (f) #\ME®
(i)  The Group as a lessee (Continued) (i) FEBFERBEABNGE)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
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4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Leases (Continued)
(ii) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Game intellectual properties and licences, game
software, rights on esports team and trademark
acquired separately are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 2 to 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

— FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

— FVTPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

(k)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of loan
receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Loan receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1)

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Group
is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from the manufacturing and
sales of stainless steel furnishings
products

Revenue from the manufacturing and sales of
stainless steel furnishings products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the customers’
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the
customers have full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customers as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from game publishing business
(a) Game publishing service revenue

The Group is a publisher of online games
developed by third-party game developers.
The Group licenses online games from game
developers and earns game publishing service
revenue by making a localized version of
the licensed games and publishing them
to the game players through distribution
platforms, include online application stores
(such as Google Play installed in mobile
telecommunications devices), web-based and
mobile game portals in certain countries and
regions (collectively referred to as “Platforms”),
including the Group’s websites.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from game publishing business
(Continued)

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued)

The games licensed to the Group are operated
under a free-to-play model whereby game
players can play the games free of charge and
are charged for the purchase of virtual tokens
or other virtual items via payment channels,
such as the various mobile carriers and third-
party internet payment systems (collectively
referred to as “payment channels”).

(i) Principal Agent Consideration

Proceeds earned from selling virtual
tokens and other virtual items are
shared between the Group and game
developers, with the amount paid to
game developers generally calculated
based on face value of virtual tokens
or other virtual items determined by
game developers, after deducting
certain deductible fees, multiplied
by a predetermined percentage for
each game. The deductible fees are
predetermined and negotiated game
by game, including the fees paid to the
payment channels and the Platforms, as
well as the credit allowable for deduction
for each game.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHEHE®)
(Continued)
(o) Revenue and other income (Continued) (o) WBERHEMWAE

K E B AT R R 2 ()

Revenue from game publishing business
(Continued)

R TT IR 5 (4B

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a)

(i)

Principal Agent Consideration (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December
2020 there were game license
arrangements under which the Group
takes primary responsibilities of game
operation, including determining
Platforms and payment channels,
providing customer services, hosting
game servers, if needed, and controlling
game and services specifications
and pricing during the license period.
Under this type of game license
arrangement, the Group considered
itself as a principal in this arrangement.
Accordingly, the Group records the
online game revenue from these third-
party licensed game on a gross basis.
Commission fees paid to Platforms and
payment channels and amortisation of
license fees paid to third-party game
developer are recorded as cost of
revenues.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESHHER®)
(Continued)
(o) Revenue and other income (Continued) (o) WBERHEMWAE
Revenue from game publishing business KE B BRTEBER W 25 (&)
(Continued)
(a)  Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (@) HEEEITRE K (E)
(ii) Timing of revenue recognition (ii) W 25 78 R B A
For the purposes of determining when BETERSITRE®RR
services have been provided to the BHERE  NEBCD R
respective players, the Group has SHFEEEBY & &t B
distinguished between consumable HERYDETED

virtual items and durable virtual items:

— Consumable virtual items — HEBEBRD
represent items that are o A2 8 &2 § B Fr
extinguished after consumption T B 7 Bk U ER [E
in the form of fixed charges EERAOEAR
levied on each round of games HEEINBIFE
played. The paying players will B e &I
not continue to benefit from the Rt g T2
virtual items thereafter. Revenue BIS = NE
is recognised when the items are om0 Was TR
consumed. ) &b 3 FE R RE

e

— Durable virtual items represent — i A48 Y S
items that are accessible and EEMNEBITKA
beneficial to paying players over REHRARZ
an extended period of time. BEHYm o W
Revenue is recognised ratably 7 15 B B A T
over the average life of durable REEHRY D
virtual items for the applicable 15 ] A B BR (H
game, which the Group makes BAEERNE
best estimates to be average DU I #E Bk A T
playing period of paying players 5 1% 8% B S AT 1E
(“Player Relationship Period”). B &= & EH (3

REBEBAD A
B OIHER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHEHE®)
(Continued)
(o) Revenue and other income (Continued) (o) WBERHEMWAE

K E B AT R R 2 ()

Revenue from game publishing business
(Continued)

R TT IR 5 (4B

(a) Game publishing service revenue (Continued) (a)

(if)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group estimates the Player
Relationship Period on a game-by-game
basis and reassesses such periods
semi-annually. If there is insufficient data
to determine the Player Relationship
Period, such as in the case of a newly
launched game, it estimates the Player
Relationship Period based on other
similar types of games developed by
the Group or by third-party developers
until the new game establishes its
own patterns and history. The Group
considers the games profile, target
audience, and its appeal to players
of different demographics groups in
estimating the Player Relationship
Period.

If the Group does not have the ability
to differentiate revenue attributable to
durable virtual items from consumable
virtual items for a specific game, the
Group recognises revenue from both
durable and consumable virtual items
for that game ratably over the Player
Relationship Period.

(if)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFEHE®W
(Continued)
(o) Revenue and other income (Continued) (o) WBERHEMWAE

Revenue from game publishing business KE B BRTEBER W 25 (&)

(Continued)

(b)  Royalty income b))  EFEEKA
The Group receives royalty income from third- AEEBEERES = HFIWER
party licensee in exchange for the exclusive BREBWA - AZBREER
operation of the Group’s licensed games ETHWEERELAEEHD
in certain region. The royalty fee includes a BEEE ZANEEERE
monthly minimum fee and an additional fee AREER LG EEBRH
during the contracted license period, which is WEINER MEXRE AR
determined based on an agreed percentage BEAKEKER  RIFEININEA
of sales of the licensee when it exceeds the RFEEFFRAZH SN
monthly minimum fee in that month. The ETEOLET SAXKEKEA
monthly minimum fee is recognised ratably over RENRERBIZLOI#ER -
the contracted license period. The additional HONERNEE BN EFFAA
fee is recognised when the actual agreed ZHEENEBRBEBRD LR
percentage of sales of the licensee exceeds EARBHEBAREERR
the agreed monthly minimum fee in that month. R o

(c) Contract liabilities and contract costs (c) BRIBERELIK L
For game publishing service revenues, contract RERBFTRBERAETS
liabilities primarily consist of the unamortised BREBEFEREREHEEN
revenue from sales of virtual tokens and virtual ERiCHSE Fid Al Eae
items for web-based games and mobile games, MR EBY M2 AR
where there is still an implied obligation to be MAEBEEEREDERS
provided by the Group and will be recognised BEHEREZEDR BE
as revenue when all of the revenue recognition FrElR = BRIEER - &1
criteria are met. MR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from game publishing business
(Continued)

()

Contract liabilities and contract costs
(Continued)

Contract costs are mainly related to contract
acquisition costs, which primarily consist of
unamortised commission costs charged by
distribution platforms. The Group recognises
contract costs in relation to commission
charged by distribution platforms, which
meet contract acquisition cost criteria as an
incremental cost of acquiring a customer
contract. They are capitalised as contract
acquisition costs and amortised over their
respective Player Relationship Periods, which
is consistent with the pattern of recognition of
the associated revenue.

Revenue from esports business

@)

®)

Merit awards for esports competitions

The payments to merit awards for esports
competitions based on final position and
performance are variable consideration as
they are contingent on achieving certain
performance goals. Such merit payments are
recognised over time over the season at an
amount that is highly probable of not being
reversed when the uncertainty is resolved.

Live streaming

Live streaming revenue are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the contractual term of
the agreement.

4. FESTEHER®HE)

(o) WzEREAMBAUE
K E B AT R R 2 ()

()

AR ERENKKE

B HYPAR E BRI B A
AEE MeETERED Y
FEMBROFREHAE o A
FERSBTAUDHES
BRAORA - TRERAE
BEARE S KK EERA
SEPRNE N OL TR
HERAE AR B A DY
AR 3 B B 0 T R BB 4R
CE TR PN
BRB -

K E & F i % # 5 5 #

@

®)

FEEBRREZERER D E

EFHRILBELNEELE

HRAREZEBZRIAERAX
NEFBRLEEREERIUR
RERETRERE  &AH
ENERERNE - ARAERER
REARBEFTRERBE®RR &
THRERZDHERNBERLT -
TRRAAENERED -

=

REI-EHEEEUANERERG
FANFEHMARER -

2020 F3f

119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —F —FTF +—_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)
(ii)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the
liability (asset) recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation less
the fair value of plan assets. When there is
a surplus in a defined benefit plan, the net
defined benefit asset is measured at the lower
of the surplus in the defined benefit plan and
the asset ceiling. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension obligation. If there is no deep market
in such bonds, the market rates on government
bonds denominated in that currency are used.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability (asset) — which include actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset)), and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset)) — are recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. Service costs and net interest
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o

4.

SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
However, if the Group remeasures the net
defined benefit liability or asset before plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, the
Group determines net interest for the remainder
of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using
the benefits offered under the plan and the plan
assets after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement and the discount rate used to
remeasure such net defined benefit liability or
asset, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability or asset during the
period resulting from contributions or benefit
payments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits,
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions)
of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants
are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or, if the fair value of the services rendered
cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted. The fair value is measured
at the date the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.
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e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 5 ZE —E - FF +-_A=+—RHILt&EE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for
such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. If this
is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit.
Present values are computed using pre-tax discount
rates that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit whose
impairment is being measured.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit and
then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates
are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease
receivables, trade receivables and contract assets.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value
of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —F —FTF +—_A=+—HIFE

4. FESTEHER®HE)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses
that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate
to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —F —FTF +—_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(ii) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past

due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure
includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting
date, together with any additional amounts expected
to be drawn down in the future by default date
determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash
flows used for determining the expected credit losses
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring
the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
4. FEEFEHE®W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
is remote.

(v)

(w)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).

(i) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends upon the financial
support of the two related companies at a
level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group. Details are
explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE — T —_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Distinction between investment
properties and owner-occupied
properties

Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals and another portion that
is held for use in the production of goods.
If these portions can be sold separately (or
leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions cannot be sold separately,
the property is accounted for as investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production of goods. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a)

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax for investment
properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group’s deferred tax for
investment properties, the directors have
adopted the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered through sale.

Consolidation of entity with less
than 50% equity interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of
the equity interest in Cubizone Interactive
(Thailand) Co., Ltd, Cubizone Philippine
Corporation and Cubinet Interactive Philippines
Corporation, these entities are treated as
subsidiaries because the Group is able to
control the relevant activities of these entities
as a result of the shareholders’ agreements
between the Group and other shareholders of
these entities.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime
ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a
significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information.

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that include
renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising
the renewal options taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive for the Group to
exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the
Group’s operation.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the current financial year, no lease term
has been reassessed.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Estimates of the Player Relationship
Period for game publishing business

As described in Note 4(o), the Group
recognises revenue from durable virtual items
ratably over the Player Relationship Period. The
determination of Player Relationship Period
in each game is based on the Group’s best
estimate that takes into account all known and
relevant information at the time of assessment.
Such estimates are subject to re-evaluation on
a semi-annual basis. Any adjustments arising
from changes in the Player Relationship Period
as a result of new information will be accounted
for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate.

Revenue recognition for game
publishing business

Pursuant to game publishing and operation
arrangements signed between the Group and
the third-party game developers or Platforms,
the Group’s responsibilities in publishing
and operating the licensed games vary for
each game. The determination of whether
to record these revenues using gross or net
basis is based on an assessment of various
factors, including but not limited to whether
the Group (i) is the primary obligor to the
game developers and game players in the
arrangements; (i) has latitude in establishing
the selling price of virtual items; (iii) changes
the products or performs part of the services;
(iv) has involvement in the determination of
product and service specifications; and (v) has
the right to determine secondary Platforms.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period, that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,

are discussed below.

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that
(2) whether the

carrying value of an asset can be supported by

may affect the asset value;

the recoverable amount, in the case of value in
use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

()

(ii)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Further, the cash flows projections, growth
rate and discount rate are subject to greater
uncertainties in the current year due to
uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve and volatility
in financial markets, including potential
disruptions in the Group’s manufacturing
operations.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2020 were HK$8,575,540 (2019:
HK$11,515,065) and HK$11,809,411 (2019:
HK$12,529,460) respectively.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less
than the expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision
of discount rate, a material impairment loss or
further impairment loss may arise.

142 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

EEHEHREEMET )

HFTRAPREE 2 T ERR )

(i)

(ii)

i EE R E ()

AN - B RTER  ERER
MAERAFEXIEKRT
MEMWEZE  HIHEREH
BRERBHERIEERBR
WAEEEA R SR TSD
KBMUEME BREAEER
EXRBHEBEETE -

RZEZZTF+_A=+—H -
W - WERERELRSE AR
ZERMEED R /8,575,540
B (ZE — % 11,515,065
& Jt) &11,809,4117%8 T (= &
— N5 112,529,460 L) °

5 & 79 6l 15

ERAEBHERSERER
FELHABEIBE RS
ELXEMMEREE - £/
EEMTEFTEARAKE MG
BBReELEMEMNME
EMARRBEERENEEN
MAZUFERE - HEE
BAKRBESREBRREY
HABEERBABEEZ L
BHARKASRETHHLR
REEHR RAKELEERX
BB B IR Bk — R E B 18 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of goodwill (Continued)

Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and
discount rate are subject to higher degree of
estimation uncertainties in the current year due
to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve and volatility in
financial markets.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was HK$2,982,214
(2019: HK$10,982,214) after an impairment
loss of HK$8,000,000 (2019: HK$5,500,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of
the impairment loss calculation are provided
in note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

Determining whether intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating unit to which intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The carrying amount
of intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives at the end of the reporting period was
HK$499,999 (2019: HK$499,999).
the impairment loss calculation are provided

Details of

in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv)

v)

Recoverability of game intellectual
properties and licenses

The Group tests whether game intellectual
properties and licenses suffered any
impairment every six months and whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Judgement is required to identify
any impairment indicators existing for any of
the Group’s game intellectual properties and
licenses, i.e. the remaining period of licensed
games, the performance of those launched
games and etc. If there is a significant adverse
change in the games’ performance, it may be
necessary to take additional impairment charge
to the profit or loss.

The carrying amount of game intellectual
properties and licenses at the end of the
reporting period was HK$24,620,197 (2019:
HK$6,358,033).

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
the investment properties. In determining the
fair value, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation and
inputs used are reflective of the current market
conditions.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

Whilst the Group considers valuations of the
Group’s investment properties are the best
estimates, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic
has resulted in greater market volatility
depending on how the COVID-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve, which have led to
high degree of uncertainties in respect of the
valuations in the current year.

The carrying amount of investment properties
as at 31 December 2020 was HK$23,389,782
(2019: HK$24,540,315).

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
receivables based on the credit risk of trade
receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(vi)

Impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered
by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is higher risk that a prolonged
pandemic could lead to increased credit default
rates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note
6(b).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of trade receivables is HK$13,307,468 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$2,434,883)
(2019: HK$25,874,427 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$2,400,186)).

(vii) Allowance for slow-moving

inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back
in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

As at 31 December 2020, allowance for slow-
moving inventories amounted to approximately
HK$4,106,000 (2019: HK$3,845,000).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EEYEREEMLT®E
ESTIMATES (Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) MEETHABERZEZEZEREE)
(Continued)

(viii) 5RE %5 FI B tk £ &1 B 89 &

(viii) Actuarial assumptions on defined

benefit retirement plans

Accounting for defined benefit plans may
be complex because actuarial assumptions
are required to measure the obligation and
the expense, with the possibility that actual
results differ from the assumed results. These
differences are known as actuarial gains
and losses. Defined benefit obligations are
measured using the Projected Unit Credit
Method (PUCM), according to which the Group
has to make a reliable estimate of the amount
of benefits earned in return for services
rendered in current and prior periods, using
actuarial techniques. In addition, in cases
where defined benefit plans are funded, the
Group has to estimate the fair value of plan
assets. As a result, the use of the PUCM
involves a number of actuarial assumptions.
These assumptions include demographic
assumptions such as mortality, turnover and
retirement age and financial assumptions such
as discount rates, salary and benefit levels.
Such assumptions are subject to judgements
and may develop materially differently than
expected and therefore may result in significant
impacts on defined benefit obligations.

The carrying amount of retirement benefit
obligations as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$555,558 (2019: HK$606,060).

EEX
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P35 B B0l 88 A &8 T
12 AR 75 T B 18 A &
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HERZREEADGSERR (A0
TR BHRERERKFR
Ko 75 R AR (a0 B3R = - F B
RBHKE) - ZERR IR
FIE - AREEBHMEREX
Z2 0 FHib - AT Y R EARRF
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HKD, United
States dollars (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Malaysia
Ringgit (“MYR”), Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) and Thai
Baht (THB”). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if the HKD had weakened 5
per cent against RMB with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year
would have been HK$1,526,000 (2019: HK$512,000)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on cash and bank balances and other
receivables denominated in RMB. If the HKD had
strengthened 5 per cent against RMB with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax
for the year would have been HK$1,526,000 (2019:
HK$512,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange loss on cash and bank balances
and other receivables denominated in RMB.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with acceptable credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

6. HEERERW®

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. B3 R b B ()

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) ERARREE
Trade receivables (Continued) EREZR (&)

The following table provides information about the TREVNEBEHEAEBRR _Z_ZTF
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade TZAZT—BZEKRESEZRNE

receivables as at 31 December 2020: AR EEHEEBBRZER:

2020
it g 23
Household products and property investment Game publishing Esports Total
FEERRNERE ERRS ETEK @t

Expected loss Gross carrying Loss Expected loss Gross carrying Loss Expected loss Gross carrying Loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance rate amount allowance rate amount allowance amount allowance
RHEEE REAE BERE EEEEEZ REAE BERE EEEEEZ REAE BERE REAR BERR
% HK$ HK$ % HK$ HK$ % HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
% B BT % B b % B BT B b
0-30 days 0£30K 0% 162,028 - 45% 1,587,379 (715,402) 0% 216,313 - 1,965,720 (715,402)
31-60 days 31260K 0% 264,251 - 64% 420,848 (270,159) 0% 1,031,817 - 1,716,916 (270,159)
61-90 days 61290% 0% - - 64% 448,812 (288,110) 0% 8,142,580 - 8,591,392 (288,110)
91-120 days 91E120K 0% - - 60% 319,635 (193,040) 0% 1,612,804 - 1,932,439 (193,040)
121-150 days 1212150 0% - - 64% 279,079 (179,152) 0% 27,687 - 306,766 (179,152)
151-365days ~ 151%365K 0% - - 64% 1,229,118 (789,020) 0% - - 1,229,118 (789,020)
Over 1 year £ 0% - - 0% - - 0% - - - -
426,219 - 4084871 (2,434,889) 11,081,201 - 15742351 (2,434,889
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HEERBREREG®E
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EHERE
Trade receivables (Continued) EREZR (&)
2019
“F-NE
Household products and
property investment Game publishing Total
FEEMRNERE BT &3
Gross Gross Gross

Expected carrying Loss  Expected carrying Loss carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance loss rate amount  allowance amount  allowance
BEBEX BELE FEEE BIERX KELE FREE KREEE BERE
% HK$ HK$ % HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
% e B % BT BT BT BT
0-30 days 0£30K 0% 21,639,386 - 23% 1,247,712 (291,770) 22,887,098  (291,770)
31-60 days 31Z60K 0% 157,806 - 1% 1,626,487  (660,680) 1,784,293 (660,680)
61-90 days 61290K 0% 71,625 - 7% 206 (157) 71,730 (157)
91-120 days 912120K 0% - - 0% - - - -
121-150 days 121£150K% 0% - - 0% - - - -
151-365 days 1512365% 0% - - 4% 2,733924  (1,110,655) 2,733,924 (1,110,655
Over 1 year 1E F 0% - - 42% 797,568 (336,924) 797,568  (336,924)
21,868,717 - 6,405,896  (2,400,186) 28,274,613  (2,400,186)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past two years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

EHEREZBEAMFEFNERER
AT E - WHELRTIMIAAE - A
RERFEEBE BB RHENLENRR -
B AT AR R R AR & B B e U R R TR )
FEHANEERAZBER 2B ZE
8o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MEEkREE®E

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

=RERE)
FE W & 5 B 5 ()

FR EREZEZIOBERES
ghanr

2020 2019
= —FNF
HK$ HK$
& T T

At 1 January n—H—H
Impairment losses recognised for the year 4 R #E R 2 B E & 1B
Reversal o

Exchange differences e H =58

At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H”

There are no significant changes in the loss allowance
during 2020.

Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group’s investments at amortised cost
are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore
limited to 12-month expected losses. Instruments are
considered to be low credit risk when they have a low
risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost

(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost include deposits,

other receivables and prepayments and loan
receivables and interest receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets at

6. HEERERW®
(b) EAERKE
BEBEEARIN R 2@ EE (&)

HEERAIRZEREERRR
T E MR WRIE R IEN RIRNA K&

& W B R K ORI B,

FRRBERAINEZECREER

amortised cost during the year is as follows: BEB2EHBERNOT:
Loan
Deposits, other receivables
receivables and and interest
prepayments receivables Total
Re HttEW EREHK
NERERALE FE W F £ Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019 W-E-h%E—-A—H (1,567,672) (1,537,981) (3,105,653)
Impairment losses recognised FARRZREER
for the year (705,643) (6,270,766) (6,976,409)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NF+ZA
1 January 2020 =+—-BRZZZZF
-A—AH (2,273,315) (7,808,747) (10,082,062)
Impairment losses recognised FARRBZAEEE
for the year (3,489,299) (1,300,000) (4,789,299)
Reversal i 1,567,672 - 1,567,672
At 31 December 2020 RZBEZZF+_A
=+—~ (4,194,942) (9,108,747) (13,303,689)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates

6. HEERERW®W
(c) "BELEAR

AEBENBRRREHMEEBEMKLE
HRBELER UERELZFR
RECHE UWREBREEHEEH

MRBEERE -

UTHMERBIRNBEREREAE

I F R R

BHRTHaONHEHE

FHEM SR E(BE LA BRIRR (1
T B) 1R 15 5 4R 25 0 A R B B R K 5t

or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the EMMEZMERAEBRZTEZND
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can =EHE -
be required to pay.
2020
Maturity Analysis = Undiscounted cash outflows
ZEIRE
HEADN - ARERER
More than ~ More than Total
1yearbut  2years but undiscounted
Within less than less than ~ More than cash
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years outflows
-FH0E MEN L AERS
REX -EHR BOREE  BOREF BENE REEE
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
B B B B B B
Trade payables ESEVET - 5,134,462 - - - 5,134,462
Lease liabilties HEsk - 4,253,757 4,995,252 - - 9,249,009
Loan from related parties REBE®H 8 - 111,650,000 71,050,000 - - 182,700,000
Other payables and accruals HERFER
iR - 19,183,711 - - - 79,183,711
- 200,221,930 76,045,252 - - 216,267,182
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

6.

B 5 L B B R ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) "BEZRAMKEE)
2019
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
ZE0E
HBAAT - AFERS R
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years hut undiscounted
Within less than less than More than cash
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years outflows
—FHE AENE ATERS
REX “Eir BORME EIREE BENE kA
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
B B B B B B
Trade payables ERBSER - 10,334,445 - - - 10,334,445
Lease liabilties HEeR - 5,308,180 2,440,345 1,844,916 - 9,500,441
Loan from related parties REEH S 283 - 9,000,046 31,650,000 71,050,000 - 112,000,046
Other payables and accruals AERFER
iR - 40,433,382 - - - 40,433,382
Bank borrowings RITEE - 42182623 - - - 42,182,623
- 107,583,676 34,092,345 72,894,916 - 214,540,937
Interest rate risk (d) FI=Z B

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk primarily
relates to its bank deposits, loan receivables, bank
borrowings, loan from related companies and other
payables that are interest bearing.

The Group’s bank deposits bear interests at variable
rates that vary with the then prevailing market
condition.

The Group’s loan receivables bear interests at fixed
rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group’s bank borrowings, loan from related
parties and other payables of approximately
HK$Nil (2019: HK$41,416,000), approximately
HK$169,328,042 (2019: HK$93,328,042) and
approximately HK$10,850,000 (2019: HK$4,390,000)
respectively bear interests at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

AEBEZRSRENERREIESR
MERTHER BERER  RITE
B -RKEBEBARZERNKEMG
B R o

AEBZROTFEARBER Z2MS
ARRBTRFRFE -

AEEZ BEEFIZEEN KGR
BAEEEEASENERR -

AEBZRITEES  RE@BAD
EXRREMERNREIRNNATE
7T (= F — 7L : 41,416,000 7T)
#9169,328,042% T(= & — N F:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

B iR e ()

Interest rate risk (Continued) (d) F=ZmEBE
At 31 December 2020, if interest rates had been RZZEZZEF+ZA=+—H "
100 basis points lower with all other variables held & T BE100ME E 2 - HFr B &
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year HREFETE  FREGKRBERBE
would have been approximately HK$180,000 (2019: 7% 1% HN 49180,000/8 7L (Z T — N F -
HK$122,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of lower 122,000 70) T EZH R RITHF K
interest income on bank deposits. If interest rates had BF B A R D2 FEME - W7
been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables % AH00ME E 26 - Efth B & &
held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year REFIE FAGREHBRMEERS
would have been approximately HK$180,000 (2019: W L 49180,0007%8 L (Z T — N F -
HK$122,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of higher 122,000 7T) - EEHRRITHFHA
interest income on bank deposits. FEWAIE I 2 BT -
Categories of financial instruments at (e) WM+=-ZBA=+—Hz€®IA
31 December Al
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: cREE:
Financial assets measured at REENARETEZ
amortised cost TREE 102,068,738 | 108,038,785
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: RARBEFAEMEER S
ZEBMBEE:
— Equity instruments — RETH - 2,059,000
Financial liabilities: sRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHKATEZ SR BME| 231,836,262 | 193,153,306
Fair values f) 2an

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —F —FTF +—_A=+—HIFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

7.

AREFE

ARERTH2EERFEARETZE
FREFHEEEMRMIEZEEMS
NZER -UTAREFEREERNQ
REEAGBRFAEANENRERMZ
2EHR=ZERBR:

FIER2E: AEERFEAHGEH
HREEXBBZ AR
MHERE(REHE) -

FoRZEZ2E: FIEAMBEZIHMEN
S BEEEIHEENEE
SBEABRRZH -

FIEHEZ2H: BEXABZIIAAER
28
AEBNBRRERDRERZEB ZEHHM

MEBREHEAERA =EERTOEMH
—EERNEAREL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Disclosures of level in fair value
hierarchy at 31 December 2020:

Fair value measurements using: Total
ARESFEFANER: At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
EH F1BR HF2E R $EIBH g 33
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Recurring fair value REMAABTE:
measurements:
Investment properties REN%E
Office units — Malaysia MREN — FRAEDR - - 23,389,782 23,389,782
Fair value measurements using: Total
RAEGERANER: @t
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
AR F1ER F2E R IR —F-NF
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Recurring fair value REMDABTE
measurements:
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRAAEFAEB2EE
LERMEE
Unlisted equity securities FEETRAES - 2,059,000 - 2,059,000
Investment properties REME
Office units — Malaysia MREM — FRAER - - 24,540,315 24,540,315
Total @it - 2,059,000 24,540,315 26,599,315
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —_E —_ZEF+ _A=+—HItFE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREFTEE
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b) REFEIBMRRAAEBTEN
fair value based on level 3: EEYHER:
2020
Description Total
ZE-EE
BR Fay
Investment
Properties
HKS$
BT
At 1 January 2020 N—T-_FEF—H—H 24,540,315
Total gains or losses recognised EREEER W EL
in profit or loss (#) BEEE® (1,490,726)
Exchange difference fE 3 =58 340,193
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZF+_HA
=+—H 23,389,782
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held at end of #HEFERFERRMEFEEENREKE
reporting period B (1,490,726)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREFEE
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b) ﬁﬁ%mﬁ' ?;z RAETEN
fair value based on level 3: (Continued) BEEYHER:
Financial
assets at
FVTOCI —
unlisted
equity Investment 2019
Description securities properties Total
/NG|
EPAEAM
FEHKHEZ
— LM —NEF
HE R % BEME mEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT ST
At 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—HA—H 3,869,996 31,155,580 35,025,576
Total gains or losses recognised EREZERZWERK
in profit or loss (#) BEEE#H - 1,081,328 1,081,328
Disposal of investment properties HEREWE - (7,813,900) (7,813,900)
Transfers out of Level 3 BEEREL (3,869,996) - (3,869,996)
Exchange difference fE 5 =5 — 117,307 117,307
At 31 December 2019 —T-NAE+ZA
=+—H - 24,540,315 24,540,315
(#) Include gains or losses for assets #H BRERBSHRMER
held at end of reporting period BEMRZENERE — 567,428 567,428
For the year ended 31 December 2019, financial REE_FT-—NFT_A=T—BLEFE"

assets at FVTOCI amounting to HK$3,869,996 were
transferred from measurement based on Level 3 to
Level 2 as a result of there was a transaction of the
unlisted equity securities close to the end of the year
as market comparable.

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in fair value
changes of equity instrument at FVTOCI in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at end of reporting
period are presented in other operating expenses
(2019: other income) in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements
at 31 December 2020:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the Board of Directors at least

twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

— Floor level difference (estimated based on
actual data)

— Size difference (estimated based on actual
data)

— Time difference (estimated based on Property
Guru Malaysia Property Market Index)

— Location difference (estimated based on
valuation experts’ in-house database)

7. 2QAREFTFE®E
(c) R=EB=_FF+=-HA=+—H
rEERFEANGERRFRAD
Juﬁ‘fiﬁﬁ?‘"ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ&

SENIRE

$‘$@E’Jﬁ7ﬁ‘ﬂ' ERARYBEHRE
ETHENEERBBZANESR
EBREEERLANEFE) MK
BERZSELANEAEEERNES
CER VHREHEEEEEFE
PR wmEERTFREBER

ILESERANEFEMS AKH
HBEEFEARERTEXRERRK
SATETTHELR ZIIBHEER

EIEMARNEFEMRANTIER

ABR2HEIER:

— BEZRZ(ERERHEB 2
=)

— HEZEZERERHE 2
=)

— B = £ (E W Property Guru
Malaysia Property Market
Index fi 1)

— NEEZEERHEERNE
EHIE B A 5T

FEHEEERRERERAF 2020 F#R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ISR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements
at 31 December 2020: (Continued)

7. DREFEH)

(c)

R=—ZB-_FF+=-A=1+—H
AEBEREANGEERFRD
SUE B AT ER A R E SR
SRHEE: (8

Level 2 fair value measurements F2BRA A EE
Fair value
DS fE
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2020 2019
EHA {8 9 2% —EZEHF —E-NEF
HK$ HK$
B 7T BT
Financial assets at FVTOCI  Market comparable Market prices Not 2,059,000
— Unlisted equity approach applicable
securities
RAABEFAEMEE 3% Lt 8O 5 E 1% T8 A 2,059,000
— FELETRAEFH
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e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREFTEM®H

Disclosure of valuation process used by (c)
the Group and valuation techniques and

inputs used in fair value measurements

at 31 December 2020: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

R-Z2-Z2F+=-A=+—H
rAEERERANGEREFRR
JLE‘TEFM“’FHE’MEEH?H‘E&
2HNHE

FEIERLA A EE

Effect on
fair value for

Valuation Unobservable increase of
Description technique inputs Range inputs Fair value
SEEMBEALE
BB fEER TARESH gE 2 DB
2020 2019
ZEZZE | ZEZ-NF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Investment property Market comparable  Time difference -4.6% to -1% (2019: 0%) Increase 23,389,782 | 24,540,315
— Commercial building located  approach
in the Malaysia
RENE -URSRATZ  THLRE REZE -46%F1% (ZE—NE:0%) i
BERE
Location difference 0% to 5% (2019: 0% to 5%) Increase
frEz2 0%ZE5% (ZZ—NLEF : 0%Z5%) i
Floor level difference  -3% to 3.5% (2019: -4% to 3%) Increase
BEZR -3%ZE-35% (ZE-NF:-4%E3%) £
Size difference -3.3% 10 -2.1% (2019: -2%) Increase
AEZR -33%E-21% (ZF—NEF:-2%) bl

During the two years, there were no changes in the
valuation techniques used for investment properties.

For equity investment classified as financial assets at
FVTOCI, the valuation technique used was changed
from market approach to market comparable
approach for the year ended 31 December 2019.

RREFER REVEMAEBZ
fAER M E L& -

RBE-ZF-AF+-_A=+—HL
FE -BRODB/EINEFAH
feEmias s SMEENRERE -
PR EED ZAMEEANRR™
BHBOE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE

8. REVENUE 8. W=
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a) UWz=EA#4H
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with AEERFEZEEMIRBEE 2
customers by major products or service line for the EPEXHWEPEMANT :
year is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZET-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEHREEDE155
customers within the scope of EERAZEFAHNWE
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products or service &+ Z & @k R% & 3 5
lines 2 BR 4H
— Household products — RIEEm 145,453,186 | 182,810,198
— Game publishing — BERLE AT 23,055,819 44,028,950
— Esports — BFHE 13,536,813 —

182,045,818 226,839,148

Revenue from other sources H 3R OR U 2=
Rental income from investment properties 1RE&EME 2L KA 1,401,650 1,463,058
Interest income from money lending ME R 2 F B WA

business 2,916,057 5,264,445

186,363,525 233,566,651
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. W& #®)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) W==EAM(E)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of AEERZUTEFZEERBRRMEE
goods and services over time and at a point in time KEERE - HHEBEEZE D LR
in the following major product lines and geographical TEE AW
regions:
Household products Game publishing Property investment Money lending Esports Total
REER i £301 LESY it B8k @i
For the year ended 31 December HEt-A=1-H 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 019 2020 019 2020 019 2020 2019
8354 IRIRE | RN | C9CRF | CEAR | 28R | CRNF | CR08F | CENE | C%IRF | S0 | C30%F | CROMA
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
-3 g A1 g A1 g 1 AT B AT b3 o
Primary geographical markets TEHETR
- Hong Kong -5k 100,720,206 | 155,785,475 - - - 57,900 2,916,057 5,064,445 - - | 103,636,358 | 161,107,820
- PRC except Hong Kong - pE(FREER) 44,732,890 27,024723 - - - - - - | 13,191,932 - | 57,924,822 27,024,723
~ Eastand South East Asia -RERRED - - | 2305819 | 44008950 | 1400650 | 1405158 - - - - | 24457469 | 45434108
- Other - it - - - - - - - - 344,881 - 344,881 -
Segment revenue PELE 145,453,186 | 182810198 | 23,065,819 441028950 1,401,650 1,463,058 2,916,057 5,064,445 13,536,813 - | 186,363,525 | 233,566,651
Intersegment revenue FERNE - - - - - - - - - - - -
Revenue from external customers RENIRE NS 145,453,186 | 182.810,198 | 23,095819 | 44028950 1,401,650 1,463,058 2,016,057 5264445 | 13,536,813 - | 186,363,525 | 233,566,651
Timing of revenue recognition HEEIRE
Products transferred at a point n time ERRE-BRYEY 145,453,186 | 162,810,198 - - - - - - 377,015 - | 145,830,201 | 182,810,198
Products and senvices transferred ERRRBRERRES
over fime - - | 23,065,819 44,028,950 1,401,650 1,463,058 2,916,067 5264445 | 13,159,798 - | 40,533,524 50,756,453
Total & 145,453,186 | 182810198 | 23,085,819 44,028,950 1,401,650 1,463,058 2,916,067 5264445 | 13,536,813 - | 186,363,525 | 233,566,651
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e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_ZTZFE+-_A=+—HILEE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hug A
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT 78 T

Bank interest income RITH B U A 136,466 163,027

Government grants (Note) KT v B (B 7E) 1,296,602 36,386

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BMEREZBE W=

equipment 298,213 5,716

Exchange gain P 5, I 2= - 2,435,532

Fair value gain on investment properties KEWMEAALBEWZE - 1,081,328

Investment income BERA 234,869 301,559

Gain on lease modification MEEBT s 4,575 -

Gain on disposal of an intangible asset HEEREEE 2 HE 4,827,284 —

Gain on bargain purchase HERBERR 455,616 -

Reversal of written off of other receivables H b fE WL SRIB M SE 2 B D 1,377,740 —

Performance bonus BEMAIEAT - 1,800,000

Written off of deferred revenue 8 IR IE N = 2,401,419 —

Others Hb 338,062 65,287

11,370,846 5,888,835

Note:  Government grants mainly related to the subsidy received from the e BEZBMEFZHEFRAEE 2K E T BT
local government authority for the achievements of the Group of A8 W B 2 # Bh133,6068 T E R - RAFE -
HK$133,606. During the year, the Group recognised government AEBEBERMF RSB EB R ERS
grants of HK$1,162,996 in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies, of 1,162,996/ jt * E 957,730 T N & B
which HK$957,730 relates to Employment Support Scheme provided BT RERMESTE -
by the Hong Kong government.

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. o HER

The Group has five (2019: four) major operating segments as AEBZACE-NF MWEFXELED

follows: AT :

Esports — participating in esports BEFFEE — ZNEFHBLE-
competitions, streaming and MEBEMIZHEERS R
marketing event, and merchandise & o iH &
sales

Game publishing — marketing and operation of mobile WRLETT 2 — HEREEFHREBLE
games and computer games ik %% 18K

Household products — manufacture and sale of stainless REEM — HERHEHETHFMHRER
steel furnishings and home EN N
products

Money lending — interest income from money A& — MEEB2AEHA
lending business

Property investment — rental income from investment MEKRE — BEDEZHSKA

properties

1 66 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. o HER @)
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business AEBZARBRSHFRBRETRE®MRER
units that offer different products and services. They are 2R EEN - EEI REDHBTE
managed separately because each business requires RFMETSERRE  HSUBRED T
different technology and marketing strategies. BB B -
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the BN BT KBRS M REM ?
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated 4FﬁL%$ﬁ BenHEZEILTBEBERD
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not BMEKEAARRDBECERARMAX -
include unallocated finance cost and unallocated corporate HEEY ABERDEZS - HMEWK
income and expenses. Segment assets do not include BERENRE - AOEHRE RIBTEBHIA
unallocated deposits, other receivables and prepayments, MADEEMDEEE o
unallocated cash and bank balances and unallocated other
corporate assets.
Information about operating segment profit FRERET HERREEZER:
or loss and assets:
Game  Household Money Property
Esports  publishing products lending investment Total
ETHRE  EEERA 5EER HE  WERE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B B B
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-B-FE1CR
Zt-BLEE
Revenue from external customers RENSRE 2 W 13,536,813 23,055,819 145453,186 2,916,057 1,401,650 186,363,525
Intersegment revenue PHENE - - - - - -
Segment loss ﬁﬁﬁfgﬁ | (11,163,273)  (45,960,457)  (6,880,086) (517,895) (101,488)  (64,623,199)
Interest revenue =Y € 3,868 712 131,869 - - 136,449
Interest expense B8RS - (70,042)  (1,965,793) (2,593) - (2,038,428)
Depreciation and amortisation TERBH (2,681,723) (11,159,948)  (4,259,715)  (376,269) (90,310) (18,567,965
Income tax credit/{expense) FERES/(F3) - (133,828)  (635,948) 12,529 (130,265  (887,512)
Additions to segment non-current assets ~ RE A HERHEE 26,582,525 16,426,189 153,228 - - 43,161,042
Other material non-cash item: AtEAERLER:
— Impairment of goodwil - BHEHE - (8,000,000) - - - (8,000,000)
— Impairment of assets - EERNE - (3,488,596) - (1,300,000 - (4,788,596)
— Net fair value loss on investment -RENELABIER
properties - - - - (1,490,726)  (1,490,726)
As at 31 December 2020 R=B-2£+-B=1-R
Segment assets NHEE 60,344,569 57,905,438 55,603,004 12,527,730 23,389,782 209,770,523
FEEERRIERERAA 2020 F i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. o HER @)
Information about operating segment profit FRAREPHERREEZER:
or loss and assets: (Continued) (%)
Game  Household Money Property
publishing products lending  investment Total
ERET FEE® WE  DERE @i
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZ-NE+-A=1+—H
HEE
Revenue from external customers RENBEP 2= 44,028,950 182,810,198 5,264,445 1,463,058 233,566,651
Intersegment revenue SRk E - - — _ _
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/(FB) (71,433,720) (1,460,212) (4,088,283) 1,822,468 (75,159,747)
Interest revenue FlEM & 3,572 159,240 - - 162,812
Interest expense MERX (78,156)  (2,505,370) (37,909) - (2,621,435)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE (1,333,696)  (2,353,002) (58,831) —  (3,745,529)
Income tax expense ERREX (117,573)  (3,100,100) - (44,589)  (3,262,262)
Additions to segment non-current assets AENDBERDEE 1,843,300 723,379 - — 2,566,679
Other material non-cash item: HpEAEREEER:
— Impairment of goodwil - HERE (5,500,000) - - - (5,500,000)
— Impairment of assets - BERE (5,324,106) —  (6,976,409) — (12,300,515)
— Net fair value gains on investment - RENEANE
properties & - - — 1,081,328 1,081,328
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NFTZA
=t+-H
Segment assets NEEE 59,004,824 79,883,917 20,321,697 24,540,315 183,840,753
Reconciliations of segment revenue and B ERERZHER:
profit or loss:
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-AF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue U &
Total revenue of reportable segments Al AR 22 B S 186,363,525 | 233,566,651
Elimination of intersegment revenue HiH o B E = - —
Consolidated revenue ek 186,363,525 233,566,651
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R mR A

profit or loss: (Continued)

10. ZEE R (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and THBERBERZEER: (&)

2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT 78 T
Profit or loss B
Total loss of reportable segments AR &2 218 (64,623,199)| (75,159,747)
Unallocated finance costs ROMEE KK (5,906,183) (994,774)
Unallocated corporate income AOBEERA 262,739 545,849
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEPERE (11,603,244) (5,827,808)
Consolidated loss for the year FRNEZEAEEE (81,869,887)| (81,436,480)
Reconciliations of segment assets: THEEHR:
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AERRD Bz BEE 209,770,523 183,840,753
Unallocated deposits, other receivables and RAOMES EMMERREBER
prepayments SEENE /@] 1,017,715 1,015,662
Unallocated cash and bank balances AoERE MIBITE 7,865,326 34,334,318
Unallocated other corporate assets AOoREEMOEEE 5,116,443 6,469,249
Consolidated total assets IREBEE 223,770,007 225,659,982
FEIEERRIZERER A E 2020 G 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. o HER @)
Geographical information: ithE &R
The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of REBEBREFHBEEDREANBER 2K
customers and information about its non-current assets by HEARZEEMNRESIERBDEEZER
location of assets are detailed below: EXR U
Revenue Non-current assets
W 2= kREBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—R-%H | DT NF | ZB-%F | ZFNF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T BT BT
Hong Kong BB 103,636,353 | 161,107,820 | 34,822,087 7,335,579
PRC excluding Hong Kong FE (T BERE) 57,924,822 | 27,024,723 | 25,855,204 7,289,639
East and South East Asia REREmME 24,457,469 | 45,434,108 | 35,129,385 | 70,226,667
Other EH A, 344,881 — — —
Consolidated total =1 186,363,525 | 233,566,651 | 95,806,676 | 84,851,885
Revenue from major customer: REEFTEEZEEFEWE:
2020 2019
—EF-FF —ENEF
HK$ HK$
BT P& TT
Stainless steel furnishings segment 85 i R 1B o FD
Customer A BFEA 120,273,838 178,578,853
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e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 11. EERAMX
2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NnEF
HK$ HK$
BT 78 T
Employee benefits expense EEEAMAX
(including directors’ emoluments) (note 12): (BEESH)(ME12) -
Fees e 396,000 396,000
Salaries, bonuses and allowances He o R4 N ERY 55,970,600 53,770,463
Equity-settled share-based payments AR EEEL ARG BEED
R 923,408 3,167,000
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORE FFHEH 3K 4,459,379 9,417,269
61,749,387 66,750,732
Five highest paid individuals TEBREFMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included one (2019: one) director whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 12. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2019: four) individuals are
set out below:

FALXKELERSFMALRE R (=
E-NF —RESF HMS SN E12
PRSI Z DHTA » SR TR (ZE—NF - 048)
ATHEE &5

2020 2019
—E-FF —FNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Basic salaries and allowances HEARE & MoRRL 2,610,607 2,873,843
Discretionary bonus [E=PrEAN 48,620 48,620
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFHEIH X 67,500 57,330
2,726,727 2,979,793
FEHEEERRERERAF 2020 G 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE
11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 11. EERABEX®)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) TEESHFMAL(E
The emoluments fell within the following band: Bl & T %1 #6 B 2 A -

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
e i —E-NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 7T £1,000,00078 7T 4 4
12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12. EEFARER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMS
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BRESZHMOT:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REABRES(FRAKLIAERRLRRR) RECHARUNE
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
paid or management
receivable of the affairs
Employer's in respect of the
Estimated  contribution  of accepting Company or
Discretionary money value of to a retirement office as Housing its subsidiary
Fees Salaries Bonus  other benefits benefit scheme director allowance  undertaking Total
HESEE
EIEERL) |
Exiiaf  fEzES VEESESS
BIE g BHiE  EEEHZ WEBER
e g BERL EHEE 23 EUEH FERY BHIE4HE i
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
Name of director f£1:24
Execuve directors B
— M. Cheng Ting Kong -8TiERE - 120,000 - - 6,000 - - - 126,000
- Ms. Yeung So Mui - BT - 120,000 - - 6,000 - - - 126,000
= Mr. Luk Wai Keung -BfRrs - 1,729,658 - - 18,000 - - - 1,747,658
— Mr. Leung Kwok Yin - PEELE - 216,000 134,000 - - - - - 350,000
Independent non-gxecutve drectors  BUEH{TEZ
= Mr. Tse Ting Kwan - HEO%E 132,000 - - - - - - - 182,000
— Mr. Fung Tze Wa - BFERE 132,000 - - - - - - - 132,000
— M. Ting Wong Kaces - TELE 132,000 - - - - - - - 132,000
Total for 2020 bt b 33 £ 396,000 2,185,658 134,000 - 30,000 - - - 2,745,658
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12. EEEAKER(E)
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM=(H)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or s subsidiary undertaking

REABFES(REAERTAENBATRE BRCHARLHS
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
ofher services
in connection
Remunerations with the
paid or management
receivable of the affairs
Employer's in respect of the
Estimated confribuion ~ of accepting Company or
Discretionary  money value of o a retirement office as Housing ~ its subsidiary
Fees Salaries Bonus  other benefits  benefit scheme dector alowance  undertaking Total
HEZER
KAAYERE
Erign  jExEE GES 1
EfpHEt BHire  mBENE ES
ne it [z SEEE bLis W FEZE DRaE4HE g3t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT BT AT BT A BT BT AT BT
Name of director f£1:24
Executive drectors §figz
~ M. Cheng Ting Kong -BTkRE - 120,000 - - 6,000 - - - 126,000
- Ms. Yeung So Mui - hEfEgt - 120000 - - 6,000 - - - 126,000
= Mr. Luk Wai Keung - BEgE - 1488375 110,250 - 18,000 - - - 1,616,625
— Mr. Leung Kok Yin - REERA - 216,000 134,000 - - - - - 350,000
Independent non-grecutive directors BT HEHTEE
— M. Tse Ting Kwan - AEgRE 132,000 - - - - - - - 132,000
— Mr. Fung Tze Wa - BrERE 132,000 - - - - - - - 132,000
~ Mr. Ting Wong Kacee - TEik 132,000 - - - - - - - 132,000
Total for 2019 E-nkEE 396,000 1,944,375 244,050 - 30,000 - - - 2,614,625
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors FA BESRITHRABXTHAE
waived any emoluments during the year (2019: EREFAHE(CE—NF:ZTE
HK$Nil). 75
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 Z —E - EF + - A=+—H It FE

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12. EEEARER(®E)
(Continued)

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans (b) BEBEALQRRELQTHERF
and other dealings entered into by the URBEEBREZEHNEBRE
Company or subsidiary undertaking of BARCER EERREMR
the Company in favour of controlled ZZERWOT:

body corporates of Mr. Leung Kwok Yin
is as follows:

Outstanding Maximum
amount atthe  Outstanding  outstanding Provision for
Total amount  beginning of amount atthe amount during  Amount due doubtful debts
Name of borrower payable the year end of the year the year  but not paid made Term  Interest rate Security
REQ RER  FAREER EEE Bl
BRALE ERAE HABELE HAEELE BEtE (AXfIEE AERE AR RS R
HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
b B b b -5 b
Asat31December2020 H-F=F£+=f
=t-8
Amounts due from related ~~ ERBBAAFTE:
companies:
JF Household Furnishings EXERm Not applicable 4,787,355 Not applicable 4,731,355 - - Nofixed Interestfree  Unsecured
(BVI) Ltd (EBRES)ARAA repayment
(note) (Rt
TER TER EEEENE %8 EER
Total for 2020 It 23 11 Not applicable 4,737,355 Not applicable - -
TER TER
Maximum
QOutstanding ~ Outstanding outstanding
amount at the  amount at the amount Provision
Total amount ~ beginning of end of the duringthe  Amount due for doubtful
Name of borrower payable the year year year but not paid debts made Term Interest rate Security
READ RER  ERREER REL Bfe
EFALE B8R mREESE AREELE 5548 BRxM2E REER R filx ER
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
b B BT BT BT AT
Asat3iDecember 2019 K=Z-AE1ZA
=t-A
Amounts due from related ~~ ERBBAFAFE:
companies:
JF Household Fumishings ~~ RERXERR(ERR 4,737,355 4,737,355 4,737,355 4,737,355 - - Nofixed  Interest free Unsecured
(BVI) Ltd #8)ARAA repayment
EREEHNE 2R BER
Total for 2019 ZI-NERE 4T3T355 4731355 4,737,355 - -
Note:  JF Household Furnishing (BVI) Ltd is no longer a related Mad: REXEARMBRARER)ERAFANEBE=
party of the Group during the year ended 31 December TZ_TF+ A=+ HLEFETBALE
2020. BIRABEA L ©
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12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12.
(Continued)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or

contracts

Save as disclosed in this consolidated financial

statements, no other significant transactions,

arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the director’s

connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

ESEAMRER @
() EERXZ  ZHASHHH

ERESR

BRAEAMBRRAPEESEIN
AEEMEREXRBILARAS
HPFI T RARREENEEH
BATEEREREFERERM
RELIFRNERMEENDAFERN
HMEARS ZHREH -

FINANCE COSTS 13. BE R A
2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts ROTEERBEXFE 1,788,907 2,183,464
Interest on other borrowings HEMEER S 5,744,496 1,044,170
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFNE 411,208 388,575
7,944,611 3,616,209

FEHEEERRERERAF 2020 G 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FiEFHEAX
2020 2019
i —T-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BIHAFIIE — B ZEFFERH
Provision for the year NS B AR 635,948 3,100,100
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEATE 1 — BENGEH
Provision for the year REFZ R 15,973 44,589
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENR 12,413 -
Over-provision in prior years BAFEEBERG (12,529) —
15,857 44,589
Current tax — Malaysia Corporate Tax BNEARIE — BRA R EN
Provision for the year N E R - 117,573
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 117,852 —
117,852 117,573
Current tax — Taiwan Corporate Tax BNEAfEIE — R EE R EEMESH
Provision for the year REFZ R 39,285 —
Under-provision in prior years BAFEREBETIR 78,570 —
117,855 —
887,512 3,262,262

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity established
in Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25% and profits above that
amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits
of the group entitles not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit

o

REMRBMNERREHE  £EFBKL
ZBEREH

& # 52,000,000/ 7T FE R B

i M % 128.25% 2 B R UL B IR - T B
% & B2 0 N A 1R216.5% 2 B R AR IR -
THAMBHMNERHEFEERZEE

Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%. B P i 4 B 1216.5% 2 B R B
1

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
25% (2019: 25%) on the estimated assessable profit for the

year ended 31 December 2020.

Malaysia Corporate Tax has been provided at a rate of 24%
(2019: 24%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

Taiwan Corporate Tax has been provided at a rate of 20%
(2019: 20%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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BE_Z_ZEF+_A=+T—RHBILEFE"
H B 1D 3 PR AS A T IR ik 5T B AR BR B B R
25% (ZZE— N5 : 25%) fE I B 4 -

BHE-_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HBILtEE"
55 R 7 g0 1D EE R T IRl 5T TR R B R A B =R
24% (— T —JL4F : 24%) fE L A

AEENEXFARRBE_F -7
= A=+ — B UL f AR B R
20% (=B — L4 : 20%) 2 B % 5 -

Hl i (@ B SR B s A 2 IR DA AR
SEREMEBRREMHERERITHMNE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE — T —_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

14. FREBFX(E)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax
expense and the product of loss before tax

multiplied by the PRC Enterprise Income Tax

rate is as follows:

FERAXERRABRERTFET
EMBHRR2RBHEROTN:

2020 2019
ZEZEF —T-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before tax B 74 A B 18 (80,982,375)| (78,174,218)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate &2 A B b 2 F 15 1 fi &
of 25% (2019: 25%) 25% (ZZE— - 25%) BE (20,245,595)|  (19,543,554)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BERBRMANH B2 (12,687,827) (5,170,946)
Tax effect of expenses that are not IR okiR -2
deductible 23,642,757 2,132,666
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries M B A8 TR Ry 52 £ 6,605,300 13,952,852
Under-provision in prior years BAEFEEBEDR 196,306 —
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AERVEBENHE B E 7,730,176 11,448,414
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not R LRI AR IEEED
previously recognised MG (3,854,885) —
Tax effect of temporary differences not ABREFEZENHBEEE
recognised (498,720) 442,830
Income tax expense FrisfiA X 887,512 3,262,262
FEEBRREZERER D E 2020 3R
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15. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 15.

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/
(crediting) the following:

FAEE
AEEZENBBLENRGIA) T3
IR R -

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NnF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Auditor’s remuneration % &AM B & 900,000 1,020,000
Cost of inventories sold BEHEFERA 134,065,957 | 212,419,102
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEfhfmp EEEE
(included in cost of sales) (G ASH &R A) 11,537,767 9,674,373
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ¥ ¥ - MERZBZITE 4,209,148 3,657,419
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FTHEEENE 4,961,261 5,139,024
Written off of deposits paid for acquisition of  HMisEst WEB R EEE ~
long term assets (Note a) gt & (Kt sa) - 1,174,408
Impairment on intangible assets (included in B EERE
other operating expenses) GTAHMEERZ) 1,566,969 6,583,048
Impairment on goodwill (included in other EmEREGIAREMEERT)
operating expenses) 8,000,000 5,500,000
Operating lease charges — buildings KETHEER — BEY 1,715,353 —
Equity-settled share-based payments to MEBREXNz ARESER
consultant A VA B 10 45 5 B8 B9 15 5K 923,408 3,167,000
Net exchange losses/(gains) FEHEE (W) 2,647,532 (2,435,532)

EHEFEXNABREEIRARITEY
22,151,276/% ;L (=& — J1 & : 36,412,000/8
L) BEFAL# DRI EZRIERA -

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation
of approximately HK$22,151,276 (2019: HK$36,412,000)
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately.

Note: B 7 -

(@) Due to the unsatisfactory development progress and quality of (a) HRERER AR EERERRMES
respective games, the results of the market research and testing MHEAERAREREEREEEES - 8
were far poorer than the management’s expectation. Deposits paid EZFT-NF+ZA=F+-HLEFE KEER
for acquisition of long term assets was written off by HK$1,174,403 HEEMNBMIZSMIE1174,4088 T -
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

16. DIVIDEND 16. R E
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company FA-ARAIYE|IKNKERRKRE(ZE
during the year (2019: Nil). —NFE &)
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LOSS PER SHARE 17.
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is EREAREEEBIIRE T EETE
based on the following:
2020 2019
—EZEHF —T-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss Eia
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic and RN EFRELRAL
diluted loss per share BmEEEnER (80,214,996)|  (77,936,393)
2020 2019
—EZBH —T-NF
Number of shares R&GEA
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FARFEFREARKR
for the purpose of calculating basic and BEBEBE2TBER
diluted loss per share I FH 287,206,000 | 287,206,000

As the Company’s share options during the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 do not give rise to any dilutive
effect to the loss per share, diluted loss per share was the
same as the basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2020.

AR EHEZZTE - NFRZZE_TF+=A
St BLEFE - ARRZERBELEY
BREBETREMBEELE  WREEZ
E-NFRZIZZZTEFF+A=+T—HIEHF
B SER#EEFEEESRENEEMER -

FERERRZERER AR 2020 F3f
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e M RRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T - FE+_-_A=+—RHILtEE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W¥  BMENRRKE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor Leasehold
improvement ~ machinery  equipment vehicles buildings Total
G- #£E
HELEE HEREHA &L ] B N4 £ @
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-N%E-A-H 5850249 34,287,183 4,658,262 1,607,708 3934911 50,338,313
Reclassffication due to adoption of REQE B REERE165

HKFRS 16 [FHHENIE - - - - (3934911 (3934,911)
Additions hE 1,005,597 324,619 1.246,943 - - 2,577,159
Disposal e - (1,085,165 (903,490) (9,664) - (1,998,319)
Write off s - - (134,664) - - (134,664)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRA (58,221) - (241,100) - - (299,321)
Exchange differences ERES (67,563) (616,244) 167,873 (31,244 - (547,178)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=T-HE

1 January 2020 “$-%5-A-H 6,730,062 32,910,393 4,793,824 1,566,800 - 46001079
Additions hE 3410817 122,456 1,123,233 - - 4,656,506
Disposal e (135,614 (13,038,094 (2,800,999 (127,920) - (16,102,627)
Write off i - - (57,584) - - (57,584)
Exchange differences EREE 361,600 2,044 875 281327 105,619 - 2,793,421
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEETZA=T-H 10,366,865 22,039,630 3,339,801 1,544,499 - 37,290,795
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-n%E-A-8 2073828 25,904,196 3,124976 1224528 36,846 33264374
Reclassification due to adoption of RFME B HREER £16%

HKFRS 16 [FHHETIE - - - - (36,846) (36,846)
Charge for the year ERy i 1500,278 1070,115 980,717 106,309 - 3,657,419
Disposal e - (976,648) (903,490) (9,664) - (1,889,802)
Write off s - - (134,664) - - (134,664)
Exchange differences ERZE (48,621) (467,543 167,342 (25,645) - (374,467)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NE+ZA=T-BR

1 January 2020 “2-%5-A-H 4425485 25530,120 3,234 881 1,295,528 - 34486014
Charge for the year ERTH 2,162,219 974,055 971,349 101,525 - 4209148
Disposal e - (9347542)  (2,506,529) (115,128) - (11,969,199)
Write off s - - (57,584) - - (57,584)
Exchange differences ERZE 164,929 1,560,246 234,064 87,637 = 2,046,876
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-FF+-A=1-H 6,752,633 18,716,879 1876,181 1,369,562 - 28715255
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2020 R-E-FE+-A=1-H 3,614,232 3,322,751 1,463,620 174,937 = 8,575,540
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 2,304 577 7,380,273 1,558,943 271,072 - 11515065




19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWYE
The Group leases out various offices under operating leases AEFENUKLERENSTAEHLZEARAE
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an MeBAZIN HEMNVIRBEHBES A —
initial period of 1 to 3 years. Majority of the lease contracts E=F o WEBEATEELNE  BIRZH
contain market review clauses in the event the lessee HEERHBREMIEEEKRA -
exercises the option to extend.
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result HRMEHEYNEEEESENIIES
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in BEE RHAEETeRAHEETHEMEASR
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The NERR BEARTESEEERES
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/ S EBATRAHEREBEEZYEE
or lessee‘s option to purchase the property at the end of B
lease term.
2020 2019
—E-EF — N
HK$ HK$
BT AT
At 1 January Hw—H—H 24,540,315 31,155,580
Disposal HE - (7,813,900)
Fair value (losses)/gains RABEER), Wa (1,490,726) 1,081,328
Exchange differences fE X =% 340,193 117,307
At 31 December R+T-ZA=+—H 23,389,782 24,540,315
Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2020 BEMER_ZTE_TEFR-_FT—NFT=A

and 2019 on the open market value basis by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for similar properties
by Jones Lang LaSelle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors.

Valuation for investment properties was derived using the
market comparable approach based on recent market prices
without any significant adjustment being made to the market
observable data.

E+*E|EE§%L§¥/EUEEW1EFEH§5?T ES
FEERBRERARSERLUNE 20 M
RopmGEERARTSEERELESR -

BREMEBREDERNY TS BRAECK
FEMERFARB)ZOIHMERAMS L
A -

FERERRZERER AR 2020 F¥
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20.

For the year ended 31 December 20200 E_E_TF+RA=+—HLEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. EFRAREE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$
T
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—NF—HA—H 15,909,869
Additions RE 6,357,134
Modification 1B (4,846,104)
Depreciation e (5,139,024)
Exchange differences [E X =% 247,585

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 w—f h¢+—ﬂ =+t—H8kK

—T-FTF—H—H 12,529,460
Modification EX 3,971,957
Depreciation e (4,961,261)
Exchange differences fEHEZ5 269,255
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZEF+_A=+—H 11,809,411

Lease liabilities of HK$8,436,515 (2019: HK$9,176,341) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$8,033,356
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$8,706,513). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the

N_ZTE—
& 8,03

BT B R
— N5 9,176,3415% JT) °
ok ,\éEFE’HE&TEﬁ%\ Gh o HE B

TE+-A=+—8  HEERE
3,356/ 7L (ZZ — L4 : 8,706,513
R EBES8,436,5158 T (=&
Br A A ﬁ ﬁ

lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for RITMRHE HEEENSEAT ﬁ
borrowing purposes. REH AR o
2020 2019
— 7 — ¢ —j‘Lfﬁ
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FREEENITEER 4,961,261 5,139,024
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBENMNERX
(included in finance cost) (GTARE X A) 411,208 388,575
Expenses relating to short-term lease (included (2B HHEE B 2 X
in cost of goods sold, selling and distribution, (GFAHEERBEA « HER
and administrative) DA - ARITERAR) 1,715,353 —
Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 40(f). EREHERSRHARABNFBEHNHF

40(f) °
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 200 FAREE®
For both years, the Group leases various offices, MERB AEEBHEASERAE -2
warehouses, and factory for its operations. Lease contracts EXBERANEE - HEARNET R
are entered into for fixed term of two years to three years BREE=-F(ZZE—NF MEE=F)-
(2019: two years to three years). Lease terms are negotiated B DIZENEEEY  YESLEDNRE
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different GRG0 2 T E A AR R BT A TS AT
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and HERKE  AEERABAAOTEE UETE
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the AR AR MITRER -
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.
GOODWILL 21. BE
2020 2019
—B=FF —FNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost N
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA=+—8 16,482,214 16,482,214
Accumulated impairment losses ZFREEE
At 1 January w—A—H (5,500,000) —
Impairment loss recognised in the current year N4 & B ¥ 52 89 il (B /&5 18 (8,000,000) (5,500,000)
At 31 December BR+Z—A=+—H (13,500,000) (5,500,000)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 2,982,214 10,982,214
FEEERRIERERAA 2020 F R
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21.

BA TS ER AR MY RE

GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are

21.

(&

&

EEBEHTRBZHERNRBRORET
BB EZEHAHTESNREELSE

14

-

i

)
1/

expected to benefit from that business combination. The N(ReEELESM]) HENEEHED K
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows: wm
2020 2019
—E-EF —hF
HK$ HK$
BT & T
Online games: B EREE:
Cubinet Interactive (MSC) Sdn. Bhd. and its Cubinet Interactive (MSC)
subsidiaries (the “Cubinet Group”) Sdn.Bhd. & E i B 2 7
([Cubinet % & J) 2,982,214 10,982,214

In addition to goodwill, property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and other intangible assets that generate cash
flows together with the related goodwill are also included
in the respective CGU for the purpose of impairment
assessment.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates
and budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate of
the geographical area in which the businesses of the CGUs
operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate
have been reassessed as at 31 December 2020 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in
the current year due to how the COVID-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve and volatility in financial markets.

LEEi ELXRESRENDE BEML
HE FRAREEREMEFEAEERMN
RSN AMEBRSELBLETRE
R

ReEEBEMZA KBS RMAMEAR
TRELZBVREEEAEEET BRARSE

MEBEZNEIZBRRAPAMPRE B R
R FHAEMNERLEEENRR - A5 H

RAMATL RAEFTREE R - MA BB A
ENRBEMTSHeEREEELRRE
ELXBUBERRNNMG BRENRS
ELEBURERBRELRIRETFHE
BIRRERQEAM - B EMNRREERANU
BEEHRETISERROBHAER -

NSl = |EE

ZEIBNFTEREEBERRES

AT EELEAR SR TSR E - K
FENMRBFIHREMLER BeREHE
A BERXRBPBARER T _TF+_H
=+ —BEHFMH -



21.

22,

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —F —FTF +—_A=+—HIFE
GOODWILL (Continued) 21. BHE®H)
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the REBRBEEETEMNRRAFHRT M
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for WAV BEE  RERE2.01%(ZF
the next five years with the residual period using the growth —NF220%) B SMETEN - It
rate of 2.01% (2019: 2.29%). This rate does not exceed the KWEBHEEAMSGNREFHIERE -
average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.
The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the FAAREER R B4 Lz Bl E e 18 AR
Group’s online game activities is 16.83% (2019: 17.64%). ERMEME X B16.83% (ZF — L &
17.64%) °
At 31 December 2020, before impairment testing, goodwill RZZEZFTFF+A=1+—8 " RNREAIRA
of HK$16,482,214 was allocated to the Cubinet Group Al 0 216,482,214 T E 9 B2 = Cubinet
within the online game segment. Due to the defer in plan of SEME - EE DS o BN TR R
publishing mobile games, the Group has revised its cash TEEIEE  AEBECEBIZBeELES
flow forecasts for this CGU. The CGU has been reduced to UHRESREFRN ZBELTELEBENUDH
its recoverable of HK$9,499,000 and an impairment loss of Z En O & 819,499,000 T - WA F A
HK$8,000,000 (2019: HK$5,500,000) recognised on goodwill ot 7 2 1 3R OR (B 8 188,000,000 T (= F
during the year. — L% 1 5,500,000/ L) °
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 22. BAREFARMEZEKEZEH
EE
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ qi _j-LE'E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted equity securities JE_E TR AN FE - 2,059,000
Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in USD. EAnRBEFAHMEERE EMEEN
EILEHE -
DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 23. WEBRHBEENEHZSE

LONG-TERM ASSETS

2020 2019
— ? — ﬂE 7j-|.:£'E
HK$ HK$
& 7T 78 TT
Prepayment of game intellectual properties and % B %0 55 2= # [ i 4 7Y
licenses T8 IR — 18,426,799
FEIEERRIZERER A E 2020 F i
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24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24, BEEE
Game
intellectual Rights on
properties and Game esports Money
licenses software team Trademark lending license Total
BEAR AEFHEH
ERLNRE EEaH ZEH 1] HEER @t
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS
BT B BT B BT BT
Cost HA
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 17,836,789 5,087,770 - - 499,999 23,424,558
Additions RE 2,354,655 - - - - 2,354,605
Exchange differences ELEE 58,664 (4,722) - - - 53,042
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NETZA=1-

1 January 2020 AR=Z-%%-A-H 20,250,108 5,083,048 - - 499,999 25,833,155
Acquisition of a subsidlary (note 40(b) W EEMH B 2 & (B 340(0) - - - 7,300,000 - 7,300,000
Additions HE 34,542,529 - 18,818,370 - - 53,360,899
Disposal & (7,755,000) - (1,086,370) - - (8,841,370)
Exchange differences ERER 221,010 - 1,338,400 - - 1,559,410
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFF+-A=+-H 47,258,647 5,083,048 19,070,400 7,300,000 499,999 79,212,094
Accumulated amortisationand ~ Eit##RAEFE

impairment losses

t 1 January 2019 RZE-NEF-F-A 2,668,001 - - - - 2,668,001
Amortisation B 9,674,373 - - - - 9,674,373
Impairment e 1,500,000 5,083,048 - - - 6,583,048
Exchange differences EREE 49,701 - - - - 49,701
At 31 December 2019 and RZB- ﬁﬁ+:ﬂ£+-

1 January 2020 AR=2-%%4-A-A 13,892,075 5,083,048 - - - 18,975,123
Amortisation B 8,921,068 - 1,765,032 851,667 - 11,537,767
Impairment HE 1,566,969 - - - - 1,566,969
Disposal HE (1926,356) - (181,061) - - 2,107,417)
Exchange differences ERZE 184,694 - 5,229 - - 189,923
At 31 December 2020 R-E-EF+-f=t-H 22,638,450 5,083,048 1,589,200 851,667 - 30,162,365
Carrying amount ERaE
At 31 December 2020 RIBZRETZA=T-0 24,600,197 - 17,481,200 6,448,333 499,999 49,049,729
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-8 6,358,033 - - - 499,999 6,858,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group’s license of HK$499,999 (2019: HK$499,999) at
31 December 2020 is assessed as having indefinite useful
life because the license has a limited term of 1 year but
would be able to be renewed annually at minimal cost. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
would renew the license continuously and any conditions
necessary to obtain renewal would be satisfied. The license
will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be
finite.

At 31 December 2020, management of the Group
determined that there was no impairment of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) containing the license with indefinite
useful life. The recoverable amount of the CGU containing
the license has been determined on a value in use
calculation. The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by the
directors for the next 3 year period.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 12%
(2019: 12%).

The average remaining amortisation period of game
intellectual properties and licenses, rights on esports team
and trademark are 1 to 3 years, 4.4 years and 4.8 years
respectively (2019: game intellectual properties and licenses
and game software: 1 to 2 years and 2 years respectively).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of its game intellectual properties and licenses and game
software classified as intangible assets in 2020, having
regard to the market conditions of the Group’s products.
These assets are used in the Group’s online game segment.
The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of HK$1,566,969 and HK$Nil (2019: HK$1,500,000 and
HK$5,083,048) for game intellectual properties and licenses
and game software respectively that have been recognised
in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of HK$Nil (2019:
HK$527,620) for the relevant assets has been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow
method.

24.
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RARABEERE AEEBFEEEER
N ER S BERT & E GG - R
“redE BEZHAUCRAFTFHEEAA
PR °

RZEZTF+-_A=+—H AEEERE
EETHESRAERANERAFH ZER
ZReELBN(RELEMDLED
BRE -sRRBRzBASELEC 27 kE
TRIOERFAABEZEREEREEE A&
BEARKESHERKIFHME 2 KOH
BEEELHRESR=TER -

BeReBAUMKRABIIREAE2% (2%
—NF 1 12%) °

BHABRERRRE REFHERERZE
= R AR ST T D R B1ESF
A44F RABSFE(Z T —NF: BRI H ER
MR R BB B DRl B1E2F K2
F)o

%ﬁﬂ$il§&mﬁ%#ﬁ*$%5%
TFERAEINABREE ZEE
MBEERREAREEREOTRE
B-ZEEEDARAERNR EESS
oo bR ET S BB E N B TR B
AN M B RRE DA R 3 R B 0 B HE SRR
18 /&5 181,566,969 T R EHE L(Z T — N
% :1,500,000% 7T K%5,083,048% L) A
BEEZAKRBESBEAL(ZTE L
5276206 T) IR BEHE AEENUNR SR
EMBREET -

777



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE
25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw material JR K 7,527,569 10,471,902
Work in progress £ & & 1,220,113 9,068,229
Finished goods %Y B 7,956,152 6,859,068
16,703,834 26,399,199
26. LOAN RECEIVABLES AND INTEREST 26. EWERRKRERRE
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loan receivables, net of provision JEULE FR (0B B 8) 9,850,693 13,643,349
Interest receivables JiE L F) B 607,461 —
10,458,154 13,643,349
The maturity profile of loan receivables and interest RBEAHERERRERAEZGTAH
receivables at the reporting date is analysed by the remaining HEHAHNBEZBEBERNT:
periods to their contractual maturity dates as follows:
2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —F N 5,205,225 4,514,164
In the second year F4F 4,799,158 3,822,691
In the third year F= 453,771 4,848,096
In the fourth year % - 458,398
10,458,154 13,643,349
The carrying amounts of the loan receivables and interest FE U E R K E WA S 2 BRE B TR A T o
receivables are denominated in HKD. B o

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, all loan receivables are
unsecured, bear interest at fixed rates and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &&= — T - TF+ - A=+ —HILFE
TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. EWE SRR
2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables FE U E B R 3K 15,742,351 28,274,613
Allowance for doubtful debts RIRE G (2,434,883) (2,400,186)
13,307,468 25,874,427

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 90 days.

$EIIEM FEEBRTEREPETRS -
iR 9T FI0EI0K - EHRTF HMmA

= &5 8
I:l/\

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by directors. The ﬁ,ﬁfﬂ ﬁ% AEEEKRESERKEER
aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on MRBRBEEE 2RESTET
the invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ qE —j‘Lf‘E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0-30 days 0E30XK 1,250,318 22,595,328
31-60 days 31E60XK 1,446,757 1,123,613
61-90 days B61ZE90K 8,303,282 71,573
Over 90 days 90K A £ 2,307,111 2,083,913
13,307,468 25,874,427

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

AEBRERBKESGER2EEEATIER

denominated in the following currencies: FT1E -
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
HKD BT 491,863 450,859
RMB AR 10,077,839 21,868,717
UsD ETT 2,561,974 3,433,865
Others Hib 175,792 120,986
13,307,468 25,874,427

FEHEEERRERERAF 2020 G 3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE I HRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE — T T &+ _-_A=+—HItFE
28. DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 28. e HMEWAKEREMNRK
PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
—E-EF —nF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deposit Z& 10,874,718 3,427,648
Prepayments TR R IE 8,830,813 3,690,919
Other receivables H b e W 518 12,279,467 3,394,042
31,984,998 10,512,609
29. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 29. RERBITH
As at 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of ANZE_ZEFF+_A=Z+—H AEBEMUA
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$20,952,114 RESNBE2RESRIRITEBLY 7,%20,952,114

(2019: HK$13,448,418). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

B ZE

— JL £ : 13,448,418 1) ©
?ﬁ%mﬁﬁbl\ﬁ%,,\uwI9I\Eﬂ$1lm1ﬁw
MEE EERMNEEERT -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and bank AEB RS RRITEBERABETDIZ T
balances are denominated in the following currencies: B 5I(E -
2020 2019
—E-FHF — N
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
HKD BT 31,583,890 40,767,396
RMB AR 20,952,114 13,448,418
uUsD ET 1,069,070 1,134,156
MYR *HE 231,684 489,431
THB =8k 408,107 203,135
Philippine Piso (“PHP”) ERBERR(HER) 140,603 82,365
New Taiwan Dollar (“TWD”) Hak(Ha)) 668,327 837,063
Euro (“EUR?) B (B ) 95,136 =
55,148,931 56,961,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
TRADE PAYABLES 30. ENESKRX
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NnEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade payables JERTE 5 IR 5,134,462 10,334,445

The Group normally obtains credit terms ranging from 30 to HEB-—RETAEBIIOEORNEER -

90 days from its suppliers.

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of ENESERZKBREYBBRZRE ST

receipt of goods, is as follows: N
2020 2019
—g=-%F| —T-N%F
HK$ HK$
& 7T & T
0-30 days 0E30K 3,386,040 7,236,774
31-60 days 31E60K 33,710 1,401,405
61-90 days 61E90K 45,178 —
Over 90 days 90K A k 1,669,534 1,696,266
5,134,462 10,334,445

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

AEEENEZERZEAENRTIER

denominated in the following currencies: BREE
2020 2019
—E-FF —F-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
RMB AR 2,702,079 7,234,019
UsD ETT 2,353,608 2,829,654
THB Zr 54,965 111,778
MYR °F 23,810 72,834
SGD N ot - 86,160
5,134,462 10,334,445

FEEERRIZERERATE 2020 F#R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ISR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

31. LEASE LIABILITIES 31. HEERE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

EEEEMR EEEENRNEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-Ef —h&| ZEZEF —hEF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —FR 4,253,757 5,303,180 3,755,132 5,026,973
In the second to fifth years, F_EERF(BRE
inclusive HEMEF) 4,995,252 4,287,261 4,681,383 4,149,368
After five years HE % - — - -
9,249,009 9,590,441 8,436,515 9,176,341
Less: Future finance charges WRRBEEH Not Not
(812,494) (414,100)| applicable applicable
T iE A i A
Present value of lease HEEFHE
obligations 8,436,515 9,176,341 8,436,515 9,176,341
Less: Amount due for settlement & : + {8 AR E
within 12 months (shown HEHEBGIR
under current liabilities) MEBBEET) (8,755,132) (5,026,973)
Amount due for settlement TEREBHEED
after 12 months © 5 4,681,383 4,149,368
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities REEBEZEEMERFEN F2.47%
range from 2.47% to 14.02%. (2019: from 2.47% to 14.02%) 114.02% Z MZE—NnF: N F247% =
14.02% 2 f&) °
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities are AEBE s HEABBEDETNEESE
denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
—E_-F ﬂE 7j-|.: E'E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
HKD BT 2,527,997 4,322,817
RMB AR 4,243,070 2,157,358
PHP B= - 258,482
TWD et 1,665,448 2,437,684
8,436,515 9,176,341
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &= —F —FTF +—_A=+—HIFE

LOAN FROM RELATED PARTIES 32. REBEBAIZER

As at 31 December 2020, the Group received loans from RIE-ZEF+_A=+—H AEEEW

two related parties with principal amount of HK$180,000,000 BB 5 WL AR € 4 $£180,000,0005%8 7T (=

(2019: HK$100,000,000) in total. These loans were T — A F 100,000,000 ) 2 ER - % E

unsecured, interest bearing from 0% to 2% per annum and ERAEER RFBO%E2%TE R A

repayable within one to three years. The fair value of these Eé‘*i = E NEE - ZZEERZARETD

loans were estimated at the prevailing market interest rates ZEHE KA FER T 2 IRITH 57 & 5%

for equivalent loans of 5% on initial recognition. et e

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. HWENRERESTIEEB

2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂi —j‘Lf‘E
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Current liabilities REBEE

Deposits received B Wit & 515,482 447,669

Accruals fEstiE H 28,394,379 27,681,236

Receipt in advance T8 W R 21,458,892 —

Loan from third parties (Note a) rKEE= 7?2 B (M sxa) 10,850,005 4,390,505

Royalty payable (Note b) FE 1 F 4 & (T 52 b) 3,870,837 2,970,996

Other payables H fth & 1 ZOIE 13,743,055 4,933,948

78,832,650 40,424,354

Note: B 5 -

(@) The balance represented loans from two independent third parties. (a) EHREXREMEBEBILE-AZER - 25 E
These loans were unsecured, interest bearing at fixed rates ranged HBEEE  HEEFE3.00%E4.35% (=ZF
from 3.00% to 4.35% (2019:0.00% to 3.00%) per annum and —NF :0.00%E3.00%) 5t ERER—FANE
repayable within one year. & o

(b) The balance represented non-cancellable minimum royalty payable (b) EHRERBE EERRELERN —RER

to a game developer under an online game license agreement.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Cubinet Group has defined benefit obligations arising
from one of its subsidiaries, Cubinet (Thailand) Co. Ltd.

Under labour laws in Thailand, all employees with more
than 120 days of service are entitled to Legal Severance
Payment benefits ranging from 30 to 300 days of final salary
upon termination of service, including forced termination or
retrenchment, or in the event of retirement.

The plan is unfunded and therefore there is no plan asset.

34.

RERLATHEESENESR -

EREMNEE
Cubinet S B2 AT HFA—HMHE QA
Cubinet (Thailand) Co. Ltd 7 & | & E -

REFBE2HETE LIEBI2002HMA
1@%5’3%2&%%(’@%?ﬁ%ﬂiktﬁiﬁﬁﬁéa}iL

MBEHEZBELTERERF  BEE A3

3008 2 &R FH BN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ISR AR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 34. RURERNEFEHE)
(Continued)
The amount of retirement benefit obligations recognised in REETBHERRNETANBRABNRKENEE
the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows: THEEBELNT:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Present value of defined benefit obligation ATRMEENREAE
Current portion EIEEE) 64,710 65,074
Non-current portion JE B EF B 19 490,848 540,986
555,558 606,060
Movements in the Group’s retirement benefit obligations FAREERAKEBENEETNZESHAOT

during the year are as follows:

Present value
of defined
benefit
obligation 2020 Total
RERA —EEHF
EENEE wmEt
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZEF—H—H 606,060 606,060
Amounts recognised in profit or loss: RIBZHERZ S
Current service cost B HA AR 7% X A< 56,393 56,393
Interest expense F BB % 9,729 9,729
Gain regarding the effect of changes B EREEHFT L
in financial assumption I &= (167,836) (167,836)
Exchange difference fE N ZE%8 51,212 51,212
At 31 December 2020 WZZE_ZEF+-_HA=+—8H 555,558 555,558
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(Continued)

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

34.

RAKE R E A 5D

Present value of
defined benefit

obligation 2019 Total

FE & A
ETWNRE T NAFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—HA—H 351,471 351,471

Amounts recognised in profit or loss: HRIBZHERZ S

Current service cost B BA AR 7 A AR 192,916 192,916
Interest expense A B R X 11,024 11,024
Exchange difference fEH =5 50,649 50,649
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+ZA=+—H 606,060 606,060

The maximum economic benefit available from the net
defined benefit asset is determined based on reductions in

future contributions.

The following table is a summary of the assumptions relating

to the actuarial technique as at the end of the reporting year.

Discount rate

AL IR %

Long-term salary increment rate
£ HA % B hn 1

Employees turnover rate
EBEMAEE

Mortality rates

T

2020

—B=-%F

1.91%

1.91%

2.00%

2.00%

1.91% to 22.92%

1.91% £22.92%

105% of Thai Mortality Ordinary
Table 2017 published by Office
of Insurance Commission

105% (R EERAMZ
—E-tERZEEBR)

MAERNFEEAN RS 2RANEEN @
REBRDEHRREKETE -

TERNBEFERBEEAZBREZIME -

2019

—T-NEF

1.73%

1.73%

4.00%

4.00%

1.91% to 22.92%

1.91%%222.92%

105% of Thai Mortality Ordinary
Table 2017 published by Office of
Insurance Commission

105% (RIREEER D2
Tt FFHEBR)

FEHEEERRERERAF 2020 F#R
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o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 & — T - T+ - A=+ —HItFE

34.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(Continued)

The Group’s sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial
assumption as of the end of the reporting period based

34. BURBNEEE

on reasonably possible changes of the relevant actuarial Hran T :

assumption is as follows:

D]]

AEEBEREMARBEEBEERR
FEHEIMNUZEARERKRNBERES

Increase/decrease Impact on defined benefit
in rate obligation
tEEH/ TR HATRNEEZZE

2020 2019

“ECEF ZE-NE

HK$ HKS

B BT

Discount rate B3R & 1.0% (2019:1.0%) | (62,484)/76,101 | (85,642)/105,713
1.0% (ZF— N5 :1.0%)

Salary growth rate g 1.0% | 75,213/(62,994) | 102,071/(84,691)
1.0%

Employee turnover rate EERAE 20% of base assumption | (45,446)/53,113 |  (60,044)/78,687
EARRH 220%

Mortality rates g 20% of base assumption (6,211)/6,104 (7,952)/7,810
EARE220%

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of
the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has
been applied as when calculating the pension liability
recognised within the statement of financial position.

The Group finances the funding requirements of the pension
plan by internal resources and does not have any funding
arrangements and funding policy that will affect future
contributions.

The expected contributions to the pension plan for the year
ending 31 December 2021 is approximately HK$64,710.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 34. RURERNEFEHE)
(Continued)
The weighted average duration of the Group’s defined benefit AEBEARATRANECNMEFHFHOA
obligation is approximately 34 years. The maturity analysis of 34F - AEERMBEBANAHVEHA S
the Group’s undiscounted benefit payments is as follows: LN
Less Between Between
than 1 and 2 and Over
1year 2years 5 years 5 years Total
—F= MEE
R—%F k3 5FE HBEF B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2020 R=ZZE-ZF
+=ZA=+-—H
Pension payments HER/NC A DA 64,710 — — 820,375 885,085
Less Between Between
than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—&= ME=E
W —F M F hE HEBARF BEt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 7T BT T T
At 31 December 2019 R=Z—h&F
+t=A=+—H
Pension payments RIKE TR 65,074 — — 789,857 804,931
FEEBRREZERER D E 2020 F R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

35.

36.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 35. EWERE
Contract liabilities primarily consist of the unamortised AHNBBETERRREBHEEFHRERRE
revenue from sales of virtual items for mobile games and R s BB R REHEKE  MASE

computer games, where there is still an implied obligation to

be provided by the Group over time.

EEEERDEARS

EE?IT\I:Z%WDD °

Movements in contract liabilities: aHBaBEcge:
2020 2019
ZBZEF —ZET-NEF
HK$ HK$
BT owi
Balance at 1 January R—A—HBHzZ&®% 3,531,412 3,130,089
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of RERNERREMERE L
recognising revenue during the year BERD (6,684,078) (5,044,354)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of 12 0 BB 1T R 7 TR UK R TR
billing in advance of game publishing service MEBHEHBEEE M 6,810,019 5,343,617
Exchange differences E W ZE%8 153,386 102,060
Balance at 31 December R+-_A=+—Bz&% 3,810,739 3,531,412
BANK BORROWINGS 36. BITHEE
2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂi —j‘Lfﬁ
HKS HK$
BT AT
Bank loans RITER - 41,416,419
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEEEHRNT:
Within one year —FRK - 41,416,419

1 98 Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

36. RITEE @

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The above amounts due are based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in RMB.

The average interest rates per annum at 31 December were

Lt N E

HEEET -

BILERER =

FT 878 7 &

AEBEEEZREENRAREIE-

R+-A=+—B2FHERENT

as follows:
2020 2019
ZE-FF —NF
Bank loans RITE K Not
applicable 5.3%
FEA
Bank loan are arranged at fixed interest rates and expose RITERZREENEGFE UAESEEER

the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank facilities were
secured by corporate guarantee given by a related company.

RABEHNERR -

RZFB-NF+_A=1+—H XEEZR
TEEH—RBABEARRHEARER -

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 37. EERBEAE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by AEBERZNEEHREBEENT
the Group:
Fair value Undistributed
adjustments earnings
on assets of PRC
acquired subsidiaries Total
FhEBEE: TEMEARZ
ARERE RO EEF st
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2019, RZZE—-NE—HA—A8-
31 December 2019, —Z-hE+=ZA=+—8"
1 January 2020 and —ETF-A-BK
31 December 2020 —E_TF+_A=1+—H 915,792 1,715,969 2,631,761

FREERRERERAA
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e IR M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE
37. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$175,704,495 (2019: HK$138,750,608) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$7,946,000 (2019: HK$21,852,000) and HK$18,062,000
(2019: HK$18,062,000) that will expire in 2025 and 2026
respectively. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has aggregate
amount of deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$4,197,000 (2019: HK$3,849,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.
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37.
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by adjusted capital. Total debt comprises
borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, share premium, retained profits and

other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. BZ&
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each
BEREEIIEBIZEER
Number of
shares Par value
R4 EE HE
HKS
BT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares T R
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZF—NF— T-NEF
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 T —7/ 5+_ R *?fzg A—H
R-ZE-_ZF+-A=+—H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E?é‘ﬁ&f%b@ :
Ordinary shares R
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, 73/\—? NE—R—H- —NF
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 T —H=T—H" igigi A-H
RZZZTE+_A=+—H 287,206,000 2,872,060

AREBEERANENEEREAEERD
BESLEED T EBECEBEREL
KR RERZABR -

AEBEKZRERBRLIEEEAZHE A%
EREKERFEINEMEENARE
MEEBRABEAER REFIHAEBE
REgEB AEELSHBRERE - #17
MR- DA - IRER  BEBAE
BREEEEARDER -

AEBENEEHERAEERN LT /RELE
TER - R RUNEHFERUEHEBE
AHE - ERREREERMAERK - KHAE
BARBEMARESD - BRA - BiDRE
R8N K Bt et i R 1R IR 2 BR A1) ©
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38.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During 2020, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2019, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
issue new shares,

paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to

reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2020, the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
of the Group is -256% (2019: 851%)).

The decrease in the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio during
2020 resulted primarily from decrease of equity and increase
in other borrowings.

The externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is
in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the non-
public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with
the 25% limit throughout the year.
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39. LIR#HBXMAKIE

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

()

Existing Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the ordinary written resolution passed in
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
on 26 November 2008, the share option scheme
(“Existing Share Option Scheme”) was approved
and adopted by the Company to comply with the
requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules;
and the pre-IPO share option scheme and post-IPO
share option scheme were terminated accordingly.

The purpose of the Existing Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Company to recognise the
contributions of any employees (including directors
of the Company), consultants and/or advisers who in
the sole discretion of the directors of the Company
have contributed or will contribute to the Group
(“Participants”) and to motivate the Participants to
continuously work to the benefit of the Group by
offering to the Participants an opportunity to have
personal interest in the share capital of the Company.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Existing Share Option Scheme and other
share option scheme of the Group must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. Upon acceptance of the option, the
Grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant.

URESENBRESSE

(i)

LBEBKETE

BERARARZZEZENFE+—A
“TARBETHERRENIAS LA
BRNEEERRBER RABRE
AE(REBEREFIDEEARR
AL ERERA  AFAEEMHREE
TEENRE MERXRFEBRA
BREENRERAFERREZBR
RERTEIAIAREALL -

REBBREAIEELEARAA
EARFEZZRHNBERSELN
HesAREFELRERNEARE (2
BARRESR) FAALE /B
RM2EEDHAKENTE - X #
EE2EEERENARARAF
BEEBAERZ BB2EEEER
AEEOMBEMEN -

HITEREBEREBRESE LA
SEHEMBRES MR DERR
BEATE R R B R 1T 78 R i 7] BE
BTNARBBROBE  EBLER
THEBEARRTRKEEITRMN W
30% - HEMBERER AR AZEMR
ARRBFM1.00B T EREXBR
REHR(E -
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

()

Existing Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The subscription price for share(s) under the Existing
Share Option Scheme will be a price as the board
of directors in its absolute discretion shall determine
and notify to each Participant and will be the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the option (which must be a business day),
(i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the option and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of grant of the option. The date of
grant is the date on which the option is offered.

An option under the share option scheme may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Existing
Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to
be determined and notified by the board of directors
of the Company to each grantee which period of time
shall commence on the date of grant of the option
and expire on such date as determined by the board
of directors of the Company provided that the option
may not be exercised after the expiration of 10 years
from the date of grant of the option.

The Existing Share Option Scheme does not require
a minimum period for which an option must be held
nor a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised, unless the board
of directors of the Company otherwise determined
and stated in the offer of the grant of options to the
grantee.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 39. UBRHBZAIREE
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) DREEGENBERESTS (B
(i)  Existing Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ZHBEBEREZE)
Details of the specific categories of options are as BERESTEMNZFEOT:
follows:
Options granted to
HATATREBERE
Exercise
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period price Directors ~ Consultants Total
RAAH GEAY &S i Bz Ef @it
HKS
B
2018 It Sit:2
First tranche 55 23 May 2018 23 May 2018 23 May 2018 to 514 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000
22 May 2022
—E-\% 5% “E5-\%
AAZTZH RAZTZH RAZt=RZE
TAZTZE
Second tranche % & 23 May 2018 23 November 2018 23 November 2018 to 514 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
22 May 2022
-2\ -2 =t I
i)ty +-A-+ZH t-A=t=HZ
TAZTZE
Thidtranche %= 23 May 2018 23 May 2019 23 May 2019 to 514 - 1,980,000 1,980,000
22 May 2022
Z3-)\E Z50F ZE-0E
AAZTZH il = RAZt=ZRE
TAZTZE
1,000,000 5,980,000 6,980,000
If the options remain unexercised after a period of MR ER L BT NE %M
4 years from the date of grant, the options expire. RITHE - BIBRESEER - WiE
Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. BRAAEE - RIEREBH LK -
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 39. UBRHBZAIREE
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) DREEGENBERESTS (B
(i)  Existing Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ZHBEBEREZE)

FABREZB ZFROT:

Details of the movement of share options during the
year are as follows:

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NEF
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of share exercise of share exercise
options price options price
0 3 A1
BREZE TEE | BREHE 17188
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning 74 4 4 K 17 £
of the year 6,980,000 5.14 6,980,000 514
Cancelled during the year FREUH (1,000,000) 5.14 — —
Lapsed during the year FREXK (5,980,000) 5.14 — —
Outstanding at the end R E R M ARITE
of the year - - 6,980,000 514
Exercisable at the end RERAITE
of the year - - 6,980,000 514

During the year, 1,000,000 options were cancelled
and 5,980,000 options were lapsed under the
mandatory unconditional cash offers by the immediate
parent. Details of the offers have been disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 26 March 2020 and
the announcement of the Company dated 16 April
2020.

As at 31 December 2019, the options outstanding
have a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 2.39 years and the exercise prices is HK$5.14. No
options were granted in 2020. Options were granted
on 23 May 2018. The estimated fair value of the
options on this date was HK$14,938,673.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 39. LURMOXZAAREG@E
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) DREEGENBERESTS (B
REBRETNZ(E)

ZEAREEA -_BEARLUGFHE -
BWAZERN28MT:

(i) Existing Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i)

These fair values were calculated using the binomial
model. The inputs into the model are as follows:

2018

—E2-N\F

Weighted average share price I IR (E 4.91
Weighted average exercise price I FH T E 5.14
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18 65.50%
Expected life TEEA S B F IR 4 years
Risk free rate i [ B R 214%
Expected dividend vield TEH R B E 0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 4 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on the Group’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Share options granted to consultants were incentives
for helping the Group expand its business network,
acquire and explore new business projects and
opportunities. The fair value of such services was
estimated by reference to the market. The difference
between the fair value of the share options as at
the grant date and the estimated fair value of such
services received or to be received is recognised as
unidentifiable services.

BEHREEBAEARFBEAFR
BOELKEMETE - ZREAP
RzERERFREREAEEZ
REMGHMIATEZR  TERBIR
TRENZERZZZEFLRAE -

BETEEONBREIDREDAEH
BREGEG BERERSFLHER
HEHRKEWER - ZFRBZA
RETDZ2ETSEG BRERE
HEHZAREBEHEETABER
ZHRERB AT ARENZER
R A ERFB AR -
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(i)

New Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the ordinary written resolution passed in
the annual general meeting of the Company on 29
June 2019, the new share option scheme (“New Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted by the
Company to comply with the requirements under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and the Existing
Share Option Scheme was terminated accordingly.

Pursuant to the terms of the Existing Share Option
Scheme, the 6,980,000 options previously granted
under the Existing Share Option Scheme but not
yet exercised will remain valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the Existing Share
Option Scheme and the terms of issue of such
options.

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Company to provide an incentive or a
reward to eligible persons for their contribution to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group. The eligible
participants include any directors or employees,
consultants and/or advisers, the eligible participants
also include any business or joint venture partners,
contractors, agents or representatives, suppliers,
producers or licensors, licensees (including sub-
licensee) or distributors, of the Group or any person
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and other share
option scheme of the Group must not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
Upon acceptance of the option, the Grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for
the grant.

The subscription price for share(s) under the New
Share Option Scheme will be a price as the board
of directors in its absolute discretion shall determine
and notify to each Participant and shall not be less
than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the option (which must
be a business day), (i) the average closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option
and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of
grant of the option. The date of grant is the date on
which the option is offered.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(i)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

An option under the share option scheme may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to
be determined and notified by the board of directors
of the Company to each grantee which period of time
shall commence on the date of grant of the option
and expire on such date as determined by the board
of directors of the Company provided that the option
may not be exercised after the expiration of 10 years
from the date of grant of the option.

The New Share Option Scheme does not require a
minimum period for which an option must be held
nor a performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised, unless the board
of directors of the Company otherwise determined
and stated in the offer of the grant of options to the
grantee.

During the year, no option was granted under the New
Share Option Scheme.
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. ZRERERERWE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Disposal of subsidiaries (a)

In April 2019, the Group disposed 100% of the
issued share capital of HEF T HER QA and
its subsidiaries (the “#% B § #f Group”) for a total
consideration of HK$545,584.

HEWEB AT

RZE—NFHA AEBLHEFTH
HEEHARARLRERBRR (W
Bl &5 £ E])M100% B 3 /TR A -
48R (B B545,5847% TC °

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: REEBBHMNFEENT
HK$
on
Property, plant and equipment Y- WENR&E 299,321
Other receivables H fth & W 5K I8 353,336
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S &8 1,002,241
Other payables H fth & 1 ZIE (1,164,416)
Net assets disposed of BEHEFEE 490,482
Release of foreign currency translation reserve  §MNE& [ 3, (% 4 B @1 50
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2k E 55,052
Total consideration BRA(E 545,584
Consideration satisfied by REZFHRN
Cash Be 545,584
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERNELEMBRE SR AFE:
Cash consideration received EWBESRE 545,584
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHENRERREEED (1,002,241)
(456,657)
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. ZREBEREXRMFT(®)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) Uk BB FI S 1 A
In May 2020, Apex Empire International Limited RZ-ZZT-_FF A A Apex Empire
(“Apex”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of a Company, International Limited ([Apex] * &R 2
entered into a subscription agreement with Nova Alz =& KB A7) ENova eSports
eSports International Limited (“Nova”) pursuant to International Limited ([Noval) ] 37
which Nova has conditionally agreed to allot and issue REWHZE B NovaBEMHRE
and Apex has conditionally agreed to subscribe 70% fid 2 KL 1T MmApex B &R ERE
of the subscription shares at the subscription price of 70% R B B 1n - R 8 /15,000,000
HK$15,000,000. AT o
Nova was engaged in the provision of esports Nova R FNE HIRMEF IR L E o
operation during the year. The acquisitions are for the WHEETREAASEE 2% E
purpose of expand the Group’s business operation BYEBHARKRER FEESHEET
and anticipated future operating synergies from the EAEE F2HRME -
combination together with the online games segment.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities RUWEE B8 - 2 YW Nova 2 AT 3 B
of Nova acquired as at the date of acquisition are as BERBEBEZARBNT:
follows:
HKS
ow
Net assets acquired: BWEEEFE:
Intangible assets mREE 7,300,000
Trade and other receivables JE W E 5 AR 5k K H b & SR IE 12,046,325
Bank and cash balances RITERBE &% 3,028,107
Trade and other payables FER B 5 BR 3k I H b & 1~ ;IR (294,981)
Net identifiable assets AR EEFE 22,079,451
Non-controlling interests FJEPE AR = (6,623,835)
Gain on bargain purchase EEBERE (455,616)
Total consideration BRE 15,000,000
Satisfied by: AR
Cash He 15,000,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W EA 2R FRL
Cash consideration paid BENEERE (15,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BREBREERBESCEEY 3,028,107
11,971,893
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40. ZKEBRERERKMITH)

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The fair value of the trade and other receivables
acquired is HK$12,046,325. The gross amount due
under the contracts is HK$12,046,325, of which
HK$NIl is expected to be uncollectible.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$340,000 have
been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
HK$455,616 in the business combination. The gain is
included in other income. The business combination
results in a gain on bargain purchase which was
mainly attributable to the discount upon negotiation
with the vendor.

Nova contributed approximately HK$3,634,000 to
the Group’s consolidated revenue for the year for the
period between the date of acquisition and the end of
the reporting period. Nova contributed approximately
HK$9,982,000 to the Group’s consolidated loss for
the year for the period between the date of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2020, total Group revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been HK$186,438,000,
and consolidated loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been HK$82,090,000.
The proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of the
revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is intended
to be a projection of future results.

(b)

WK B AT (&)

B U HE FE UL E 5 BR 3 I H b FE UK R
I8 7 AN E 512,046,325 7T © A4
T & 42 56 512,046,325/ 7T 0 H A
THTTEHR ARG -

Uy B 8 B8 AKX A340,0008 T RN E =
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AEBREEAGHTIHERZEEE
I 35455,61678 T © Uz 5T A E A UL
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DBEEHREEAEEESITEAN
g(o

Nova R FEERHIZ MEMKRERE A
REBFALFE Wz B RI43,634,000
BT e NovaR WWHER B ZEREH R
HEARNEERFAZAEBEAERD
9,982,000 7T °

WREER-_ZE-ZZEF—A—H=
KA AEBRREBEE_TE-_TF+=
A=+ BLEFEZEBR=1%
5186,438,0008 L' HHE-_T =%
FTZA=T—RHLEFEZHABRE
782,090,000/ TT » & & K (£ #
E‘;&Eﬂﬁkﬂz\ﬁaizﬁ'%@%zu&ﬁ%a
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. ZmERERERWZE )

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary
without loss of control

During the year, the Group disposed of 30% interests
in a 100% subsidiary at a cash consideration of
HK$6,359,430. The effect of the disposal on the

(c)

HEMBAREZMEXEE
i ¥

RAFE  REBTE SR —E100%
WEBRRIFRZ30%Ez  REREA
6,359,430 T c HEYHARAEHA

equity attributable to the owners of the Company is AELERTZENT
as follows:
HK$
on
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests PEFERER ZFEEE
disposed (6,487,081)
Consideration received from non-controlling BIERERKE ZRE
interests 6,359,430
Loss on disposal recognised directly in equity EEREaERCHEESE (127,651)

(d) Major non-cash transaction

In December 2020, Nova entered into a repurchase
agreement with its non-controlling interest, pursuant
to which non-controlling interest conditionally agreed
to sell and Nova conditionally agreed to repurchase
the repurchase shares which represented 30% equity
interest of Nova, in consideration of assigning and
novating to the non-controlling interest all the rights,
titles, benefits, interests, liabilities and obligations
in relation to the transfer agreement entered into
between Nova and GodLike Esports PVT Limited
(“GodLike Esports”), a company incorporated in
the Republic of India with limited liability and an
independent third party, on 26 June 2020 regarding
the acquisition by Nova of the PlayerUnknown’s
Battlegrounds esports team (the “PUBG Mobile
Team”) and relevant players and coach, slot rights and
intellectual property rights owned by GodLike Esports
for a term of three years commencing from 26 June
2020 and ending on 23 June 2023. The PUBG Mobile
Team competes in official competitions, tournaments
or matches for the online video game known as
PlayerUnknown’s Battlegrounds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(e)

e B RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE

40. ZREBEREXRMT(®)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from e) MEZTHELEZERBHE
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRAMLAEEREZHELE A
liabilities arising from financing activities, including EEE RERSRIEREH -
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising vaj‘l BEBMEEZERERGHER
from financing activities are those for which cash AEERARERERDEARE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in EEHNEESRECHESTEHRK
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as BERE °
cash flows from financing activities.
Effect of
1 January Cash Interest initial Exchange 31 December
2020  Modification flows paid  recognition differences 2020
“ECEE ERER “ECEE
-A-A B ReHE BRFIE b2 EXZE ft-A=1-A
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
Lease liabilities (note 31) R HURR) 9,176,341 3,967,382 (5,351,077) 411,208 - 232,661 8,436,515
Loan from related parties REEERZER
(note 32) (Fr&32) 98,328,042 - 80,000,000 - (4,000,000) - 169,328,042
Other payments and accruals EHERTERE
note 33) B (W 33) 4,390,505 - 6459500 - - - 10850005
Bank borrwings (note 36) 118 (1536 41,416,419 - (45,862,890) 1,788,907 - 2,657,564 -
148,311,307 3,967,382 35,245,533 2,200,115 (4,000,000) 2,890,225 188,614,562
Impaction
initial Effect of
1 January application 1 January Cash Interest Initial Exchange 31 December
2019 of HKFRS 16 2019 Addtion  Modification flows paid recognition differences 2019
ERER
EREBRE
ZE-0F O ERIE6EN ZE-NE BB ZI-nf
-A-B g2 -A-A K& B3 Beig BfifIE a1 1 EfZE t-A=T-H
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
o o # AT A1 # o o o #
Lease liabities (note 31) U RR) - 12011804 12011804 6201184 (4846719 (£813,4%) 388,575 = 144,093 9,176,341
Loan from related partes REBBAZER
(10te 32) (=7 30,000,000 — 30000000 = - 70000000 - (AT - BB
Other payments and accruals 0 ER AR B3
(note 33) BE (R333) 3,500,000 — 3500000 - S 890,505 = S - 430506
Bark borrowings (note 3 S8 () 44.951928 - %98 S ~ 8B4 216848 - 030510 41416419
845108 12001804 04373 629184 [B6TIG) 6118512 25TIOT3  (G6TIS6  (6855TT) 148311307
FEEERRIERERAA 2020 F R
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(f) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for

40. ZERERERKMITH)

f) HEELEPNBEER
RensExPHEEEHENESESRS

L]

leases comprise the following: &

2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
HK$ HKS$
BT 78T
Within operating cash flows FARKER S RE 2,126,561 388,575
Within investing cash flows FFARERSRE - 726,172
Within financing cash flows SFAABER SRS 4,939,869 4,424,921
7,066,430 5,539,668

These amounts relate to the following: ZESHEANTNHTE BB :
2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂE 7j-|.:£ﬁ
HK$ HK$
BT 78 T
Lease rental paid EffEE 7,066,430 4,813,496
Payments for rental deposits REEZRSIR - 660,222
Payments for right-of-use assets HERAEEENK - 65,950
7,066,430 5,539,668
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a)

KRR zMBRRAEREEB R

Statement of financial position of the (@) AXABZHBERRE
Company
As at 31 December
BR+=—B=+—H
2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
T BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BENREZE 2,829,830 9,024
Investments in subsidiaries RTB AR ZHRE 3,565,942 3,565,942
Right-of-use assets FHAEEE 2,276,876 3,643,002
8,672,648 7,217,968
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JiE W B /BB A R 3R IR 69,627,065 94,589,230
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments 1&2& - H it FE U I8 &
TE T A 1,011,347 2,409,753
Cash and bank balances Be NIRTES 755,042 33,324,287
71,393,454 130,323,270
Current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,494,642 1,430,704
Other payables and accruals B E AN ERIEER 16,028,416 9,933,184
Loan from a related party REBE A ZER 77,500,000 —
Due to subsidiaries RN ENCIE S 22,464,792 23,608,459
117,487,850 34,972,347
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS BRE(EE)EE (46,094,396) 95,350,923
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Long-term loan from related parties REBE 2 RBER 63,328,042 93,328,042
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,033,355 2,527,997
64,361,397 95,856,039
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS F(AE) EBE (101,783,145) 6,712,852
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXARREE
Share capital % 25 2,872,060 2,872,060
Reserves B (104,655,205) 3,840,792
TOTAL EQUITY MR (101,783,145) 6,712,852

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March

2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheng Ting Kong
BT

Exepg RN -_ZE-_—F=F=-1+hA

B AU TEERKERRE:

FEEBRREZERER D E

Yeung So Mui

BES
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41. XA ZHBRAREEEER

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARATBZREEEER
Shares  Contributed Share option Other  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserves losses Total
note 42(0)())  {note 42(0)i) (note 42[o)vii)
RHEE BARE  BRERG EtihE 2iER &E
(R sta2m)m) (B sEa200)i) (Ff EE42(p)(vi)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
o R B AL AL AL
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-nE-F-H 178,951,014 42,967,020 4,205,907 - (136,740,783) 89,383,158
Loss for the year FRFE - - - - (95,381,324)  (95,381,324)
Share-based payment DRABERN R - - 3,167,000 - - 3,167,000
Capital contribution iE - - - 6,671,958 - 6,671,958
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NETZA=T-H 178,951,014 42,967,020 7,372,907 6,671,958 (282,122,107) 3,840,792
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-Z5-8-H 178,951,014 42,967,020 7,372,907 6,671,958  (232,122,107) 3,840,792
Loss for the year FREE - - - — (11,919,405  (111,919,405)
Capital contribution iE - - - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
Share-based payments DA BERH R - - 923,408 - - 923,408
Lapse of share options BREXH - - (8,296,315) - 8,206,315 -
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZE+-A=1-H 178,951,014 42,967,020 - 0171958  (335,745,197)  (104,655,205)
42. RESERVES 42, #fE
(a) Group (a) #*%ME
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements REB RESERAZHHIIN
therein are presented in the consolidated statement HEeBERRkEMEEWERARE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and AR EHE -

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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42. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its Memorandum and Articles of Association
and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose
as a result of the Corporate Reorganisation and
represents the excess of the then combined
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Company in exchange
for the nominal value of the share capital and
share premium of its subsidiaries arising from
group reorganisation on 8 September 2005
(“Corporate Reorganisation”).

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 4(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

42. f#& (%)

(b) REEZIMHERAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FEEBRREZERER D E

KRG E

REFRERSRADE  AQT
B B 10 g (B A AR 3R AN 2 A) A
MBERRALANEE -
R A B R AE 2 K 3OK
BB EARRRERRE DKL
IR B RIDARENNE
BEXBBRETIHENZE
& o

A & B

RRABOBABRBBKREARAE
MEL SHKRENBRARE
BHEHFEEBRBRETT
WERBEBROMETHARD
AR EERN R -

B R
EHRBER_ZEZRFNA
NBETEESA(AREA]D
RELMNARRDHITRAT
BEXBENE QR ZBRAR
B dEEEERE -

S BB S 1eE

SN TE RS BB EE S
EBGUBREMELENAE
SNEERE o ZEBIOERER
RAMB®ERM i) 2E 5
BRI -
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42. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

v)

(vi)

Capital reserve

This represents the transfer from retained
profits to capital reserve as a result of the
write off of certain trade payables by % &
ZXEAMBRAAE JUF ACR. Equipment
Supplies (Ningbo) Co., Ltd.) (“JF Ningbo”), a
subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) accounting
principles and financial regulations, any gains
arising from debt restructuring which represent
the difference between the final settlement
and the carrying value of the debt concerned
are directly reflected in capital reserve and
therefore not distributable. Accordingly, a
transfer has been made from retained profits to
capital reserve. The capital reserve can only be
used to increase capital of this subsidiary.

General reserve

The general reserve is set up by way of
appropriation from the profit after tax
in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC. The rate of
appropriation to the general reserve is subject
to the decision of the board of directors of PRC
subsidiaries, but the minimum appropriation
rate is 10% of the profit after tax for each
year, until when the accumulated balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
subsidiaries. Pursuant to the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC, if approvals
are obtained from the relevant government
authorities, the general reserve can be used in
setting off accumulated losses or to increase
the capital of the subsidiaries.
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v) EX#FE
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(vi)
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NE((EREEDHE T RN
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B(HEDEFRAEFHR
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42. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair
value of financial assets at FVTOCI held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy in note
4(j) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserves

During the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2020, the Group received loans from
two related parties with principal amount
of HK$70,000,000 and HK$80,000,000
respectively. These loans were unsecured,
interest bearing from 0% to 2.00% per annum
and repayable within one to three years. The
fair value of these loans were estimated at the
prevailing market interest rates for equivalent
loans of 5% on initial recognition.

As one of the substantial shareholders of
the Company has beneficial interests in the
two related parties, the difference between
the principal amount and the fair value of the
loans on initial recognition were considered as
capital contribution and recognised in the other
reserve.

42. f#& (%)

(b) fEZHERARGE
(vii) URZMEGTARMEEHEK

(viii)

FEEBRREZERER D E

B EBEEME

KB AR 2 RS
LEMEERBEERBRS
HARAFALRELE S T HH
R FANN BT BREIED
AAREGFAEAMEE RS
ZERMEERAAENRIE
BHE -

A 1#

REBEEZZ-hLER_ZFZ
TF+ZA=+—HLFE"
AEED R BME @S
I EX 7K £70,000,0007% T &
80,000,000 L2 E M - %%
ERAEER  RFL0%ZE
200%FtERBER—ZE=FRA
ZEBERZARETD
ZRERXRERVIEERE 2
WAT 5 P EE% (A 5 °

& -

HARARBER-—BEEZRR
RZMAEBE T RBEES R
& ANE RS R A #E R
ZARERZEBER /I
BUYREMEBRER -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are

43.

43. RMBARZRE

MBRARAN_-ZE_ZF

F+ZA=+—HHHF

as follows: BT
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued
establishment Attributable and paid-up ordinary
Name and operation interest shares/registered capital  Principal activities
EMEYL/ RIK ERITRBEEER/
2 BEmE EEER HZMEAEE TEXK
Directly held
EERE
Apex Empire International Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 1 ordinary share of US$1 each  Investment holding
BREERERAA EEERRES 100% 1REREEIZETHEER REER
Profit Business Group Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 1 ordinary share of US$1 each  Investment holding
BESERRRA EEERRES 100% 1REREEIZETHEER REER
Gigantic Ocean Investments The Republic of 100% 1,000 ordinary share of Investment holding
Limited Seychelles US$1 each
EEREBRAA ERALRE 100%  1,0000% & R E1E TTH REER
R
JF Household Furnishings British Virgin Islands 100% 300 ordinary shares of Investment holding
(Asia) Ltd. US$1 each
BERERm(EMBRAF EEERRES 100% 300REBREEIETHNERER KREZRK
Indirectly held
BERFE
Seven Senses Game Company Hong Kong 100% 10,000 ordinary shares Design, development and
Limited of HK$1 each operation of online
games
tREBEHAERLA G 100% 10,0008 & AR E B 17% 7T &Y Rt BEREE
EREl R
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43. RMBRA 2R E (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued
establishment Attributable and paid-up ordinary
Name and operation interest shares/registered capital  Principal activities
EMEY/ RIK ERTRBREER/
£ BEHE Bz HEMEAEE TEXH
Indiirectly held (continued)
F#ERE (&)
tURERHERAR Taiwan 100% 18,000,000 ordinary shares of  Design, development and
TWD1 each operation of online
games
B 100% 18,000,000/ & R E (& FEt ARREE
Hagntak REBE
Seven Elements Interactive Digital Hong Kong 100% 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1  Investment holding
Technology Limited each
tTEHEBRRERAR B 100%  1,0008% & & H &1/ 7T &) REER
LiER
Cubinet Interactive (MSC) Malaysia 100% 6,048,780 ordinary share of Investment holding
Sdn. Bhd. # MYR1 each
SRAES 100% 6,048,780 BREEITEN REEKR
Cubinet Interactive Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia 100% 400,000 ordinary share of Design, development and
MYRG6 each operation of online
games
HREE 100% 400,000k BREEELEN Rt AEREE
EREl REBE

FEEBRREZERER D E
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43.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value of issued

43. RMBRA 2R E (&)

establishment Attributable and paid-up ordinary
Name and operation interest shares/registered capital  Principal activities
EMEY/ RIK ERTRBREER/
£ BEHE Bz HEMEAEE TEXH
Indiirectly held (continued)
F#ERE (&)
Cubinet Interactive Holdings Malaysia 100% 200,000 ordinary share of Property investment
Sdn. Bhd. # MYRO0.7 each
SRAD 100% 200,000k BREECTRER WEHRE
R
Cubinet Interactive Int’l Malaysia-Labuan 100% 1 ordinary share of MYR4 Design, development and
Co,. Ltd* each operation of online
games
SRED - WE 100% 1REREAEISHENEER  Rit HERLE
REBE
Cubizone Interactive (Thailand) Thailand 48.994% 100,000 ordinary shares of Design, development and
Co., Ltd # THB100 each operation of online
games
ZH 48.994% 100,000 BREEI00R &N Rt HEREE
R REBE
Cubizone Philippine Corporation® Philippines 39.84% 498 ordinary share of Design, development and
MYR7.4 each operation of online
games
FRE 39.84% 498K BREET4LTE Rt BEREE
R REBE
Cubinet Interactive Philippines Philippines 49% 4,998 ordinary share of Design, development and
Corporation # MYRO0.8 each operation of online
games
FEE 49% 4,998 BREEISTHK Rt REREE
Rl REBE
Cubinet Interactive Vietnam Vietnam 49% 14,700 ordinary share of Design, development and
Co., Ltd # MYR3.4 each operation of online
games
B 49% 14700 BREMBEI4FN R AEREE
R R B
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43. RMBRA 2R E (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued
establishment Attributable and paid-up ordinary
Name and operation interest shares/registered capital  Principal activities
EMEY/ RIK ERTRBREER/
£ BEHE Bz HEMEAEE TEXH
Indiirectly held (continued)
F#ERE (&)
Tais Mobile Pte Ltd # Singapore 60% 1,800,000 ordinary share of Design, development and
MYR0.026 each operation of online
games
N 60%  1,800,000%% F R EE FEi o HEREE
0.026% & M & i ik REBE
Seven Elements Interactive Hong Kong 100% 1,000 ordinary share of Investment holding
Limited HK$1 each
tTEHFERRA B% 100%  1,0008% & R E & 17 7T &) REER
R
Nova eSports International British Virgin 100% 70 ordinary shares of US$1 Esports operation
Limited Islands each
EBEARES 100% 70ORBREEIZTNERR SFHREE
Deluxe Trading (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% 100 ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$1 each
EXB5(ER)ERRAA Bk 100% 100REREBIETHEAR REER
BHEEBERRARAT PRC 100% 20,000,000 ordinary share of ~ Esports operation
RMB1 each
HE 100% 20,000,000/ & K E (& EFHBEE
ARBITHE @R
EBEHMNEBEREERAR PRC 70% 20,000,000 ordinary share of ~ Esports operation
RMB1 each
HE 70% 20,000,000 & K EE EFHBEE
ARBITHE @R

FREERRERERAA

2020 £ 225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 5 ZE —E - FF +-_A=+—RHILt&EE
43. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. RNMIB AR ZRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued
establishment Attributable and paid-up ordinary
Name and operation interest shares/registered capital  Principal activities
EMEY/ RIK ERTRBREER/
£ B Bz HEMEAEE TEXH
Indiirectly held (continued)
F#ERE (&)
Best Gold Corporation Limited Hong Kong 100% 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each  Money lending
EHEXFERRA HiE 100% 1REREEIBSTOEEER  HE
JF Ningbo * # PRC 100%  Registered capital Manufacturing and
and paid-up capital sales of stainless
of US$7,000,000 steel furnishings and
home products and
accessories
ERiEg i 100% HMEXRBRER HERHETEMEE
7,000,000% & XERAmREHY
JF Metal *# PRC 100%  Registered capital Manufacturing and
and paid-up capital processing of stainless
of US$140,000 steel rods and other
accessories
ELeE~ i 100% HMEXRGREAR BERMIFEHERE
140,000% 7T B
# Statutory financial statements not audited by RSM Hong Kong AT RERRCERESTAEHAEZ
* Wholly-owned foreign enterprise established in the PRC * ERERIINEEE D E
Although the Group owns less than 50% of the equity ® & A& % B R Cubizone Interactive
interest in Cubizone Interactive (Thailand) Co., Ltd, Cubizone (Thailand) Co., Ltd * Cubizone Philippine
Philippine Corporation and Cubinet Interactive Philippines Corporation &2 Cubinet Interactive Philippines
Corporation, it is able to gain power over more than 50% of Corporation # B 2 I8 # 2 750% + B iR &
the voting rights by virtue of agreements with other investors. HEMEEEIUNGE  A5BEBEEE
Consequently, the Group consolidates these entities. F50% A LM E - Bt XEE K&
EEBEETH -
The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which FREBEHAEENES EEXBRE
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the MERNTZENKBRRFMER -

Group.



43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table shows information on a subsidiary that
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group.
The summarised financial information represents amounts

before inter-company eliminations.

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE
43. RHBRARZRE (&)
TRBEBTNEBHASEMNEBEKRNZIEE
BEZ(IEERESDZHBRREER -
MEMEERIEANLARIEHEATZ &8 -

B (& M)
HBERE
Name Eg BRAHE
2020
.
Principal place of business/
country of incorporation TEEEWY TMRIEAR PRC/PRC
HRE P
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCI R ERIT B R RER
KREZADE 30%/30%
HK$
BT
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets IERBEE 17,646,985
Current assets mENEE 19,282,515
Non-current liabilities IERBARE —
Current liabilities mEAaE (14,642,512)
Net assets BEFHE 22,286,988
Accumulated NCI RErIEE R ER 6,685,441
Year ended 31 December: BE+t-A=+—-HLEE:
Revenue g % 9,404,446
Loss [ (1,545,810)
Total comprehensive income SHWZBEE —
Profit allocated to NCI DR T IEIE IR = 2 s F 198,361

Dividends paid to NCI

IR T IR s 2 BB

Net cash used in operating activities KRETHMANE S F5E (13,452,861)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEFAME S FE (19,247,348)
Net cash used in financing activities MEETHFANRES FER 31,777,348
Foreign exchange adjustment e H 1,671,321
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEBEY 2L IMNFRE 748,460
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e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T+ - A=+—HItEE

44.

45.

BA TS ER AR MY RE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44. ZIAREE
During the year, a subsidiary of the Company in the FR AR —HRUERBEEREBEKZ
manufacturing and sales of furnishing business has laid- MEBAREBZRAKRET  ZHBAF
off a number of skilled staff. The subsidiary has come HE=FTERBERDZE BFELAFARE
into an agreement with a third party entity to employ T-ZFE-HEBRAE ZWNBRARIZFEH
these skilled staff. This third party entity agreed that the MERA S B AR BN 2 £ B 18 £ 495,970,000
obligation for the economic compensation payable by the BT ELHEITZEZFETE - RN Y
subsidiary in accordance with the relevant labour law of the BHREEE EFRAETERZLHEL
PRC amounting to approximately HK$5,970,000 would be ERBME-
transferred to the third party entity under the arrangement.
At the date of these financial statements, the directors are of
the view that no material liability will arise in respect of the
arrangement.
At 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant RZE—NEF+ZA=1+—HB FTEETE
contingent liabilities. FRERLAEE -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45. EAXREIE
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the R EBRE B ETAE MR E & B R ASE
reporting period but not yet incurred are as follows: OIS
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT A TT
Game intellectual properties and licenses 7 [BY AN 5 = % bR - 11,398,491
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R mR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —E —FEF + - A=+—HILFE

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 46.
The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to investment property owned by the
Group with lease terms of 1 to 3 years, with no extension.
The lessee does not have an option to purchase the property
at the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

KREHEZRH
AEEEHSEEA

KeHERASEEHYMEIFNAEAR
EMENALEE) AR ABEALEHESE
REHERSBEZMENEERE -

HENKEREBEERENT:

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within year 1 —FR 1,080,770 924,782
In the second year F_4F 464,496 353,403
Total @st 1,545,266 1,278,185
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit TRENNREBEZRBRNHSE
or loss:
2020 2019
—EBZEHE —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Lease income on operating leases weEHEmMEER A 1,401,650 1,463,058

FEEBRREZERER D E

2020 £ 229



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BBALIXRS
(a) In addition to those related party transactions and (a) MARsR HM“‘#&%,J o AT B
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated B B A A2 ?:i AN RREFEA
financial statements, the Group had the following & lﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ EITUNTRS:
transactions with its related parties during the year:
2020 2019
— ? — ﬂf 7j1:$
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Leasing charges paid to RANATRARXNHEEER
— Ningbo JF Furniture Co., Ltd. ("JF Furniture’) — ZEXFELBRKRELFRAT Not
((EEHRAD applicable 2,397,885
T
Purchase from MUATARBEE Not
— JF Furniture — BERE applicable 2,589,243
T
License fees paid to PN E?E
— A.C.R. Equipment Supplies Limited - BEREEVARA 120,000 120,000
Interest expense paid to AR TRAZNFBREZ
— Imperium Credit Limited - HEHEENBBERAA 2,392,534 710,137
— Imperium Financial Group Limited — FEe@MEEERAT 3,314,945 212,055
JF Furniture is no longer a related party of the Group HE—_Z-_FTEFE+_-_A=+—HIE
during the year ended 31 December 2020. B BYEXETBEAEE @B
¥ o

At 31 December 2019, JF Furniture has guaranteed
bank loans made to the Group of approximately
HK$41,416,419.

During the year, the key management personnel
compensation paid by the Group including amounts
paid to the Company’s director as disclosed in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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R—_ZT—NF+—_A=+—H #
LRECAAEBZRBTERYD
41,416,419 TTIEHER -

FA - AEEXNTEEEEAERN
e Bmmse B ®RERME2R
PR BE X FARBEFIA KWL
EUBHRERMINIAMKESNT
ETu&SFMALHEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8 —E - T&H&+ - A=+—HILFE
47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 47. BEBALIXRZ (&)

(b) Balance with related parties (b) EHEBEBATHE
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had the RZEZEFRZZTE—NF+A
following balances with related parties: =+t—H AEEHEBPBALTE T
R
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
Due from related companies JiE Ug B8 B N B 5B
— JF Household Furnishings (BVI) %E%Eﬁﬁuu(%ﬁﬁﬁi Not
Limited HE)BRAF (i) applicable 4,737,355
iE A
Due to related companies &~ B B 2 B 5B Not
— JF Furniture — REERA (i) applicable (7,650,046)
T iE A
— Imperium Credit Limited — FEEEVBERAH (ii) (48,093,726)|  (48,093,726)
— Imperium Financial Group Limited — ¢ @ £ E B R A7) (ii) (121,234,316)|  (45,234,316)
(169,328,042)|  (96,240,733)

Notes: Bt &% -

(i) The amounts due from/(to) related companies are unsecured (i) ZEZREW (BN BB AT REA®E
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. B 2EREBTERE -

(ii) The amounts due to related companies of HK$169,328,042 (ii) 2 % FE 1 B B A B 5K TE169,328,042%
was unsecured, interest bearing from 0% to 2% per annum TREER REFORE2%TE R
and repayable within one to three years. HAR—E=ZFREE-

FEEERRIERERAA 2020 ¥
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z — T —EF+ —_A=+—HItFE

48.

49.

BA TS ER AR MY RE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 March 2021, an indirect subsidiary of the Company
(the “Purchaser”), entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a vendor principally engaged in the provision
of cloud computing and data storage services (the “Vendor”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed
to acquire, and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to
sell, the equipment which mainly consist of 100 units
of PowerEdge R7515 server, storage facilities of 8P and
auxiliary parts, which enables the Group to provide cloud
computing and data storage services to its customers, at the
consideration of RMB19,421,030 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,111,026).
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
March 2021.

Details of the transaction has been

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021.
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48.

49.

BEHREER

RZE-—F=ZA-+AB ARanEE
MEBAR(ERBETERERHETEHE
FEERERENBEFTEFDILESR
i B BEAEEKRGHRERE
MEAFAAKRGHRAEHERH(RBEEXE
B 51004 PowerEdge R7515f@ iR 28 + 8P
GREREERANT  FAEEANRAEFRE
HEFERBERTERSE) REAARKE
19,421,0807L (47 18 & 523,111,026/ Jr) °
EBRRSGZHFBERARRBYR AT ——
FZAZFRNBZAMBRIFEE -

MBBROAE

B2 T —F=ZA-ThAYRER
RETBEAMBERE -
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